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(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB) (Jif A &% LA R T oo B BAr)

Year ended December 31

Total Revenue

Total operating expenses

Finance costs,net

Gain arising from acquisition of
Emir-Qil LLC

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

As at December 31

Current assets

Non-current assets:
Property,plant and
equipment
Derivate financial instruments
Intangible assets
Investment accounted for using
the equity method
Deferred tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Restricted cash

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Rl g

Bk 45
MR - FE

I % Emir-0il, LLC FI75

IR B i i A
3B B 3

A Ay i A

WE)

B EE -
A - TR S

ik em T
Y

R I AR BE
AL AT 5B B

A A R <
A
% BRI B 5

I UL A M
B A

B A
R Eh A

AR

4

R B HA B GER

2010
“EFE

1,804,976
(1,170,963)
(51,444)

582,569
(161,705)

420,864

2010
“F R

1,156,075

3,024,482
20,285
1,677

24,212

3,070,656
4,226,731

919,376
1,347,424

2,266,800

1,959,931

#Et—H="+—HILFEZE

2011 2012
Y
2,827,141 3,485,616
(1,727,981) (2,360,804)
(159,754)  (279,510)
460,345 -
1,399,751 837,037
(293,909)  (295,765)
1,105,842 541,272
+=H=+—H
2011 2012
e
1,530,976 1,301,484
5,267,499 6,632,652
584,322 603,898
- 181,636
3,966 3,966
32,032 178,817
7,530 9,687
5,895,349 7,610,656
7,426,325 8,912,140
1,569,830 1,537,565
2,893,842 3,910,392
4,463,672 5,447,957
2,962,653 3,464,183

2013
e

3,256,061
(2,386,864)
(345,553)

454,867
(175,083)

279,784

2013

—3—=

1,186,539

7,160,160
544,469
273,348

40,783
50,422

34,941
11,884

8,116,007
9,302,546

1,555,604
4,042,512

5,698,116

3,704,430

2014
R NE

2,982,909

(2,209,438)
(481,327)

236,712
(214,163)

22,549

2014
—F e

1,650,635

6,629,673
494,552
499,284

20,538
75,541

210,389
12,955

7,942,932
9,593,567

1,345,118
4,683,938

6,029,056

3,564,511



Ml B RIZRERAT ¢« —Z—UFFR
Year ended December 31
BEVT-HA=1T—HILEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ZR-FE ZER 4 ZEF-IF ZF—- e Sl I3
Properties Held by Subsidiaries e 2 ) B 5 4
Sales volume MR
Crude oil (millions of barrels) JE i CF AR 3.42 4.03 5.1 5.38 5.58
China oilfields R i 3.42 3.84 4.08 3.77 3.67
Kazakhstan oilfields U E SO TIE - 0.19 1.01 1.56 1.88
Export sales O - 0.17 0.90 1.28 1.44
Domestic sales B 8 - 0.02 0.11 0.28 0.44
USA oilfields 5 [# (Condor) - - 0.01 0.05 0.03
Gas (MMscf) RO (A S Ay R - 439.67 1,526.43 1,698.50 2,014.34
Kazakhstan oilfields ey B e 0 S - 439.67 1,526.43 1,661.58 1,954.38
USA oilfields [ (Condor) - - - 36.92 59.96
Net annual production volume FIER R
Crude oil (millions of barrels) J i (A #A0) 3.41 4.06 5.23 5.36 5.59
China oilfields o By 3.41 3.87 4.20 3.73 3.66
Kazakhstan oilfields WA Tt H - 0.19 1.02 1.58 1.90
USA oilfields S (Condor) - - 0.01 0.05 0.03
Gas (MMscf) RBF (A BT ER) - 446.93 1,624.70 1,929.72 2,222.90
Kazakhstan oilfields W i e - 446.93 1,624.70 1,812.44 2,146.48
USA oilfields B (Condor) - - - 117.28 76.42
Average daily net crude oil production  H 335 s il & 5
Crude oil (barrels) J5 i (H5) 9,349 12,705 14,303 14,673 15,326
China oilfields rh g ik 9,349 10,601 11,487 10,208 10,033
Kazakhstan oilfields W i e - 2,104 2,787 4,320 5,201
USA oilfields S5 (Condor) - - 29 145 92
Gas (MMscf) RAR (AEERE T HER) - 4.90 4.50 5.30 6.09
Kazakhstan oilfields WA TE T - 4.90 4.50 5.00 5.88
USA oilfields 8 (Condor) - - - 0.30 0.21
Average realized price FIEBE R
Crude oil (US$ per barrel of crude oil)  J5i it (327,44 J5 i) 77.99 108.8 108.1 97.06 86.15
China oilfields R I 77.99 109.99 113.51 104.35 97.89
Kazakhstan oilfields WA TE IR - 84.38 86.14 79.64 63.34
Export sales B - 90.01 90.35 87.80 70.63
Domestic sales I R g - 31.02 50.65 4157 39.68
USA oilfields 3 (Condor) - - 84.89 90.30 83.11
Gas (US$ per MMscf) RAR (B0, THELTHR) - 1.15 1.17 1.44 1.27
Kazakhstan oilfields WA E I - 1.15 1.17 1.34 1.14
USA oilfields 5 (Condor) - - - 6.10 6.44
Lifting costs (US$ per barrel of A (367850 5 )
crude oil)(Note) (f7E) 6.06 7.29 8.35 9.34 9.46
China oilfields R i 6.06 7.16 8.60 11.08 11.83
Kazakhstan oilfields WA T TE T - 9.70 7.32 5.18 4.85
Cash net-back (US$ per barrel of P& EME (70, TG R
crude oil)
China oilfields w38 il - - 82.64 74.22 69.62
Kazakhstan oilfields 5 F%Hﬁ H - - 42.80 41.37 29.14
Export sales o - - 43.88 43.42 28.52
Domestic sales I R i - - 37.61 31.97 31.81
Wells drilled during the year (Gross) AR R B (RA ) 200 467 442 114 157
China oilfields w3 200 466 431 102 151
Successful I 200 466 431 102 151
Dry L2 - 1 - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields W T - - 8 10 6
Successful enkiaei - - 8 10 6
Dry [z - - - - -
USA oilfields % H (Condor) - - 3 2 -
Successful R - - 3 2 -
Dry W - - - - -

Note:  Lifting cost includes directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil.  #f ¢ SRIlRA CLHE A 2 — 4 A7 1 2 H 8T 2 RAs « J4
Other production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, technical A A N AE At - BREE R - Bl B WFTE B S
& research expenses and overhead have not been included above since they DT G e A0 R R AR N - B R B A A
are not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil. I B A @
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Crude Qil Reserves (thousands of
barrels)

Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved + probable
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

Total proved + probable + possible
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

Equity-accounted entities (MIEH share)

Total proved
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved + probable
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved + probable + possible
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total subsidiaries and equity
— accounted entities (MIEH share)

Total proved
Total proved + probable
Total proved + probable + possible

Year ended December 31
BEF A=+ —H 4R

2010
i

J&t o B ()

11 2 v i 4 5

TR W] ol i AR 32,936
g ik 32,936
WA T -
Z[# (Condor) -

R W] B S 2 U 52,541
H I ik 52,541
WA i L -
8 (Condor) -

B ME RO R A 66,400
B 66,400
A L e -
[ (Condor) -

s A g B RO
(KL MERG %)

il gk _
P L (=5 dk K L) -
B (White Hawk) -

5% W0 LA 5 o o -
P L (=52 dE K L) -
B (White Hawk) -

O MEE RO R R -
P L (=500 K ) -
B (White Hawk) -

P J 2 ) S 4 W
(A5 T 5 8873 ) ok 40

R W) ok 2 A
8 1) SELAE 5o 5 A
TRU0 ~ EST B v il ok AR

32,936
52,541
66,400

2011 2012 2013
“F——if R —%—=

61,000 51,328 54,177

33,988 23,455 20,409

27,012 26,111 32,497

- 1,762 1,271

110,843 113726 126,107

50,308 36,154 35,998

60,535 74,212 87,374

- 3,360 2,735

138815 168,494 183,991

59,783 50,643 51,617

79032 112,988 128547

- 4,863 3,827

- 139 -

- 139 -

- 153 -

- 153 -

- 175 -

- 175 -

61,000 51,467 54,177

110,843 113879 126,107

138815 168,670 183,991

2014
—F N

48,742
14,495
33,799

448

124,725
25,832
97,864

1,029

171,189
36,248
130,203
4,738

48,742
124,725
171,189



Gas Reserves (millions of SCF)
Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Emir-Oil
Condor

Total proved + probable
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved + probable + possible
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

Equity-accounted entities (MIEH share)

Total proved
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved + probable
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved + probable + possible
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total subsidiaries and equity-
accounted entities (MIEH share)

Total proved
Total proved + probable
Total proved + probable + possible

KRR (F AL ER)
Vit 2 v i 1

TR W] b i AR
A g 3
eI i f 4
% (Condor)

15 W) BRLRE 5 o 2 M
R 3
WA T
%M (Condor)

FRU0 ~ WEST IV R ok AR
o 3
WA i T
M (Condor)

s Ay B 1R K
(K HERG%)

TR W] il e A
AP (=0l R )
3£ (White Hawk)

R W] B S R
AP (=R K )
3£ (White Hawk)

TRY] > WS b o i AR
B P (=20 R B )
S (White Hawk)

W J 2 ) 54 W
(7R WA 38 ) folk A

R it B 40
% 1) 08Ot A
TR0~ MRS B T ok AR

2010
L

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

Year ended December 31
BEF A=+ —H 4R

2011
—E——i

29,341

29,341

63,339

63,339

93,422

93,422

29,341
63,339
93,422

2012
TE—TAF

31,402

28,478
2,924

79,543

73,967
5,576

130,043

121,974
8,069

33,352
33,150
202

97,634
97,410
224

207,316
207,060
256

64,754
177171
337,359

2013
e

40,178

37,541
2,637

96,090

90,416
5,674

140,592

132,653
7,939

134,069
134,069

302,582
302,582

499,321
499,321

174,247
398,672
639,914

2014
—F N

44,147
65
43,232
850

97,249
125
95,111
2,013

131,880
226
122,219
9,435

364,140
364,140

466,650
466,650

579,870
579,870

408,287
563,899
711,750
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Crude Qil Resources
(thousands of barrels)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources, Best Estimate,

Unrisked
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

Contingent Resources, C2 (mid case)

China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

£ B IR (T46)

11 2 7 i 4 5

R bR R R
(e HE)
A ik
WA T LT3R
M (Condor)
BHERE (2C, 1)
H I ik
WA T SR
305 (Condor)

Equity-accounted entities (MIEH share) %42 A M1 B 1 14 5 &

Prospective Resources, Best Estimate,

Unrisked
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C (mid case)

Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources, Best

Estimate, Unrisked

Total contingent Resources, 2C

(mid case)

(K MR %)

ERKERE R
(e HE)
P L (=5 dE K L)
B (White Hawk)
BHERE (2C, 1)
P PG (= L B )
3£ (White Hawk)

90 J 48 R
(i aHE)
A ERAE (2C, 1)

2010
L

Year ended December 31

BEF A=+ —H 4R

2011 2012 2013
SR R4 F=

18,187 205,811 205,577
18,187 21,224 20,990
- 184,587 184,587

8,741 43,140 9,219

8,741 8,631 8,456
- 33,746 -
- 763 763

18,187 205,811 205,577

8,741 43,140 9,219

2014
—F N

245,113
22,176
222,937

11,494
10,190

1,304

245,113

11,494



Gas Resources (millions of SCF)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources, Best Estimate,
Unrisked
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor
Contingent Resources, C2 (mid case)
China oilfields
Emir-0il
Condor

RARE &
(FERELTER)

11 2 v i 1 5

R bR R R
(e HE)
A ik
WA e LT3R
M (Condor)
BHERE (2C, 1)
H R ik
Wh T ST IR
305 (Condor)

Equity-accounted entities (MIEH share) %42 AJEH B #1145 &

Prospective Resources, Best Estimate,
Unrisked
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C (mid case)
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources, Best
Estimate, Unrisked

Total contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)

(K MR %)

ERKERERE
(e HE)
P L (=5 dE K L)
B (White Hawk)
BHERE (2C, 1)
P L (=40 L B )
3£ (White Hawk)

90 J 48 R
()
A ERME (2C, 1)

2010
L

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

Year ended December 31
BEF A=+ —H 4R

2011
—E——i

2012
TE—TAF

- 6,589

- 5,063
- 1,526

- 921,570
- 921,570

- 679,358
- 679,358

- 921,670

- 685,947

2013
e

1,583

1,583

1,064,740
1,064,740

884,406
884,406

1,064,740

885,989

2014
—F N

3,260

3,260

675,750
675,750

680,850
680,850

675,750

684,110
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Chairman’s Statement
FF WA E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of MIE Holdings
Corporation (“MIEH” or the “Company”, together with the
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014.

In 2014, the Group’s total operated oil and gas production
exceeded 10 million barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE”, converting at
6,000 standard cubic feet (“MSCF”) of gas to 1 BOE for reference
purpose only) for the first time, represented by its 0.8% increase
from 9.93 million BOE in 2013 to 10.01 million BOE in 2014. Net oil
and gas production increased 5.3% from 5.68 million BOE in 2013
to 5.98 million BOE in 2014. The Group’s total sales revenue slid
8.4% to RMB3.0 billion, whilst profit before tax dropped by 48.0%
to RMB236.7 million, both due mainly to the slump in global crude
oil prices in the second half of 2014, certain one-off finance
expenses for the early redemption of 2016 Notes, as well as an
impairment loss from our subsidiary Condor Energy Technology
LLC in respect of its long-live assets in Niobrara, USA, and an
impairment loss from the Moliqing property held by Riyadh
Energy Limited. Nonetheless, our EBITDA in 2014 maintains at a
healthy level at RMB1.6 billion. The Group’s reported net profits
decreased by 91.9% year on year (“yoy”) to RMB22.5 million, and
earnings per share decreased by 80.0% to RMBO0.022/share. In
order to preserve sufficient cash to support the Group’s liquidity
and operation under foreseeable low crude oil price environment
in 2015, the Board did not recommend payment of final dividend.

Ml EERERERAR e —=—maggFw 171

B AL AR -

ANGERRMIBEIRFE BT BRA 7 (LU iR M
REVR PN | B0 [~ w] ) > B0 R [ 4
M) EHG (EHET)) RRREEREEEE
T—EF A=+ HIERF A -

TF DO > AREE EI R S R ISR
T EAT E O = 2R 7 6 T A ME 7 7 R UK
SRS =1 A L 1 #6544 T S o it 2
R AW > e T F— = AR 993 A B 1
1£0.8% % 1,001 S A H & o 1M i m e =%
— =4 [ 568 & Al E &1 £ 5.3% £ 598 H &
i o W B ——AE S BB E AT
158.4% = #1 N B ¥ 301% oc > Bl mi A 3 8
48.0% E 4 N R ¥ 2.367 T > %8 46 F 2 Pk
I % ST A 1 T ko TR AT 0] N
AR B W 2 BT IR T A AR 0 — IR S T
74 # 2 77\ 7 Condor Energy Technology
LLCJi* 5% Bl Niobrara I f& i #% & L) J Riyadh
Energy Limited CFI#E1F B8 U5 2 &) ik o B 22
B IEE B AR 0 S R - Al - 3
A 22— DU AF B (1 2B 3T 85 1 A1 (EBITDA)
MRIRAEFF AR BRI 7K > B AR 164800 -
A [ A 35 0 A 40 N R 0.225 /% 0 >
T — ZAE A 91.9% o AR A 4 80.0% &
BN R 0.022 7 o H 1 5 A R I
&K > By TR B T 2 1 4 LR R 3R
TR OB BT EER AR
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For the year 2014, highlights of the Group include:

Further Enhancement of Group Reserves Value. Based on
reports issued by independent technical consultants, the
present value before tax and discounted at 10% (“NPV 10”),
of the Group’s Net Proved + Probable (“2P”) oil and gas
reserves as at yearend 2014 is approximately US$4.0 billion,
which represents a 14.3% increase over the NPV 10 of US$3.5
billion reported at yearend 2013, despite the divestments and
exclusion of Pan-China Resources Ltd (“PCR”) and Miao
Three Energy Limited (“Miao Three”). Comparing with
yearend 2013, the Group’s total net Proved (“1P”) oil and gas
reserves as of yearend 2014 increased by 40.3% to 116.8
million barrels of oil equivalents, while the total net 2P oil
and gas reserves increased by 13.6% to 218.7 million BOE,
the Group's total net Proved + Probable + Possible (“3P") oil
and gas reserves was about flat at 289.8 million BOE.

Divestments of non-core assets generating decent returns in
2014. In 2014, the Group successfully divested two non-core
assets in China: (1) PCR, which operates the Kongnan
Production Sharing Contract (“PSC”) in Hebei Province; and
(2) Miao Three which operates the Miao 3 PSC in Jilin
Province. Based on reserves at yearend 2013, the total net 2P
reserves of Kongnan and Miao Three combined only
represented about 4.4% of the Group’s total net 2P oil
reserves and as such it shall not cause any material impact
on the Group’s total production and cash from operations
going forward. The final adjusted consideration for the sale
of PCR and Miao Three was approximately US$83.1 million
and US$21.2 million, respectively. Upon the completion of
both divestments in the second half of 2014, the Group
realized a total gain of about US$42.2 million. Whilst these
two transactions demonstrate the tremendous intrinsic value
of the Group’s remaining assets, more importantly they
provide the Group with further capital reserves for future
new assets upgrade or acquisitions.

The cash operating costs of the Group’s core assets in China
remains at low levels, serving as a solid foundation for the
Group’s liquidity under the current low oil price
environment. As opposed to many pure play shale oil and
gas producers in North America, our China oil projects
consistently maintain cash operating costs at low levels.
After the divestment of PCR and Miao 3, the lifting costs for
our two remaining oil projects, Daan and Moliging remains
about US$10.62/barrel, whereas cash operating cost
(including the lifting cost, but excluding the special oil levy)
approximates US$16-18/barrel. In addition, since January
2015, upon the Chinese government raising the threshold for
the special oil levy from US$55/barrel to US$65/barrel, the
tax burden for our China oilfields has been further reduced.
Accordingly, we are optimistic that even at current low crude
oil prices, both Daan and Moliging will continue to generate
strong cash flow and profitability, which is critical for
maintaining the Group’s operational and financial flexibility
and stability under a volatile oil price environment.
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Sino Gas & Energy Limited (SGE) achieved encouraging
drilling and testing results, and well-positioned for the start
of large scale production. SGE’s well testing program in 2014
has been successful, with the average flow rate significantly
increased in comparison to the 2013 testing program. In the
Linxing Block, 28 flow tests were performed (excluding the
horizontal well TB-1H), resulting in an average absolute open
flow (AOF), potential rate of 925 thousand cubic feet per day
(approximately 26,205 cubic meters per day, AOF'). In the
Sanjiaobei Block, where 10 flow tests were carried out,
similar improvement was recorded with an average AOF
potential rate of 380 thousand cubic feet per day
(approximately 10,780 cubic meters per day, AOF).

SGE’s successful drilling and testing programs have led to
very significant upgrade in the project’s reserves. According
to our independent consultant’s review of yearend 2014
reserves and resources for the Linxing and Sanjiaobei
projects, the 1P Reserves (attributed to the Group, same for
other reserves figures in the paragraph) increased by 171%
to 364.1 billion cubic feet (“BCF”) (or 10.3 billion cubic meters
(“BCM"), where 1 cubic meter = 35.315 cubic feet), and 2P
Reserves increased by 54% to 466.7BCF (13.2BCM).
Furthermore, the yearend 2014 reserves assessment
indicates that, based on 2P Gas Reserves, the Group’s net
share of the SGE’s NPV 10 is estimated at about US$1.6
billion. Starting from 2015, SGE will enter into an important
phase of production growth. Despite the current global low
crude oil price scenario, the price and demand for natural gas
in China has remained strong. We anticipate that our SGE
project will experience strong future growth and profitability,
diversifying the Group’s operation risks under oil price
volatility.

Emir-Oil’s production maintained growth momentum, with
significant progress made on the construction of the new
Central Processing Facility (“CPF”). In 2014, the average oil
production for Emir-Oil was 5,201 barrels per day (“BOPD”),
representing an increase of 20.4% from 4,320 BOPD in 2013.
Groundbreaking for the construction of the new CPF took
place in the 4Q2014. Despite our recent strategic decision to
defer the target completion date for the CPF due to the drop
in global crude oil prices, we remain poised and ready to
accelerate completion of the project whenever oil prices
recover. The new CPF, which is now rescheduled to be put
into operation in 2016, represents an integral part of the long
term solution to remove production bottleneck for Emir-Qil
and to enhance sales margin.

AOF potential of a well is the calculated rate at which the well would produce
against zero back pressure. AOF is used as a measure of gas well performance
as it quantifies the ability of a reservoir to deliver gas to the wellbore. The AOF
values provided herein are for reference purposes only.
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o Despite global crude oil price volatility, the Group exercises
due care and discipline when pursuing future expansion
strategies by making two minority investments. (1) Co-
investment with Can-China Global Resources Fund
(“CCGRF") in Canadian International Qil Corporation
(“CIOC"), with a total consideration of about US$7 million.
CCGRF is a private equity fund focused in the natural
resources sector with more than US$1 billion of
commitments under management. Such investment has
broadened our connection with global top-tier oil and gas
focused operators and investors and set the stage to pursue
our future global expansion strategies; and (2) A new joint
venture to be established with China Oil & Gas Group
Limited (00603.HK) to jointly develop LNG/CNG related
downstream sales and distribution business, in order to
maximize the integrated utilization of the Group’s natural gas
assets in Shanxi.

The sharp slump of international crude oil prices since 2H2014
undoubtedly affects oil producers around the world. A vast
number of oil companies ranging from independents to
international majors have already announced substantial cuts to
work plans and budgets for 2015. In view of current conditions,
and given the global crude oil market outlook remains to be
volatile and challenging, management of the Group is committed
to exercise further due care when pursuing our business plans,
particularly when that is related to any capital expenditures and/or
investments. Flexibility and timely responses to changes in the
market are critical when executing our 2015 budget/work
programs. Under the current low oil price environment, we believe
our 2,600+ existing wells in Northeast China will continue to
provide strong free cash flow to support the Group’s overall
operation, as we plan to substantially scale back on drilling of new
development wells for both China and Kazakhstan oil operations
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until oil prices recover. For the Linxing and Sanjiaobei projects
under SGE, 2015 will be the first year of significant pilot
production gas sales into pipeline. The Group anticipates growing
cash flow from such sales and production along with two central
gas stations commence operation.

For 2015, given the low global oil prices, the Group plans a
reduced work program, compared to 2014. We plan to drill 32
gross wells (including 29 wells in SGE), with budgeted capital
expenditure totalling about US$103.0 million. The expected net oil
production is 9,800 to 11,100 barrels/day, net gas production of
9,600 to 10,1700 MSCF/day. We are confident that this program will
provide the basis for the Group’s continued operational and
financial stability and growth, even in the current challenging
economic environment.

In closing, | thank you, our Board, staff, shareholders,
bondholders, and business partners for your continued trust and
support.

Chairman
Zhang Ruilin
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Zhang Ruilin, aged 44, has been our executive director
(“Director”), chairman and chief executive officer since his
appointment on March 20, 2008. He, along with Mr. Zhao, is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 24
years of experience in the oil and gas business. In May 2003, he
founded Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"”) in Hong Kong, through
which he acquired MIE from Microbes Inc. Following the takeover
of MIE by FEEL in August 2003, Mr. Zhang joined us in September
2003 and has since been a director of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing our overall strategies, planning and
day-to-day management and operations. Mr. Zhang is also a
director for the various subsidiaries of the Group.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 43, has been our executive Director and
senior vice president since his appointment on December 19, 2008.
He is one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Zhao has over 22
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Following the
takeover of MIE by FEEL from Microbes Inc. in August 2003, Mr.
Zhao joined our company in September 2003 and has since been a
director of the Company. He is and will continue to be primarily
responsible for assisting the chairman in overseeing the
operations at the Daan and Moliqing oilfields. Mr. Zhao obtained a
bachelor of arts degree from Daqing Petroleum College in 1999.

Tao Tak Yin Dexter, aged 42, has been our executive Director
since his appointment on July 19, 2013. He is also the chief
financial offer and senior vice president of the Company. Mr. Tao
joined our company in July 2013. He has been a veteran
investment banker with extensive corporate finance and
accounting experience. Before joining the Company, Mr. Tao
served as senior director in the Global Investment Banking team at
Bank of America Merrill Lynch where he spent six years
specializing in the origination and execution of investment banking
business for China’s private sector enterprises. Prior to Bank of
America Merrill Lynch, Mr. Tao has also worked at Bear Stearns
Asia, BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital and Arthur Andersen LLP
(subsequently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers). Mr. Tao holds
both a bachelor degree in Business Administration and a master’s
degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California.
He was a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong from 1996 to
1999.
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Andrew Sherwood Harper, aged 62, has been our executive
Director since his appointment on July 19, 2013. Mr. Harper has
been the Company’s chief geologist and president of the
Company’s international operations from 2001 to 2008 and
rejoined the Company in April 2010 as the chief geologist. Mr.
Harper is also the chief executive officer and a director of MIE
Jurassic Energy Corporation, overseeing the group’s operations in
the United States. Mr. Harper has over 35 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
working in the exploration and production team of ARCO
International Oil & Gas Company prior to joining the Company in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked extensively
overseas, including assignments in Chile,Dubai, Norway, the
United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCO’s resident manager
in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked as a basin studies
director, Latin America exploration director and exploration
project director at the headquarters of ARCO International in the
United States from 1990 to 1996 and as an exploration manager at
the Andean Basins in ARCO Latin America Inc. from 1999 to 2000.
Mr. Harper received a bachelor’s degree in Geology from Williams
College and a master’s degree in Geology from the University of
Southern California. Mr. Harper is certified as a Professional
Geologist by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists and a
Certified Petroleum Geologist of American Association of
Petroleum Geologists.

Tian Hongtao, aged 44, has been our executive Director since his
appointment on December 5, 2014. He is also the executive
president of the Company. Mr. Tian joined the Company in
January 2014 as vice president. He has over 20 years of experience
in finance and accounting and brings considerable risk and control
management expertise to the Company. Prior to joining us, Mr.
Tian served as financial controller of Digital China Information
Service Company Ltd., a company listed on the Shen Zhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000555.SZ). Before that, Mr. Tian held
positions as vice general manager, general manager, assistant
president and vice president of Digital China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (‘'Digital
China”, stock code: 00861), focusing on risk and control
management of Digital China. Prior to his time at Digital China,
Mr. Tian worked at the Lenovo Group, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Change (stock code: 0992). Mr. Tian graduated
with a Bachelor Degree in 1994 and then a Master’s Degree in
2001, both in Economics from the Central University of Finance
and Economics in China. He also obtained a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in China in 2007. He is a non-practicing certified public
accountant in China.
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Wang Sing, aged 51, has been our non-executive Director since
his appointment on June 22, 2010. Mr. Wang is a partner of TPG
and also the co-chairman of TPG Greater China & Head of TPG
Growth North Asia. Mr. Wang currently serves as a non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee and investment
committee of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange). Prior to joining TPG, he
was chief executive officer and executive director of TOM Group
Limited from July 2000 to January 2006. During the period from
July 1993 to May 2000, he held various positions at Goldman
Sachs in both New York and Hong Kong (including executive
director). Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Wang was a
strategic consultant with McKinsey & Co., in Chicago, U.S.A. In
addition, Mr. Wang is the chairman of Amerinvest Group of
Companies. He is also a member of the Standing Committee of
the 10th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is currently a Listing
Committee Member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Wang has a bachelor degree in science from Yunnan
University, PRC; and a master of science in Forestry and its
relation to Land Use; a bachelor of arts degree in Philosophy,
Politics and Economics and a master of arts from University of
Oxford, U.K.

Hung Leung, aged 40, has been appointed as the alternate of our
non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Sing, since July 1, 2013. Mr.
Hung is a principal at TPG Growth Capital (Asia) Limited with over
15 years’ experience in investment banking and direct investments
in Greater China. Mr. Hung is also a non-executive director of
China NT Pharma Group Company Limited and an alternate
director to Mr. Wang Sing of China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Since
joining TPG in May 2006, Mr. Hung has led a number of
investments in China. Prior to joining TPG, Mr. Hung was deputy
general manager of business development and executive assistant
to the chief executive officer of TOM Group Limited, a Chinese
language media conglomerate listed on the Stock Exchange where
he was responsible for leading and executing media and internet
related investments and partnership transactions across Greater
China. Mr. Hung started his career in investment banking with
Barclays Capital where he took part in the financing and
structuring of certain landmark infrastructure deals and pioneer
private equity investments for healthcare and internet/broadband
companies in China. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in business administration (magna cum laude) from the University
of Southern California.
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Mei Jianping, aged 54, has been our independent non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania, since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and Zhong De Securities Company Limited. Mr.
Mei also served as the chairman of the board of Shanghai
Zhangjiang JRtan .com Inc. from 2000 to 2012. From November
29, 2013, Mr. Mei has served Ground Properties Company Limited
as an independent non-executive director, and from August 11,
2014, Mr. Mei Has served China Rundong Auto Group Limited as
an independent non-executive director (both companies listed on
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei worked as a consultant for various
financial institutions, such as Deutsche Bank, UBS, Prudential
Insurance of America and Asia Development Bank. He has
published a number of books and articles on topics related to
finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor’'s degree in Mathematics
from Fudan University in 1982, a master’'s degree in Economics
and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from Princeton University in
1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 52, has been our independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 28 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc., one
of the world’s largest independent physical energy trading firms,
he was responsible for Mercuria and certain of its affiliates’ global
portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the majority of which are
located in North and South America. Prior to Mercuria, Mr. Miller
spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as president of Moncrief Qil
International, a private oil and natural gas company with assets in
the former Soviet Union as well as North America. Prior to his
career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a managing director in global
energy investment banking for UBS AG, the successor of Dillon,
Read & Co, which he joined in 1993. Mr. Miller was an investment
banker with a focus on the energy industry and has extensive
experience in the fields of corporate finance. Throughout his
career as set out above, Mr. Miller has been involved in a
substantial number of transactions including initial public
offerings, debt offerings and mergers and acquisitions, which
require expertise in financial analysis. As an investment banker,
Mr. Miller also had extensive experience in valuation analysis,
which involved reviewing and analyzing audited financial
statements of public and private companies. Mr. Miller’s
professional career began in a technical capacity as a petroleum
engineer with Exxon. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’s degree,
magna cum laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M
University and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Columbia Business School.

Cai Rucheng, aged 63, has been our independent non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Cai has
over 33 years of experience working in the oil and gas industry.
From 1968 to 2004, Mr. Cai worked at the Shengli oilfield in the
Shandong Province for Sinopec and held the positions of section
head at the Oilfield Geology Division, division head at the
Reservoir Engineering Division and chief geologist. From 1998 to
2003, Mr. Cai was also appointed and acted as a senior member of
the Technology Committee of Sinopec and the group leader of the
Expert Group for Development under the Senior Members
Committee of Sinopec. Since 2004, Mr. Cai has retired from the
above positions. Mr. Cai is currently the vice chairman of and
secretary to the board of directors of Shandong Petroleum Society.
Mr. Cai is a senior engineer and received a bachelor’s degree in
Oil and Gas Exploration from China University of Geosciences
(formerly known as Beijing Institute of Geology) in 1967.
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Forrest Lee Dietrich, aged 62, is the vice president of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for reserves management.
Mr. Dietrich joined the Company in January 2002 and has been the
executive Director and senior vice president of the Company from
2008 to 2013. Prior to joining us in January 2002, Mr. Dietrich
joined Microbes, Inc. in 1994 and held various technical and
management positions during different phases of development of
the production sharing contracts. Mr. Dietrich has over 39 years of
experience in the oil and gas business, during which he acquired
his experience as the vice president of operations for Greenwich
Oil Corporation, an oil company based in Dallas, Texas, from 1985
to 1994 and served in various capacities as area engineering
supervisor, evaluations specialist and planning coordinator and in
various staff engineering positions at Texaco USA (Getty Oil) in
Texas and California from 1974 to 1985. Mr. Dietrich has been a
member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers since 1972 and
become a professional engineer in the State of Texas since 1984.
He has authored and co-authored four technical papers for the
Society of Petroleum Engineers regarding microbial enhanced oil
recovery and presented three of those papers at their technical
meetings. Mr. Dietrich obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in
Petroleum and Natural Gas Engineering from Pennsylvania State
University in 1974.

Zhu Jiucheng, aged 43, is our vice president. Dr. Zhu joined our
Company in March 2011 and is responsible for the operation of
international business units and expansion of the Company. Dr.
Zhu has over 19 years of experience in the oil and gas industry,
during which he held various positions in China National
Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiaries between 1996 and
2008, including China National Oil & Gas Exploration and
Development Corporation, PetroChina Companies in Indonesia,
PetroChina International Ltd. and CNPC International Ltd. and the
executive president of UNIWE International Energy Service Ltd., a
petroleum service company providing technical appraisal and
asset evaluation for oil and gas assets, where he was in charge of
the technical team from 2008. Dr. Zhu holds a doctoral degree in
Petroleum Engineering from the Petroleum University in China.
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Ning Deyu, aged 46, is our vice president. Mr. Ning has over 21
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. He is primarily
responsible for the production operations and HSE management.
Prior to joining us in 2007, Mr. Ning acquired his experience as
technician, section chief and deputy factory manager at PetroChina
in the Jilin oilfields. He also worked as the project manager at the
foreign cooperation and joint venture division of the Jilin oilfields
at PetroChina between 2005 and 2007. Mr. Ning graduated from
Daqing Petroleum College with a bachelor’'s degree in Petroleum
Engineering and is a senior engineer.

Ms. Wong Sau Mei, ACS, ACIS, is a senior manager of corporate
services division of Tricor and an Associate of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She has over 19 years’
experience in the company secretarial field.

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director, there are
no family relationships between any of our Directors and senior
management.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this corporate
governance report in the Group’s Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

The Board of the Company has committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards. The Group acknowledges the
vital importance of good corporate governance to the Group’s
success and sustainability. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance as an essential component of
quality and have introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of our business.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
Principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

During the accounting period for the year ended December 31,
2014, the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions set
out in the CG Code, except for Code Provisions A.2.1 and E.1.2 as
explained below.

The Company will periodically review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2014.
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The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 5
executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin

Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper

Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter

Mr. Tian Hongtao (appointed with effect from December 5, 2014)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wang Sing
Mr. Hung Leung (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Cai Rucheng

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16
to 22 of the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationships among Directors and Senior Management”
on page 22.

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are required to be separated and not to be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr. Zhang”)
is the Chairman of the Board. In addition to the role of Chairman
of the Board, the role of Chief Executive Officer is also designated
to Mr. Zhang. This constitutes a deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1. The reason for such deviation is set out below.
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The Company is engaged in the oil and gas exploration and
production business which is different from integrated oil
companies engaging in both upstream and downstream
operations. In light of this, the Board considers that the interest of
the Company’s oil and gas exploration and production business is
best served when strategic planning decisions are made and
implemented by the same person. The Nomination Committee of
the Company also agreed that it is in the best interest of the
Company that the roles of the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer be performed by the same individual. In this
respect, the Company does not currently propose to designate
another person as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
However, the Company, will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s corporate governance structure and consider
whether any changes, including the separation of the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, are necessary.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation at Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all non-executive Directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to
reelection, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.
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Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 3 years and is subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, and
through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

In addition, the Board has established Board committees and has
delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary, with a view to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws and regulations are followed. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and
professional development for directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed
and refreshed by, inter alia, the following means:

(1) Reading materials provided from time to time by the
Company to Directors, and as applicable, briefings and
reports by the Company Secretary, as regards matters of
relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
with the latest developments in laws, rules and regulations
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors and
corporate governance;
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(2) Participation in continuous professional training seminars,
conferences or workshops on subjects relating to directors’
duties, corporate governance and updates on listing rules,
etc. organized by the Company and/or professional bodies
and/or government authorities; and

(3) Reading news, journal, magazine or other reading materials
as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

Records of the Directors’ training during 2014 are as follows:
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The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

All members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out under “Company Information” on
pages 2 to 3.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Mei
Jianping and Mr. Cai Rucheng, all of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external
auditors before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Audit Committee
held two meetings to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems and
processes, scope of work and re-appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Mei Jianping (chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Cai Rucheng, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
the following:

° To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the individual executive directors and senior
management

° To review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors

° To review and make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management

o To make recommendations to the Board on the letter of
appointment of the new executive Director appointed during
the year

o To review and approve compensation arrangements of the
executive Directors and the senior management

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Remuneration
Committee met once to assess performance of executive Directors
and senior management, review and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management and other related matters.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Mei Jianping (chairman of Nomination Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Cai Rucheng, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

o To review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations regarding any proposed
changes
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o To develop and formulate relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors

o To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

o To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors

° To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Nomination
Committee met once to determine the policy for the nomination of
Directors, review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and consider the qualifications of and nominate certain retiring
Directors, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, Mr. Tian Hongtao, Mr. Wang Sing
and Mr. Cai Rucheng to stand for election at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices and made recommendations to the Company
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, the code of conduct and
compliance manual for employees and Directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended December 31, 2014 is set out in the
table below:

Name of Director Board
EHEY E )
Executive Directors AfTES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin el 6/6
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei iRk S 6/6
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper &4 5/6
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter W g S 6/6
Mr. Tian Hongtao (appointed with ~ HI#tREG A

effect from December 5, 2014) (12014412 /1 5 HIEFE) 16
Non-executive Directors FHfTES
Mr. Wang Sing Biins 3/6
Mr. Hung Leung R

(alternate to Mr. Wang Sing) (TR ETESF) 1/6
Independent non-executive Directors 7 k7% %
Mr. Mei Jianping fgr i 5/6
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 7&/£ 6/6
Mr. Cai Rucheng Al 6/6

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of executive
Directors during the year.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC") and its responsibilities for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are set out it the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 86 to 87.

The fees paid or payable to PwC for the year ended December 31,
2014 are HK$6,300,000, all of which are audit and audit related
services.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports
to the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address
the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board with the support of the
Audit Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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Ms. Wong Sau Mei of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Tao
Tak Yin Dexter, an executive Director and chief financial officer of
the Company.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company by post
as set out in the following paragraph.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests mentioned
above by post or via email as follows:

Address: Room Nos. 521-26, 5/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(To the attention of the Board of Directors)
Tel: 852-2511-0028
Fax: 852-2511-1983
Email: investors@mienergy.com.cn

Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, apart from the registered office of
the Company, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To achieve this, the Company maintains a website at http://www.
mienergy.com, where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted and available for public access.
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The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, all non-
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors, and the
chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make
themselves available at the annual general meetings to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries. The general meetings of
the Company also provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the shareholders.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that, among others,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting
and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
to be available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on May 16,
2014 (the “2014 AGM"), Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Audit Committee), Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cai
Rucheng (member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee) were unable to turn
up due to other important business engagements. They will use
their best endeavours to attend all future shareholder meetings of
the Company.

However, Mr. Zhang Ruilin (the executive director and Chairman
of the Board), Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper (the executive
director) and Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter (the executive director) have
attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions where necessary.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
ventures is to engage in the exploration, development, production
and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products under
production sharing contracts and other similar arrangements. The
Group currently has the following oil and gas properties: (1) two
producing production oil sharing contracts in northeast China; (2)
an exploration contract and four production contracts in
Kazakhstan held by Emir-Oil, LLC (“Emir-Qil”); (3) a working
interest in the Niobrara shale oil and gas asset in the United States
of America held by Condor Energy Technology LLC’s (“Condor”);
and (4) a 51% stake in Sino Gas & Energy Limited (“SGE”) which
has two production sharing contracts in Shanxi, China.

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 92 to 93.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2014 (2013: HK$77,572,000).

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 94 to 95 and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 198 to 201 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable reserves of the company at December 31, 2014 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Cayman Island, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted to the Board of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
May 16, 2014, the Company purchased 17,134,000 of its own
ordinary shares of US$0.001 each in the capital of the Company as
at December 31, 2014 at the highest and lowest prices of HK$1.01
and HK$0.99 per share respectively (“Shares Repurchase”).

The aggregate purchase price paid for the Shares Repurchase was
approximately HK$17,178,313.11 (including transaction cost) and
was funded by internal resources of the Company. Such shares
purchased by the Company represents approximately 0.65% of the
issued share capital of the Company before the Shares
Repurchase.

A summary of the purchase, sale or redemption of shares of the
Company’s listed securities is set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business. Under
the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share options were granted to
Directors, executives and employees, of which 1,818,579
share options lapsed. The share options were granted at nil
consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. The share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.

(i)
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Details of the share options outstanding as at December 31,
2014 which have been granted under the Plan are as follows:

Number of ~ Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at Exercise
January 1, during during December 31, price
Name 2014 the year the year 2014 (per Share)
7#
1# KR MEE  ZF-NE
e UL #lz Bfiffz +=H it 1
¥ “HoRE WRERE O WREHE =R (fl%)
Independent
non-executive directors
Bk Es
Mr. Mei Jianping 1,267,933 1,267,933 US$0.25
frota 0.25 %7
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 1,811,333 US$0.25
Jeffrey Willard Miller 4 0.25%70
Other employees 17,048,120 17,048,120 US$0.13
JEET 0.13%7%
Total 3t 20,127,386 20,127,386
Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) (i)

On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group.
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director,
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of
the Scheme.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than ten years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Date of grant

fHAM

November 23, 2010
“F RN

November 23, 2010
CEEEL AT =N

November 20, 2009
“EBEA

REE—METZH =+ —H > R
T O L AH W R AT i 2 W IRORE R 17 20
B

Exercisable period

WP TR

from November 23, 2011
to November 22, 2020
A%t A= +=R
EREELA R

from November 23, 2011
to November 22, 2020
I
EREELA R

from November 20, 2011
to November 19, 2019

B-F——#+—A=+H
R e AL

Bl ot R 3B (T 0 Je Bt 801 )

AN _EFE—FET—H T LH #EEE
PR B B e R ) > AS Oy )l ) 23 E 22 B
AT R > AR A 1S R AR B T AR
B R Y [ o AR ) 2 S
BLAG B AR L BT AT
= FHATE R SRR B o W R
BT SEAEMERE FH 1 OFF I [ AT R AR AL -

R 75 8 R - 0 52 o 0 A ] S R 2 A7
6 300 8] A A5 R B2 1 H R R 47 o Al
BRI P 1 2 I HE > AR N Db A 4% 1
H#11% 28 K A 341 1.00 st 2 A Al B #32
1K - th# S & e 2 AT RS 25 T 31
ZHF P ZBEE ()RR B IR
B F O 26 B s B R e T A s (i) B2
4z b IR IO A2 S H AE W 22 i B
AR 2R T s 0 B S 249 e i A A (i)
By Ti{E



The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year staring from the
subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27, 2010,
share options to certain employees of the Company, entitling
the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of US$0.001
each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011
Grant”). The share options for an aggregate of 5,987,200
Shares subsequently lapsed pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme and the relevant option agreements.

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options
has been higher than the prevailing market price of the
Shares. As a result, the options could no longer serve as an
effective incentive. In view of this, the Company offered
these option holders a cash consideration of HK$0.20 per
Share to cancel vested options under the 2011 Grant, subject
to the option holders consenting to such cancellation. As a
result, options in respect of 65,358,066 Shares were cancelled
on March 21, 2014.

Grant of New Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants
comprising certain directors, substantial shareholders and
employees of the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,280,000 Shares. These options have an exercise price of
HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years from the grant
date, and will vest over the next three or four years. The
share options for an aggregate of 4,008,379 shares
subsequently lapsed pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
and the relevant option agreements as at December 31, 2014.

The closing price per share as at March 20, 2014, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$1.34.
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Under the Scheme, a total of 209,328,000 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
97,280,000 share options were newly granted, and 65,358,066
share options were cancelled during the year ended
December 31, 2014. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2014 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

Held at
January 1,
Name 2014
[ 215
24 “A-B#E
Executive directors
ArEs
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000
IR
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000
AL
Mr. Andrew Sherwood 1,323,000
Harper
Andrew Sherwood Harper
pd
Mr. Tian Hongtao
Mt
Other employees 101,798,000
AT
Total #5t 107,815,000

Number of
options granted
during the
period

MmN
TR

2,640,000

2,640,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

86,000,000

97,280,000

Number of
options
exercised during
the period

MR
L4 L

Number of
options lapsed
during the
period

RMRE%K
Ll L

1,754,200

4,008,379

5,762,579

Number of
options
cancelled Held at
during  December 31,
the period 2014
sk
IARCRE  AZAZR
THE H Hh
2,347,000
2,640,000
2,347,000
2,640,000
882,000 441,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
64,476,066 35,567,734
81,991,621
65,358,066 133,974,355

AR5 M -

At

=P aN

209,328,000 13 i

R TES - ITHONE KRS - #
EoE-NEFFHA=+—H1E+ MW
H > #i#% 1 97,280,000 175 8 B HE > Bl
65,358,066 7 15 /I il o AR 45 i I A T 61
SR ER —E—NFE+ A =1+—H
W ARAT I B I RE SRS W R

Exercise price
(per Share)

fifife
(k)

HK$2.254
24T

HKS1.40
14087

HK$2.254
2254170

HKS1.40
14087

HK$2.254
225418 7C

HKS1.40
14087

HK$1.40
1407

HK$2.254
2250870

HKS1.40
14087

Date of grant

RHEH

September 20, 2011
“F—EUACTH

March 21,2014
“F-MEZAZ-R

September 20, 2011
“EEASH

March 21, 2014
“E-WEZAZT-H

September 20, 2011
“EFHA

March 21, 2014
ZE-WEZAZT-H

March 21, 2014
M=

September 20, 2011
“E—ERA SR

March 21, 2014
“F-WEZA-A-R

Exercisable period

LRSI

from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
AoF-TEPTA=-AR

EEEC-EAATARL
from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024
BoF-AEZR-T-HE

ECECNEAZTAL
from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
£t g e e £

ECEC-EAATARL
from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024
BoF-AEZR-T-RE

FCECNEAZTAL
from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
AZZ-CHEFZA=T—HiEE

ECEC-FAATARL
from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024
BoZ-AEZR-T-RE

FORTMESA AL
from March 21, 2015

to March 20, 2024
BoF-RE=AZT-RE

ECECWEEACTAL
from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
AZZ-CHEFZAZT—HiEE

ECEC-FAATARL
from March 21, 2015

to March 20, 2024/

from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024/
BoF-RESAZT-RE

FoRMEZACHAL/

AZE-AEZA2-HR

FCRCMEEAZTHLE



(iii)

(iv)

Share Award Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs”), the Board resolved to adopt a
Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to which
the Company granted to selected grantees who are persons
holding SARs under the Plan, such number of awarded
shares as is equal to the number of outstanding notional
shares to which the SAR of the selected grantees relates.

According to the Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless
early terminated by the board of the Company, the Share
Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect until the
date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or expired.

As at December 31, 2014, the trustee holds 42,065,002 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$78,053,660 (including
transaction costs). As at December 31, 2014, the trustee sold
2,349,000 shares in aggregate upon exercise of SARs so
exercised by certain grantees.

2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award
Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to
give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group, and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board resolved to adopt the 2015 Share Award
Scheme, pursuant to which the Board may at their absolute
discretion select any grantee, who is an employee or
consultant of the Group or of any affiliate but is not a core
connect person or connect person (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, for participation in the 2015 Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of awarded
shares to be granted to such grantee. The 2015 Share Award
Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant
to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary
scheme of the Company, and will be in effect in parallel with
the Plan, the Scheme and the Share Award Scheme.
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Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules,
the 2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
from 6 January 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded
shares has been vested and transferred to the relevant
grantee or has lapsed, whichever is later in accordance with
the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award
shall be made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the
adoption date.

As at the date of this report, the trustee holds 11,600,000
shares acquired through purchases from the market at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$10,212,766.99
(including transaction costs).

Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue at the date of the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan is
264,784,079 shares and 20,127,386 shares respectively,
representing approximately 10.16% and 0.77% of the issued
share capital respectively.
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Executive directors

Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(appointed with effect from December 5, 2014)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Wang Sing
Mr. Hung Leung (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Cai Rucheng

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, Mr. Wang Sing and Mr. Cai
Rucheng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. In addition, Mr. Tian Hongtao was appointed as executive
Director on December 5, 2014 shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Article 16.2 of
the Company’s articles of association. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for reelection.

We had entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of association at our general meeting.

On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, each an
executive Director, has each entered into a service contract with
the Company and MIE respectively, which is renewable yearly
unless terminated (i) with twelve months’ notice by either party, or
(ii) by the Company or MIE (as applicable) upon certain events
such as the Director having committed serious or persistent
breaches of the service contract. Should the Company or MIE (as
applicable) terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao
will be entitled to receive a severance payment equivalent to one
year'’s basic pay under the service contract, save for circumstances
described in item (ii) above.
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Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors had entered into a
service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group had the
following transactions with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”) and
Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and their subsidiaries
(“Jilin Guotai”), which are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules:

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company; and
(B) Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholder’'s Approval

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is
therefore a connected person of our company. Since 2008,
Mrs. Zhang has been regularly leasing a substantial number
of vehicles to us.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into a renewed
framework vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang on (the
“Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose of
the day-to-day business operations of our Group, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement.

An individual car rental contract was entered into on January
1, 2014, for an aggregate yearly rental fee of approximately
RMB 3.24 million. The rental fees paid by us to Mrs. Zhang
are based on normal commercial terms and negotiated on
arm’s length basis between the parties, and are no less
favourable than terms offered by independent third parties to
our Group.
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Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

(B)

Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to
provide to us various oilfield services including well
maintenance services, well logging services, oil tanker
transportation services, oilfield construction related works
and other oil operations related services, subject to the
entering into of individual contracts as agreed between Jilin
Guotai and us pursuant to the Oilfield Service Agreement.
The service fees will be based on normal commercial terms
and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by
Independent Third Parties to our Group.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three
years ending December 31, 2015. The proposed annual caps
for the transactions under the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement are RMB250.0 million, RMB280.0 million and
RMB330.0 million for the three years ending December 31,
2015, respectively.

As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of
each continuing connected transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2014 has not exceeded the respective
proposed annual cap in the Renewed QOilfield Services
Agreement as approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on May 24, 2013.

Connected Person Nature of transaction
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2% ) 4R 3t A 0 T R S - B AR B O iR
B~ BB -l G A S
SRR B T R JFCA 7 ol A 6 A B 5
AR 2 i EE AR 5 B i o A AR M 2R B
AN RVET S A AR B TR o RS 2
ARYEIE P Sk o B Oy R N T R e
P E > HH R R S 5 =7
1) A% 4 [ T 4 ik

o FE - A= —H o BME
PRI 2% 5T 7 A8 AR h E RS 1 5 0 AR
Mea®E—F—AFE+ A =+—HIt
TR o KEAEET 0 HRE R TE R &2 B
BE_FZ—-HHFt+_A=+—H1L=M
AR R AR L R A AR 2.5
g6 AR 2.8@Iuc K ANR#33ME -

AN SO > AR A R AL S IR R
R -NEF A=t —HIEEEZE
B MEAER _F— =4F1H
T R A O A v A B R
FEJEERR

Transaction
amount in 2014

LN R RoHE AR B TR -MER G
Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by None RMB3.24 million
RRA Mrs. Zhang £ ANRH324 85T
to the Company
TRFN A A AR R E
Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield RMB280.0 million RMB243.3 million
RN ES services by Jilin Guotai ANE#2.81%5C NR#2.433M& 50

to the Company
T bR 28 ] A 2 w2 At
il H R A5
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors,
the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary and
usual course of business; on normal commercial terms or
better; and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. Details of such connected
transactions are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The auditor has confirmed that for the year 2014 the
continuing connected transactions (i) have received approval
of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company, where applicable; (iii) have been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the respective
cap amounts as approved at the annual general meeting
dated May 24, 2013.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their
conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s Board.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company.

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

WAL FRMATERR S WEZS T —
i Je B W ERS AR D 5 4 IR BCE R
SEAGE 5 AR PR AT R ARt w4 T
B BB AT A 70 R B H SRR A 25 Y
WA HEAT © 5% 55 B 52 5 R & F B
BRI B 5E 37 147

A% BT R > & — WA 1Y R A0 B 2 58
Zy (i) G g it s (i) e AL E
R () 5 (i) S 2 5L A 1)
e fbe kG oL 5 K (iv) I Mt = — =
AR H TR A R At A A
B 4 B RR -

MWyE LRSS 14A 561K » HRECE
WA ) A S 4% B 7 0 o R
L s 4 7 v 5 M 1) 3000 9 [ R
S HS EORHEE U B L Ah 2 B A
K225 BB S WL 4R 740 5% [ A BT R
HRLE 9 355 468 ] 8 52 5 W) A% S R F ) B
e THEENRRF o HBHTT 45 R
R AR o EPE L

a. ARSI A T R B AT e 5 T A At A
HAAE 5% 55 C 45 0% 1 R LB 5 5 R
Wl E R G HLE -

b. LA B (AR RS B
A5y > KB 2 3 R AT AT 35 0H
AAIMIAE 5% % 58 5 £ P A B R 5
T A A 4 RS W) 9 58 (B BUROEAT -

G TNV B AT (o 4
MB35 e BT Tk Oy TR A
iz AL % 5 5 5 1
7 o
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d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the d.  HEREEE SR BT R AT 5
continuing connected transactions set out in the 148 8T 5 > AZ B 4 2 B
attached list of continuing connected transactions, AT o] 5 TE A AP AT A 5% S5 415 48 T ol
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes T oW &R A TR —FE— =4
the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing — B T H AR AC 5 i bk R
connected transactions have exceeded the maximum R TE R S O P ER M RRAE B 2R )
aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous OB RE b IRAREE o

Circular dated January 21, 2013 made by the Company
in respect of each of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance Bk b SCHY R A o AN 4R (B BELAR N W
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the JBEBR (G 38 5 b T AR AN ) Bl AT ] B 2
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its A7 T S AT AR B K A TR (B R4 I R
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the LR 2 7 1) A AR AR AR TS ) o
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements AAFCDHALEHEE X —UE+
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to A=+ — B 1R RS B A 5 K kr
the connected transactions and continuing connected SRR oy s Ll R R 14A EE I 4
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended TEHE o

December 31, 2014.

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on page 16 t0 20.  EHHJEFEHK AL 16 HEE20H o
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As at December 31, 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"”), which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:

AE—PEF A=+ —H s ARFEF L
FBEATEN B AR T A (g g A
5 I KA B (35 25 O B g9 1) 55 XV )
B A ~ A B e A0 B G o v A AR 8 2 X
B B2 XV FRER 7 T 8 43 B ZE & AR )N 7
Wk 32 BT BB 35 SR A (AL TR AR a5 o M B Ak
5 %) A SC T VR BB A HE A Y RE fR IR
) BONRAE RS I B B 05 41 5 352 15 i B B
JER RO RZ G T 48 1 B e 1 R Y B 2 R A
S AR S L TR R A b T AT N HE A TR
I3 28 Gy WA HE S AU (T AR MEST ) 1) 20 & AR A W)
T U5 52 BT B R £ SR R R AR

Approximate
Number of ordinary total
shares(including percentage of

Name of Capacity/ options to be interest in the
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
ety 8 A A 30: T R 43 1
HHLH LR 2 Ve Tl (/645 AT A7 P ) WARE
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
SR e AT corporation (Note 2) 211,855,234(S) 8.05%
Y WA (M aE2)
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
TERIE RS (7t 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 4,987,000(L) 0.19%
HaHa A (Hfit4)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
L H ST E/NE| corporation (Note 2) 211,855,234(S) 8.05%
SHERIE B (7t 2)
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
SERIE B SS (H it 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 4,987,000(L) 0.19%
Eilad N (i 4)
Mr. Zhang Ruilin FEEL Interest of controlled 8,999 9.99%
SR A T A corporation (Note 2)
THERIE R (M7t 2)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled 9,000 10%

LA

corporation (Note 2)

L I ik 2)



Name of Capacity/
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest
HHEH AW 2198 fli3
Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner
M /g g2 ZDN
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner
Jeffrey Willard Miller 52/ AT -k N
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Our Company Beneficial owner
Andrew Sherwood Harper Jc/£ A/ 7] Hada A
Mr. Tian Hongtao Our Company Beneficial owner
e AT -k ZEUN
Notes:

(1)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao”) as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act
in concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the
shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a
unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action in concert is
unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's
and Mr. Zhao's shares.

The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,636,429,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 4,987,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 4,987,000 share
options granted to Mr. Zhao, and (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement,
over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through
Celestial, as further described in note (3) below.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

Approximate
total
percentage of
interest in the

Number of ordinary
shares(including
options to be

exercised) corporation

et 8 A 1 35 TR B 52 FH)

(/B 455 T4 P ) BHMENI
1,267,933(L) 0.05%
1,811,333(L) 0.07%
3,441,000(L) 0.13%
3,000,000(L) 0.11%

TR L) RN LR AR R PRI A - T8
[S] R N JRAL BBy o IR AT

FEEL VLo ([5R KA D) ~ siREmFR e (TR e A4 1)
R VLA SR ([ e 1) 23 il 4 6 80% ~ 9.99% &
10% Mt o A ZF— =4 A H = TMH  FEELM
72,000 1 JI% £33 8547 T 3Rk K A > FEEL 23 Al i A 24 7]
399,070,000 i ~ 399,070,000 /i ~ 475,000,000 fix S
141,460,000 i i {731 33 7 Champion International
Energy Limited ([Champion]) ~ Orient
International Energy Limited ([ Orient]) ~ New
Sun International Energy Limited ([New Sun])
S Power International Energy Limited
([Power]) » Champion * Orient * New Sun
Power¥J £ Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited 1) %
¥ [} & 2> 7] o 1 Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited
ANl 7 FEEL i 42 BB 20 ] © SRR ~ 3RS Jui 5t
AR BT B IR PRGBS TR B
FEEL I AC Y€ 1 — DI —BATH) - 95— BUTH)
bk > AR AR A BT — BT B I —BE R
RS MR I~ SR RN Bt ST A Y IR HEA T 1

FEEL » 5 % 74 0 %6 24 i A A A 1 A W
1,636,429,234 I = WA #5 (0 35 (i) FEEL 8 38 H 724
A (7 3% 1 A Al oA R 7 FEEL 19 3R %) Hr A I A
A7 1,414,600,000 % 25 1 %5 > (i) 3R Je A 15 A 19
4,987,000 MEIEAE » (iifi) i o4 #5457 119 4,987,000 B
W RE > DL R (iv) AR 8 5B 0l K wR W 0T ORE I
FEEL > 3R Jc & Fills 5o 4 4% T Ho Chi Sing Jo/: 4
i Celestial F:A7 1942 1] 211,855,234 /I 7 i A HE >
SR SRR (3) ©
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(3) The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder
of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2014, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

(3) AxwEhF A+ —H/\H %% TPG Star
Energy Ltd. i Celestial # 52 & ¥ I i - 9§ Bt »
Celestial[f] % Wt [ MKTPG Starld] = i #&
211,855,234 A2 w] W i o

A E—AE+—HNH > FEEL ~ 5R %64 - %
A RN K Celestial 4 T B 051 37 58 1k 1 52 i
WARE Tk - PRUL > RZ W R BT A Oy IR B AR 2 A%
4 Iy 2 o T RE R SIE E R S B M A6 191 5
317(1)(a) & ¥ & » Ho Chi Sing %t /4 /4 Celestial If)
ME— RO o

Jo HAE 5 — 2 19 J& > Ho Chi Sing 4= % i H 1
Celestial (5% » Fifi 4\ 7 211,855,234 [ 1 -
MR b 52T KR i HAME 1% > Ho Chi Sing JEAE AN
Celestial FF A R WIME - 15 ) FEEL » 5[ e A4 Al 5
Al b4 211,855,234 TEHE ©

(4)  RZEFMERR TR A2 R M I IR ) T AR AT
ORESE o FLALRE I T2 00 [ BeHE | — 1 -

B B SO T HE ) — B Br dc g2 & 4k i =%
—HELFZHA = H > AR FEHEE R EEST
BN BR A2 R B AR I ) (5 5 S ws o K
BB WRAIEE XV ) BB ~ AR B Rt B e v
ML S S A AR A A 2 L ) 0 5 XV R B 7
B 853 Hls JEUR By AN ) B Wit 5 P 114 W 4 IR A
(/475 AR 8 88 2 e ) 8 A0 090 194 A S 1 =t
LR BEA MR SR ) - BURBERE 25 I &
o451 565 352 16 i) B 5 78 6 T I a2 Ak BT 48 1) T
T PR P R A IR - AR AR ST I ZE & AR
N E RSB A R 5 R E =
Fr A= HIRFRE > IR T AT (%
St s < HEF



So fa

r as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2014, the

following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divis
requi

ions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be
red, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into

the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Name of interested
HE 4 77 44 T

Ms. Zhao Jiangbo

Party Capacity/Nature of interest

Vg E iR
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MEHA > R oF—WEHF A=
TN (BR#E S  E2ATEN B A 4 F
B FAN) A T 22 e A BOR BRI o B
AR 8 o S B A 155 XV #0565 2 S 343 R 1)
AN F TR HIRESE K BORA - SRR SR &
Y B {6k 91155 336 MR ZH X RT I % Ak BT 16 2 R MM
OHERS B, BIR AT

Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2)

LE=RARY; /e ZPET LB A (A 2)

FEEL Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2)
ZPEE B R (A 2)

Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

Celestial Energy Limited
(“Celestial”)

Notes:

(1

S P O W RE A (W R 3)

S22 W RE A (B R 3)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as
to 80%, 9.99% and 10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL
were issued to Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were
transferred from FEEL to Champion International Energy Limited
(“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient International Energy Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the
Company were transferred from FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited
(“New Sun”) and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion,
Orient, New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory
Holdings Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs.
Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert
Agreement under which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters
that require the decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-
in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that
require action in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed
to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

(1

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

exercised) company

JBe 4 48 98 (L 45 VT 47 A 2wl HE R
18 i 2 HE ) BEZ A 43 L
1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
211,855,234(S) 8.05%
1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
211,855,234(S) 8.05%
1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
211,855,234(S) 8.05%
1,636,429,234(L) 62.17%
211,855,234(S) 8.05%

TR TL SRR LR AR G P i - 7
(S AN LA BB AR R A -

FEEL B VLU ([5R KA D) ~ siRAGAE Kol Se A 20 il 4
£80% - 9.99% K 10%HE 4 o it = F — =4F 1 H
Z V4 H > FEELY 72,000 BB #5407 TaR R
FEEL 4> 7l # 4 2% +1399,070,000 /% ~ 399,070,000
Ji% ~ 475,000,000 i %% 141,460,000 it A {7 4 5 T
Champion International Energy Limited
([Champion]) ~ Orient International Energy
Limited ([ Orient]) ~ New Sun International
Energy Limited (New Sunl]) M Power
International Energy Limited ([ Power]) °
Champion ~ Orient * New Sun & Power¥ 7
Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited fiY 4 & Fff Ji§ 28 &) o
i Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited I 25 FEEL 1Y) 2
EIF 2 | o R R ~ R SEAE Kt e BRI L — 3L
Trmhihak > PRUL > 5% 55 A BOBE T Hh FEEL IR IR E 19
— R —HATE) - MIE—BATH TR > MR ngrE
AR EATH RN - BOE R R R
H o RRA KM S I A A TR SRR o
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,636,429,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 4,987,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 4,987,000 share
options granted to Mr. Zhao, and (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement,
over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through
Celestial, as further described in note (3) below.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder
of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2014, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FEEL > SR e A M B EE R AN AFFHEMN
1,636,429,234 I = H # 25 {0 45 (i) FEEL 8 48 3 124
) (17 5 A= 0 B 5 4= 38 48 78 FEEL I Fe i) F5A7 1 4
/5 ) 1,414,600,000 % FF 25 B 25 > (i) SR JEAE A 1)
4,987,000 I fff e > (i) # Je 4 1945 19 4,987,000 i
W R RE > DL R (iv) AR 8 R T S wR T RE I R
FEEL » 5% o 26 Al Jo 28 382 T Ho Chi Sing JtA: %8
i Celestial Hi 4 A AR /A 7] 211,855,234 I 52 M HIHE >
LR SCHEEE(3)

AN AR ZF A A — N H % > TPG Star
Energy Ltd. % Celestial 7] 7. B # iy ok > 4% Ut -
Celestial [/l 7 i W% KTPG Starln] & i &
211,855,234 R A2 ) 4@ I -

W E—PusE+—H\UH > FEEL » #2564 - Mk
4~ BRI K Celestial 545 T B 43 1 57 58 1 M i i
WRE T o o BRI > B2 M AR R A O TR S EA 2 R4
B A T oy = 5 R R S R T R S A 15
317(1)(a) f& 1 = - Ho Chi Sing %: /4 %4 Celestial 1)
ME— B

Jo HAE 5 — $2 9 & > Ho Chi Sing %t /& 7 i H 7
Celestial (5% » 74 42 7 211,855,234 R4 -
HR4E bl GR K sR MEAME 3% > Ho Chi Sing Se/: 0
Celestial #4751 WIHE > 1517 FEEL » 3R Se 4= F i 5k
Al 211,855,234 IEEHE

Br ESCRTalF AL > i =& — AR A =+
H o AL A £ (BRS B3O T34 2 13 AT
BN B AR 2 A SAT AR AR B 5 B A e 073 ~ A B
By B A HEE i B A E M2 R AT | — B
O 99 5 i ) A W] S el E AT BN B AL
AR ) 22 FB Ay S R S A7 v B AR B 8 o I
IR W25 336 I B RC I A Rl A7 B 2 B AL
AR A K BIR AT



During the year, the Group purchased around 54.1% of its goods
and services from its 5 largest suppliers and 73.9% and 92.1% of
the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina, its largest customer,
and its 5 largest customers combined.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers and
customers.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
period from January 1, 2014 to the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company had an interest in a business which competes with the
Company or may compete with the business of the Group.

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the reporting
period.

Proposed dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2014 (2013: HK$77,572,000).
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FER S AR SR 1) R P L BRI 40 54.1% 1Y
P il S IRES T AR 4R [ 45 73.9% & 92.1% 4
A A K E T Rl REF (A5

R ESCRTER AN o MR - (AR
ol 2 T R A AR ] B AT A 5% LA
AR J SR A A 2 B TR I R L R Y
EATHESS -

WAL 7] B AL 2 B AR T >
R A PUAE— A — H AR T AT AR

AT H > A FARGE AR IR % 2 25%

CERAT LA th AR -

A ) AR AT e o B B LA 2 )
SE T 35T ST B BELA G2 I S5 B 2 6 S
A AL T HE G o

FEEL ~ 5ROC/AE Sl e it —F —F4F+—H
A= HAARRRRTSLARBF L) o AN
SEIFHUATHE S DA N BT A ST KT
UL - 58 FEEL ~ 3R 5 A Bl 5 A i ¥ o5 0
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on or
around Friday, May 22, 2015. For determining the entitlement to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, May
20, 2015 to Friday, May 22, 2015, both days inclusive, a period
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 19, 2015.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 19, 2015
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Overview

The year 2014 can be viewed as having two distinctly different
parts, with the first half of the year having benefited from high
crude oil prices (average realized price US$96.02/barrel) and the
second half of the year characterized by drastic global oil prices
decline, which negatively disrupted the entire upstream oil and
gas industry. Overall, the Group’s average realized price was
US$86.15/barrel, a decrease of US$10.03/barrel, compared with
2013.

We are pleased that despite the oil price slump since 2H2014 and
material scale back of the Group’s capital expenditure (“Capex”),
the Group delivered solid execution of the work programs set out
at the beginning of 2014 and successfully achieved production
targets by increasing both oil and gas gross (operated) production
and net production, compared with 2013. In particular, it is worth
underscoring that the average daily oil production of Emir-Qil in
Kazakhstan for 2014 was 5,201 BOPD, which represents an
increase of 20.4% compared to 2013. Also notable is that our SGE
project in Shanxi Province China reached a significant milestone
in November 2014, when the Qiaojiashan Gas Processing Station
(“QJS Station”) in the Sanjiaobei Block was put into service, pilot
production gas sales into pipeline was officially started.

In 2014, the Group divested two non-core assets in China: (1) PCR,
which operates the Kongnan PSC in Hebei Province; and (2) Miao
Three which operates the Miao 3 PSC in Jilin Province. The final
adjusted consideration of the PCR and Miao Three divestments
was approximately US$83.1 million and US$21.2 million,
respectively. The Group realized a total gain of about US$42.0
million. We believe that these two transactions demonstrate the
tremendous intrinsic value of the Group’s remaining assets (e.g.
the PCR sale price represents a valuation of approximately
US$16.3 per 2P Reserve Barrel), and more importantly, the sale
proceeds from these divestments provide good support for the
Group’s liquidity and operations under current low oil price
environment.

Based on the 2014 yearend oil and gas reserves and resources
estimates prepared by independent consultants, the Group’s
reserves value continues to enhance significantly, with NPV10 of
the Group’s 2P oil and gas reserves estimated to be approximately
US$4.0 billion, or a 14.3% increase from 2013, which is largely
based on the gas reserves increases achieved in the SGE project.

The Group drilled 193 wells in 2014 (including 36 wells in SGE),
which is fewer than our 2014 guidance, as we strategically scaled
down drilling activities after oil price dropped in second half of
2014. As of December 31, 2014, the Group operated a total of 2,753
wells, of which, 2,703 are located in China, 45 in Kazakhstan, and 5
in the USA.
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The following table provides a recap of the Group’s key  DIF & A 48 [ — & — U 4F 2 4F 1Y B8 4 8 %% 3

operational metrics and product prices for the year 2013: 1%
FY2014
FY2014 FY2013 % Change Guidance
"R DR =R AL Hl R
Average Daily Operated Production RSN kv Y
(BOE/day) (Hi & &/ K) 27,418 27,207 0.8%
Average Daily Net Production F Ry S
(BOE/day) (& &/ K) 16,373 15,555 5.3%
Average Daily Net Oil Production F 38 JFie v 2 (/K
(BOPD) 15,326 14,673 4.5% 15,300~16,300
Average Daily Net Gas production AYRARFEE
(Mscf/day) (T HER/K) 6,280 5,295 18.6% 5,500~5,900
Average realized oil price FIE BRI
(US$/barrel) (501 85.99 97.06 (11.4%)
Average realized gas price THEB KB RER
(US$/Mscf) ESWaNNEIN] 127 1.64 (22.3%)
Total Wells Drilled B (O) 193 145 33.1% 205
Notes: A

(1) For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent is calculated using the (1) BLHEAR & & 57 6 T 14 37 )7 96 RO AR5 =14l S ik

conversion factor of 6 Mscf of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel of oil; RIS L PDEA TR - 2 Y 5
(2) Gross production includes production from all assets operated by the Group; (2) MER=mAEEBEEEEENSHEB AR
(3)  Net production includes entitlement from all assets operated by the Group. (3) VR =L EE S T H B 10 e E A o

The following table is the summary of the expenditures incurred DA NS H —F— DU R A NG - BIEE
in our exploration, development and production activities for /4= 3¢ H A9 FE A B -
FY2014:

Production/
Exploration Development operating

(Millions of RMB) expenditures expenditures expenditures Comments
B

(NRHEET) BiR S GE S EEMA ik

China il 262 683 226

Oil Projects JEMIER (K% R - 683 226

(Daan,Moliging, Miao 3, Kongnan) J#3 -~ L)

Gas Projects (Linxing,Sanjiaobei) RFIEE (BB - =22db) 262 - - Based on 51% of
total expenditures
incurred by SGE

JERR T RE H
HU51% (Y
Kazakhstan (Emir-Oil) W& i ST M3 (Emir-Oil) 96 240 97
USA (Condor) %M (Condor) - 5 13

Total At 358 928 336



China Operations

(1)

Oil Projects (Jilin Province: Daan, Moliqing, Miao 3;
Hebei Province: Kongnan)

As part of the Group’s strategy to continuously upgrade
our core assets portfolio, two definitive agreements
were signed during 3Q2014 to divest PCR and Miao
Three. Both transactions were completed in 4Q2014,
with the final adjusted consideration being
approximately US$83.1 million and US$21.2 million
respectively and realized a total gain of about US$42.2
million. The PCR sale price represents a valuation of
approximately US$16.3 per 2P Reserve Barrel, and the
Miao Three sale price represents a valuation of
approximately US$36.8 per 2P Reserve Barrel. We
believe that these sales valuation metrics confirm and
validate the high value of the Group’s remaining oil
producing assets. The sale proceeds from these
divestments will also serve as a strong buffer for the
Group's operation under the current low oil price
environment.

In terms of total average daily operated oil production,
the three Northeast China projects (i.e. Daan, Moliging
and Miao 3) in Jilin Province recorded a decrease of
3.9% yoy to 19,349 BOPD, whilst net production
decreased 1.6% yoy to 9,088 BOPD. In particular, the
average daily operated and net oil production for Daan
and Moliqging for FY2014 were 18,854 BOPD and 8,863
BOPD, respectively (FY2013: 19,469 BOPD and 8,931
BOPD, respectively). Meanwhile, average daily net oil
production for our two divested projects Kongnan and
Miao 3 was approximately 945 BOPD and 225 BOPD,
respectively during the same period. Due primarily to
the sharp drop in global crude oil prices since 2H2014,
the realized Daqing oil price (in respect of our Jilin
oilfields) averaged approximately US$97.31/bbl for
FY2014, representing a decrease of 6.7% yoy, compared
to US$104.25/bbl for FY2013. The average realized
CINTA oil price (in respect of Kongnan oilfield) was
US$103.59/bbl, for the period January 2014 to the end
of November 2014 (i.e. the completion of the
divestment).
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(2)

A total of 151 gross wells were drilled and completed in
our China oil fields during FY2014 and the total net
Capex incurred was US$109 million. Compared to our
Revised Capex Guidance provided in August 2014
(US$122 million), the actual Capex for 2014 in our China
oilfields was reduced mainly due to our strategic
cancellation of some drilling and downhole completions
work, in view of declining oil prices. As we have no
contractual obligation to commit a minimum amount of
Capex or production level in any given period, we have
the flexibility to cut back capital spending or production
output whenever oil prices come down.

Direct Lifting costs in our Northeast China projects (i.e.
Daan, Moliging and Miao 3) increased by US$0.56/
barrel, or 5.4%, from US$10.39/barrel for 2013 to
US$10.95/barrel for 2014 as a result of higher staff
costs, power, fuel and downhole operation costs.
Including the Kongnan project, the direct lifting costs of
our four China oil projects for 2014 was US$11.83/
barrel. Direct Lifting costs for Daan and Moliging
increased by US$0.69/barrel, or 6.9%, from US$9.93/
barrel for 2013 to US$10.62/barrel for 2014.

The cash netback (Cash Netback is defined as Qil Price
realized minus costs of Direct Lifting, Distribution Costs,
and Taxes or Duties Other than Income Tax) for our
Northeast China projects decreased by US$4.8/barrel,
or 6.4%, from US$75.0/barrel for 2013 to US$70.2/barrel
for 2014. The decrease in cash netback was primarily
due to (1) the decrease of the average realized oil price,
although that is partially offset by the decrease of
special oil levy for the northeast China projects and (2)
the increase of direct lifting cost. After including
Kongnan project, the cash netback of our four China oil
projects for 2014 was US$69.6/barrel. The cash netback
of Daan and Moliging for 2014 was US$70.4/barrel.

Gas Projects (Shanxi Province: Linxing, Sanjiaobei)

We are pleased with the progress made by SGE on
testing, pilot production and gas sales, as well as on
preparation of China Reserve Reports (CRRs) and
Overall Development Plans (ODPs) in 2014.

(2)
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Overall, SGE’s well testing program in 2014 has been
successful, with average flow rate significantly
increased (by at least 1.5 times) in comparison to the
2013 testing program. In the Linxing Block, 28 flow tests
were performed (excluding the horizontal well TB-1H),
resulting in an average absolute open flow (AOF),
potential rate of 925 MSCF per day (approximately
26,205 cubic meters per day, AOF). In the Sanjiaobei
Block, where 10 flow tests were carried out, similar
improvement was recorded with an average AOF
potential rate of 380 MSCF per day (approximately
10,780 cubic meters per day, AOF). The first horizontal
well TB-1H and the new vertical well TB-23 in Linxing
Block have achieved particularly encouraging test
results. For TB-1H, flow testing resulted in a gas flow
rate of 4.93 million cubic feet (“"MMSCF")
(approximately 140,000 cubic meters per day) per day
with stable tubing head pressure of 2,008 psi (or 14MPa)
during 80 hours of testing in two stages. Positive results
were also attained at the vertical well TB-23, where a
gas flow rate of 2.0 MMSCF per day (approximately
56,600 cubic meters per day) was achieved. SGE's
second horizontal well, TB-2H also had encouraging
preliminary flow rates, with the test achieving a
sustained flow rate of 3.7 MMSCF per day
(approximately 106,000 cubic meters/day) at the
relatively stable flowing tubing head pressure of 1,494
psi (or 10Mpa). This is a particularly significant result
because the TB-2H well is located 25 km north of the
TB-1H well, and thereby demonstrates the great
potential of the extensive north central part of the
Linxing West Block. In short, the significantly improved
test results achieved in 2014 underscore the
tremendous potential of both the Linxing and
Sanjiaobei PSCs. The test improvements also highlight
SGE's strong and rapidly expanding technological and
operational know-how in gas well fracking and
completion operations for both horizontal and vertical
wells.
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In November 2014, SGE’s Qiaojiashan Gas Processing
Station (“QJS Station”) was officially put into pipeline
pilot production. A total of 16 vertical wells, including
14 wells in the Linxing West block and 2 wells in the
Sanjiaobei block have been connected to the QJS
Station. Currently, 7 wells are producing, with a
combined total pilot production rate of about 4 MMSCF
per day (or approximately 113 thousand cubic meters
per day). With respect to the QJS station’s capacity of 7
MMSCF per day (or 200,000 cubic meters per day), this
provides substantial room for the rapid production
ramp up expected early in FY2015, as more positive
flow rates are recorded and more wells are brought
onto production. SGE has recently signed two new gas
sales agreements: the first agreement was signed in
November 2014, based on a sales price for the pilot
production of US$9.50/MSCF (RMB2.04/cubic meter);
and the second agreement was signed in February
2015, based on a sales price for the pilot production of
US$9.60/mscf (RMB2.13/cubic meters). With SGE’s next
gas processing station in the Linxing West block (with
capacity of 7 million cubic feet per day) expected to be
put into pilot production in 2H2015, the total production
from both blocks is expected to increase significantly by
late 2015 when the project enters into a new phase of
pilot production development.

In FY2014, a total of 36 new wells were drilled by SGE,
bringing the total number of new wells drilled since the
Group’s acquisition of its 51% stake in SGE in July 2012
to 79 wells. For FY2014, the incurred Capex attributed to
the Group was about US$42 million. Our Revised Capex
Guidance provided in August 2014 was US$48 million,
and from this amount, approximately US$6 million of
Capex (or 12.5%) has been deferred into FY2015.

The CRR for Linxing East has received official approval
from the China authorities. Whilst the CRRs for Linxing
West and Sanjiaobei have been submitted to the
relevant China partners in 2H2014, the internal
preparation and compilation work for the Linxing East
and Sanjiaobei ODPs are also underway, as another
priority.
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SGE’s successful drilling and testing programs have led
to very significant increases in the project’s reserves.
According our independent consultant’'s review of
yearend 2014 reserves and resources for the Linxing
and Sanjiaobei projects, the net 1P Reserves, attributed
to the Group increased by 171% to 364.1 BCF (or
10.3BCM, and 2P Reserves increased by 54% to
466.7BCF(13.2BCM). Furthermore, the yearend 2014
reserves assessment indicates that, based on 2P Gas
Reserves, the Group’s net share NPV 10 is estimated at
about US$1.6 billion. In the current global low oil price
scenario, the price and demand for natural gas in China
has remained strong, and SGE currently sells gas at
US$9.50 to US$9.60 per MSCF. With huge net
contingent and prospective resources attributed to the
Group totaling more than 1,350 BCF (38.3BCM, Best
Estimate Prospective Resources + 2C Contingent
Resources) in an extensive area of about 3,000 square
kilometers, SGE still has significant growth potential.
We are very positive that our SGE project will
experience strong growth and profitability in the
foreseeable future.

Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Oil)

Average daily oil production for Emir-Qil increased by 20.4%
yoy from 4,320 BOPD in FY2013 to 5,201 BOPD in FY2014.
However, the average realized oil price for Emir-QOil was
US$62.82/barrel for FY2014, representing a drop of 21.1%
yoy, compared to US$79.64/barrel for FY2013. The average
realized export oil price (after deducting export sales discount
of US$20.98/barrel) and domestic oil price were US$69.72/
barrel and US$40.15/barrel respectively, compared to
US$87.80/barrel (export) and US$41.57/barrel (domestic)
realized for FY2013. The drop in average realized oil price
was mainly due to: 1) lower export oil price particularly since
2H2014; and 2) decrease in export:domestic sales mix from
82:18 for FY2013 to 76:24 during FY2014.

As of December 31, 2014, Emir-Qil operated a total of 45
wells, of which 22 wells were producing and 16 wells were
shut-in. During FY2014, 6 new wells were drilled by Emir-Qil,
including 4 development wells and 2 exploration wells. Also,
1 side-track of an existing well was completed. As of yearend
FY2014, 3 new wells and 1 side-track well had been spudded
and were on schedule to complete in FY2015.
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Although the groundbreaking for construction of the new
CPF took place in November 2014, the Group has recently
decided to postpone the target date of completion for the
CPF from 1H2015 (original target date) to 2016, in light of
current global oil price volatility. Total Capex for Emir-Qil
incurred in FY2014 amounted to about US$54 million. With
respect to the Revised Capex Guidance provided in August
2014 of US$125 million, the reduction of Emir's actual Capex
was mainly related to our strategic deferral of construction
work on the CPF and deferral of completion of 3 wells into
FY2015.

In January 2015, Emir-Oil and the Kazakhstan Ministry of
Energy (formerly known as Ministry of Oil and Gas) executed
an agreement to extend the expiration period of the Aksaz-
Dolinnoe-Emir-Kariman (“ADEK”) Exploration Contract by 2
years to January 9, 2017. Based on incremental reserves and
resources attributable to prior exploration work within the
ADEK area, the Group is excited about the upside potential
provided by this exploration contract extension.

In order to enhance profit margins, particularly in light of the
current low oil price environment, Emir-Oil executed a new
sales agreement with our Kazakhstan export oil marketing
company, Euro-Asian Oil SA (formerly known as “Titan Oil"”)
in February 2015 to change the transportation route for our
export oil, in order to reduce the transport cost. The new
export route goes from Emir-Qil’s oilfield to Aktau Port
(Kazakhstan), across the Caspian Sea via vessel to
Makhachkala Port (Russia), and then further via onshore oil
pipeline reaches Novorossiysk Port (Russia), which is the
final destination. The new transportation route will increase
the cash netback for the export oil by approximately US$2 to
US$3/barrel, after taking account for the differential between
Brent and the new sales price which is based on the
benchmark Urals (RCMB) Qil Price.

The direct lifting cost for Emir-Qil decreased by US$0.33/
barrel, or 6.3%, from US$5.18/barrel for 2013 to US$4.85/
barrel for 2014. The decrease in lifting cost was primarily due
to the ramp up of production.

The cash netback for the domestic sales oil of Emir-Oil was
about flat at US$31.81/barrel comparing with 2013. The cash
netback for the export sales oil of Emir-Oil decreased by
US$14.89/barrel, or 34.3%, from US$43.42/barrel for 2013 to
US$28.52/barrel for 2014. The decrease in cash netback for
export sales oil was primarily due to the decrease of the
average export realized oil price, alongside with the global
oil price decline in 2H2014.
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Due the above factors, the weighted average cash netback
for Emir-Qil decreased by US$12.23/barrel, or 29.6%, from
US$41.37/barrel for 2013 to US$29.14/barrel for 2014.

USA Operations (Condor)

There were no drilling activities during 2014 in our US
business. The Group’s subsidiary, Condor Energy
Technology LLC, operates 5 horizontal wells in the Niobrara
project. For 2014, the average daily operated oil and gas
production was 129 BOPD and 277 MSCF/day, net oil and gas
production was 92 BOPD and 209MSCF/day, respectively.
Average realized oil and gas price was US$83.11/barrel and
US$6.44/MSCF, respectively.

Other Segment

In November 2014, the Group participated in a co-investment
opportunity with CCGRF for a minority interest in CIOC. Total
consideration paid by the Group for this investment is
approximately US$7.0 million. CIOC is a Calgary (Canada)
headquartered private oil and gas producer. With
approximately 250,000 net acres, CIOC's core asset is located
in the Alberta Deep Basin where it is developing
unconventional multi-zone, oil and liquids-rich gas plays.
CCGRF is a private equity fund focused in the natural
resources sector with more than US$1 billion of
commitments under management. The Group’s strategic
alliance with CCGRF and co-investment in CIOC has
broadened our connection with global top-tier oil and gas
specialized operators and investors and set the stage to
pursue our future global expansion strategies.

Review of Reserves and Resources

Below are the highlights of the oil and gas reserves and resources
review results for the Group at yearend 2014:

1.

Based on the year-end 2014 reserves estimates reviewed by
the independent consultants, NPV 10 of the Group’s Net 2P
oil and gas reserves is approximately US$4.0 billion, which
represents a 14.3% increase over the NPV 10 of US$3.5
billion reported at yearend 2013.

Comparing with year-end 2013, the Group’s total net 1P oil
and gas reserves as of yearend 2014 increased significantly
by 40.3% to 116.8 million BOE, while total net 2P oil and gas
reserves increased 13.6% to 218.7 million BOE, and total net
3P oil and gas reserves were about flat at 289.8 million BOE.
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The Group’s 2P and 3P net reserves still comprise mainly oil,
but gas has taken over as the majority in terms of 1P
reserves. At yearend 2014, on a BOE basis, our reserves were
42%, 57% and 59% oil for 1P, 2P and 3P, respectively. The
strong growth in gas reserves from the successful drilling
campaign at our SGE properties in China’s Ordos Basin has
significantly increased the gas component of our reserves.
Compared to yearend 2013, on a BOE basis, the gas portion
of the Group's total net reserves has increased for 1P, 2P and
3P by 24%, 9% and 4%, respectively. Despite the current
global low oil price environment, demand and sales price for
natural gas remains high in China. The Group is very pleased
with the strong growth of the China gas component in our
total net reserves.

The Group’s net 1P, 2P and 3P gas reserves at yearend 2014
were 408.3 BCF (11.6BCM, “BCM*” where 1 cubic meter =
35.314 cubic feet), 563.9 BCF (16.0 BCM) and 711.8 BCF (20.2
BCM), respectively, which correspond to 68.0 million BOE,
94.0 million BOE and 118.6 million BOE, respectively. The
Group net gas reserves increased by 234.0 BCF (6.6 BCM),
165.2 BCF (4.7 BCM) and 71.8 BCF (2.0 BCM), or by 134%,
41% and 11% for 1P, 2P and 3P, respectively. The majority of
the increases are attributable to the increases of 230.1 BCF
(6.5 BCM), 164.1 BCF (4.6 BCM) and 80.5 BCF (2.3 BCM) for
1P, 2P and 3P net gas reserves, respectively in our SGE
Ordos Basin properties.

The comparison of 2013 and 2014 yearend crude oil reserves
is adjusted for the divestment of the PCR and Miao Three
during 2H2014. When PCR and Miao Three reserves are
included in year end 2013 total reserves, the Group net 1P oil
reserves as of year end 2014 decreased 10% to 48.7 million
barrels, while 2P net oil reserves decreased by 1% to 124.7
million barrels and 3P net oil reserves decreased by 7% to
171.2 million barrels respectively. When PCR and Miao Three
reserves are excluded from the year end 2013 total reserves,
the Group’s year end 2014 1P net oil reserves decreased only
by 5%, mainly due to production, while 2P net oil reserves
increased by 4%.
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Following is our preliminary guidance for 2015, although we will
closely monitor the situation and we may revise our work program
as warranted in a timely fashion, based on changes in oil prices.
We believe it is very important to maintain a high degree of

flexibility in order to ensure the stability and profitability of our
business in this current volatile oil price environment.
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Comments
R

Including completion work for 1
exploration well, 2 development
wells, all spudded in 2014; Capex
for CPF is US$19 mm
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue is generated from sales of oil and gas
products and rendering of services.

The Group’s revenue from sales of oil and gas decreased by
RMB283.1 million, or 8.7%, from RMB3,253.1 million for 2013 to
RMB2,970.0 million for 2014. This decrease was primarily due to
the decrease of average realized oil price, from US$97.06/barrel of
year 2013 to US$86.15/barrel in 2014. Our total net sales volume of
crude oil was 5.58 million barrels for 2014, compared to 5.38
million barrels for 2013.

The Group’s revenue from rendering of services is RMB12.9
million for 2014.
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China

Our China oil fields realized revenue from oil sales of
RMB2,204.1 million in 2014, decreased from RMB2,440.9
million for 2013. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in
realized oil price and sales volumes. Our China total net sales
volume was 3.66 million barrels for 2014, compared to 3.77
million barrels for 2013, the average realized oil price was
US$97.89/barrel for 2014, compared to US$104.35/barrel for
2013.

Kazakhstan

In 2014, Emir-Qil realized revenue of RMB746.3 million. In
2013, revenue contributed by Emir-Oil was RMB782.6 million.

(a) Crude oil sales

In 2014, Emir-Qil realized revenue from crude oil sales
of RMB732.7 million. Emir-Oil exported 76.4% of its
sales volume of oil and realized Brent prices (before
transportation and sales commission) for such export
sales. The average realized oil price comprising export
and domestic sales was US$63.34/barrel for 2014. The
average realized oil price for 2014 was US$70.63/barrel
from export sales (after transportation and marketing
commissions of US$20.98/barrel) and US$39.68/barrel
from domestic sales. Emir-Qil’s total oil sales volume
was 1,882,351 barrels, comprising 1,438,962 barrels
from export sales and 443,389 barrels from domestic
sales. Revenue from export sales of oil accounted for
85.2% of Emir-Qil’s total oil revenue.
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During 2013, Emir-Qil realized revenue from oil sales of
RMB768.9 million. Emir-Oil exported 82.3% of its sales
volume of oil and realized Brent prices for these sales.
The average realized oil price (before transportation
and marketing commissions) comprising export and
domestic sales was US$79.64/barrel. The average
realized oil price was US$87.80/barrel from export sales
(after transportation and marketing commissions of
US$20.76/barrel) and US$41.57/barrel from domestic
sales. Emir-Oil’s oil sales volume was 1,559,808 barrels
for 2013, comprising of 1,284,287 barrels from export
sales and 275,520 barrels from domestic sales. Revenue
from export sales of oil accounted for 90.8% of Emir-
Oil’s total oil revenue.

(b) Gas sales

In 2014, Emir-0il realized revenue from gas sales of
RMB13.6 million with average realized gas price of
US$1.14 per Mscf and total gas sales volume of
1,954,375 Mscf, whilst revenue realized from gas sales
in 2013 was RMB13.8 million with average realized gas
price of US$1.34 per Mscf and total gas sales volume
1,661,583 Mscf.

Operating expenses

The Group’s operating expenses decreased by RMB177.5 million,
or 7.4%, from RMB2,386.9 million for 2013 to RMB2,209.4 million
for 2014, primarily due to the inclusion RMB259.4 million “Other
Gains” from disposal of subsidiaries, partially offset by assets
impairment loss, and increase in general and administrative
expense.

° Depreciation, depletion and amortization. The Group’s
depreciation, depletion and amortization increased by
RMB23.4 million, or 2.6%, from RMB905.0 million for 2013 to
RMB928.4 million for 2014. The increase in depreciation,
depletion and amortization was mainly due to slightly higher
unit of production from of China oil and gas properties.
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Taxes other than income taxes. The Group’s taxes other than
income taxes decreased by RMB45.5 million, or 6.1%, from
RMB740.6 million for 2013 to RMB695.1 million for 2014. The
following table summarizes taxes other than income taxes
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013:

PRC ]
Special oil levy A AR R g

Urban construction tax T A B S B W n 2
and education surtax
Others HAthy
Kazakhstan I B B M
Rent export tax A4 OBl
Mineral extraction tax T4 B $R A
Export duty BB
Property tax PR
USA E
Withholding tax A A
Severance tax B B AL
Corporate AT
Withholding tax AL

The decrease in taxes other than income taxes for our China
operations was mainly due to lower crude oil production and
sales volume and decrease in average realized oil price,
which resulted in lower unit special oil levy (“Special Oil
Levy”). The Special Qil Levy is calculated according to five
progressive levels and valorem rates on the excess amounts
of the realized crude oil price; it is calculated on a monthly
basis and paid on a quarterly basis. The Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China (“MOF”) recently issued a
notice regarding the uplift of the threshold of the special oil
levy (Cai Shui [2014] No.115) (“Notice”) from US$55 to
US$65 per barrel, with effect from January 1, 2015. Details
are as follows:
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Year ended December 31,
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2014 2013
SEomE CF =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
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328,878 399,323
12,110 13,473

444 398
341,432 413,194
176,536 185,696
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87,328 56,973
23,508 31,452
331,960 319,450
930 386

534 -

20,236 7,598
695,092 740,628
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Crude oil prices

(US$/barrel)

JE i E A% (3570, 74)

65-70 (inclusive) 65-70 (& 70)
70-75 (inclusive) 70-75 (& 75)
75-80 (inclusive) 75-80 (% 80)
80-85 (inclusive) 80-85 (& 85)
Over 85 B 85

The decrease in Special Qil Levy in China operation was partially
offset by the increases in Export Duty of our Kazakhstan operation,
which were mainly caused by export duty increased from US$60
per metric ton to US$80 per metric ton, with effect from March
2014.

Set out below are the various taxes that our Kazakhstan operation
being subject to:

Rent export tax

Rent export tax is payable on export oil and is calculated based on
world prices for crude oil. Rent Export Tax rate depends on export
price for crude oil and can be 0% if export price is less than US$40/
barrel or up to 32% if export price is higher than US$190/barrel.

Mineral extraction tax (“MET")

MET is payable at a rate of 5% for export oil and 2.5% for domestic
oil. MET for export oil is calculated at 5% based on barrels of oil
produced, less barrels of domestic oil and barrels of internally
consumed oil, multiplied by average world oil price/barrel. MET
for domestic oil is calculated at 2.5% based on barrels of domestic
oil multiplied by production cost/barrel multiplied by 120%.

Export duty

Before April 14, 2013, export duty is payable on export oil and
calculated as US$40 per metric ton or US$5.35/barrel multiplied by
volume of export oil sales. From April 14, 2013, this duty increased
to US$60 per metric ton. From March 12, 2014, this duty was
increased to US$80 per metric ton.

Property tax
Property tax is payable on oil and gas assets which have been

granted a production license at a rate of 1.5% based on average
balance of oil and gas properties.
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Corporate

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on interest
charged on intercompany loans.

o Employee compensation costs. The Group’s employee
compensation costs decreased by RMB12.2million, or 5.4%,
from RMB227.8 million for 2013 to RMB215.6 million for
2014. The drop in employee compensation costs was
primarily due to decrease in performance bonus.

° Purchases, services and other expenses. Our purchases,
services and other expenses decreased by RMB32.9 million,
or 8.9%, from RMB370.2 million for 2013 to RMB337.3million
for 2014. The decrease in purchase, service and other
expenses was primarily due to (i) less work over and
fracturing of wells for Emir-Qil ; (ii) less amount was paid or
settled with suppliers in Kazakhstan upon Tenge's
devaluation in early 2014; (iii) only ten months of Miao
Three’s purchases, services and other expenses being
included before the completion of its disposal.

o Geological and geophysical expenses. The Group adopts
“successful method” accounting and under this method,
exploration costs including geological and geophysical
expenses (other than direct exploration wells drilling costs)
are charged to profit and loss account in the period of
incurrence. During 2014, the Group incurred geological and
geophysical expenses in of about RMB20.0 million, compared
to RMB4.7 million of 2013.

o Distribution expenses. The Group’s distribution expenses
increased by RMB5.3 million, or 16.9%, from RMB31.3 million
for 2013 to RMB36.6 million for 2014. The increase in such
pipeline expenses was due to the increase in sales volume of
our Kazakhstan operation in 2014.

o General and administrative expenses. The Group’s general
and administrative expenses increased by RMB21.2 million,
or 20.7% from RMB102.5 million for 2013 to RMB 123.7
million for 2014. The increase was primarily due to: (i) Emir-
QOil incurred more education services, training, and donation
expenses; and (ii) more business travel expenses incurred at
corporate level.

° Impairment charges. Thre Group recognized an impairment
charge amounting to RMB29.3 million and RMB125.3 million
on the long-live assets (including mineral extractions rights)
relating to a block in the PRC and the working interest in the
USA, respectively, to reduce their carrying value to the
respective estimated recoverable amount calculated based
on value-in-use.

A

AT ARSIt 2 B A8 3R] S R R A AL
RSB -

B LRI A - A5 M B T3 a4
B —ZAEEMNAR¥2.2788 T %
e N R ¥1,220 #50805.4% & —F—1Y
R NR M 2.156 (%00 o B T A
R 3 2 R R S D o

o [RUE IREERKHAMEH o AR
W MRS R A I th & — = FER
N R HE3.702 65 0 FEAR A R 3,290 50
58.9% & & — U4 N R ¥3.373
I o PRI > MR S Hofh 2 9 e &=
A - ()Emir-Oil 1916 H 0 JBE 2L T AR
B ()RR F— A B R
A A TR s LHE R 1Y AT e T R
e (iii) TERR = g B 2 /i HadsE T
B A B PR MREs e HoAl 2 A -

o B RANERYFE LT o AL R AN L
TR VR A BB AT B AR A B 4
HiEE R wk ) 38 A (I S 2 B4 0 B
TSGR AR) P AR SR E o B — 4R
BE > 7 4R 1 A 0 MU R St Bk ) BE 2
#HNRH2,000 B0 » —F— =R
ANRH470 € -

o  HEZHM  AEFBMNEELENH _F
— AR N R 3,130 B T i A R
W 530 15 T 20 16.9% & — & — U 4E FF 1Y
N B 3,660 &5 T o £ 2 A (1) 38 i 13- 22
MR E— ARG E LTSRN
0 | A A T B

. FHAH e REHNEMERHH - F
— AR N R 1.025 6 o A R
#2,120 ¥ T 80 20.7% & & — U 4F i
19 1.237 4% JC o & B2 A 00 48 s 32 2
R ()Emir-OilE 4L T L T R
KERNRE I R 5 K (i) A F B E £ 1
FhE T -

o AR o ALEEAE B — W K
1 ZEHE 22 1 = 1 (95 0 [ ) 25
HE) 43 Pl % A5 B8k (B 48 2 A R 2,930 # ot
RN R ¥E1.253 800 » AR E AR E
AFE L AE T8 (7 5 FE Rl ml (o] %8 -



° Other (losses)/income. The Group incurred “other income”
of RMB302.0 million for 2014, compared to other loss of
RMB4.6 million for 2013. Other income for the current year
includes mainly (i) RMB52.2 million gains from disposal of
Miao Three and RMB207.2 million from disposal of PCR; (ii)
realized gain of RMB19.6 million from oil hedge contracts for
our 2014 production; (iii) royalty income received by PCR for
its interest in the Zhou 13 Bock in Daging of RMB8.1 million;
and (iv) non-cash revaluation gain of RMB3.6 million for this
interest. Other losses for 2013 represented (i) a non-cash,
unrealized loss of RMB7.63 million from changes in fair value
of oil hedge options for our 2014 production; (ii) an indemnity
provision for Emir-oil’s traffic accident of RMB23.1 million,
which is offset by (iii) royalty income received by PCR for its
interest in the Zhou 13 Bock in Daging of RMB5.5 million and
(iv) consulting fee income of RMB14.1 million.

Profit from operations

The Group’s profit from operations decreased by RMB95.7 million,
or 11.0%, from RMB869.2 million for 2013 to RMB773.5 million for
2014. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in realized
oil price and impairment loss for Condor and Moliging oil & gas
properties, which is partially offset by the increase in sales volume
and gains from disposal of Miao Three and PCR.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group’s finance income increased by RMB12.1 million, or
189.1%, from RMB6.4 million for 2013 to RMB18.5 million for 2014.
This increase was primarily due to our cash and cash equivalent
balance as at 2014 increased significantly.

Finance cost increased by RMB147.8 million, or 42.0%, from
RMB352.0 million for 2013 to RMB499.8 million for 2014. This
increase was primarily due to: (i) RMB120.2 million call premium
for the early redemption of the 2016 Notes; (ii) RMB34.7 million
unamortized expenses of the 2016 Notes charged to finance cost
as a result of redemption.
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Share of loss of joint ventures

The Group holds a 51% interest in SGE. This investment was
accounted for as joint ventures by the Group and our share of loss
of SGE decreased from RMB68.8 million in 2013 to RMB55.4
million in 2014. This is mainly due to the decrease in loss of our
investment in SGE, as a result of decreases in geological,
geophysical and other exploration expenses (mainly seismic
expenditures). These expenses are accounted for under IFRS
“successful method” by the Group and being charged to profit
and loss account in the period of incurrence (note that SGE adopts
IFRS “full cost method”, under which similar exploration expenses
are capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets and will be
transferred to oil and gas properties, and will ultimately
depreciated on the unit-of-production basis driving the production
phase of the project in future).

Profit before income tax

The Group’s profit before income tax decreased by RMB218.2
million, or 48.0%, from RMB454.9 million for 2013 to RMB236.7
million for 2014. This decrease was primarily due to the
cumulative effects of the above factors.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense for 2014 was RMB214.2 million,
increasing RMB39.1 million compared to the income tax expense
of RMB175.1 million for 2013. The increase of income tax expense
was mainly due to certain expenses were not deductible for tax
purposes and no deferred income tax asset was recognized for
certain tax losses and temporary differences. In addition, less
income tax expense in 2013 was due to deferred tax in Kazakhstan
has been re-measured in 2013 to reflect the changes in excess
profit tax rate of Kazakhstan will be applied in the future, which is
mainly caused by changes in management forecast of future
capital expenditures and other tax rates. There is no such re-
measurement occurring in 2014. The weighted average effective
tax rate for 2014 is 90%, compared to 38% in 2013. The increase in
effective tax rate is mainly due to non-deductible one-off finance
expense related to the 2016 Notes, share of loss of SGE,
impairment loss of Condor, and other expenses incurred by non-
operating group companies of the Group.

Net profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, our net profit for the year decreased

by RMB257.2 million, or 91.9%, from RMB279.8 million for 2013 to
RMB22.6 million for 2014.
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to net
profit for the year, as our most directly comparable financial
performance calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS.
EBITDA refers to earnings before finance income, finance costs,
income tax and depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted
EBITDA refers to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash items such
as withholding tax on interest accrued for intercompany loans,
share-based compensation expense, realized and unrealized loss/
(gain) on the oil hedge options, loss on impairment of assets, and
any other non-recurring items such as acquisition expenses, fair
value changes of options granted, and geological and geophysical
expenses and income/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary.

The Group’s adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group’s recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cashflow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted
EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or construed as
alternatives to profit from operations or any other measure of
performance or as an indicator of our operating performance or
profitability. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for
corporate tax, finance income, finance costs and other non-
operating cash expenses. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not
consider any functional or legal requirements of the business that
may require us to conserve and allocate funds for any purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA to net profit for the years ended December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013:

T % #5) 5 EBITDA K £ i # EBITDA A # &
SR PUEF A= R SR
A=+ —H IR 2 55 A SR -

Year Ended December 31,
gE+_HA=1+—HIL4EE

2014 2013
SEOWE E o
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR ARWTT

Net profit for the year AN | 22,549 279,784
Income tax expenses JI A5 BLBH L 214,163 175,083
Finance income WA (18,491) (6,431)
Finance cost BB 499,818 351,984
Depreciation, depletion and amortization e > PrEe M sy 928,447 905,032
EBITDA EBITDA 1,646,486 1,705,452
Share-based compensation expenses Ji 453 1 4 B =2 12,315 9,584
Impairment charges B R R 154,570 -
(Gain)/Loss on oil hedge options ARE B (Jzs) R (19,564) 7,626
Geological and geophysical expense BT 5 b 3k ) 3L B 52

— Emir — Emir 20,047 4,721

— Share of SGE — R TR iR 19,842 44.339
Emir accident indemnity Emir 25 i (5 = 23,055
Withholding tax arised N ) [ R RS A A AR A

from intercompany loan 21,166 7,984
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B E T A A S (259,389) -
Adjusted EBITDA & EBITDA 1,595,473 1,802,761

The Group’s EBITDA decreased by approximately RMB59.0
million, or 3.5%, from approximately RMB1,705.5 million for 2013
to approximately RMB1,646.5 million for 2014. The decrease in
EBITDA was also primarily due to the decrease in realized oil price,
and assets impairment loss for Condor and Moliging oil & gas
properties, which is partially offset by the gains from disposal of
subsidiaries.

The Group’s adjusted EBITDA decreased by approximately
RMB207.3 million, or 11.5%, from approximately RMB1,802.8
million for 2013 to approximately RMB1,595.5 million for 2014.
The decrease in adjusted EBITDA was also primarily due to the
decrease in realized oil price.
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The Group’s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by operating segment

are set out below;

Net profit for the year

Income tax expenses

Finance income

Finance cost

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

EBITDA

Share-based compensation expenses

Impairment charges

Gain on oil hedge options

Geological and geophysical expense
— Emir
— Share of SGE

Withholding tax arised from
intercompany loan

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries

Adjusted EBITDA

A T 5 A
PREGL B
LTI ON

Epi gl

rt » Prke R

EBITDA

FRe A B 45 B 52
B IR
AINE L
HOE T R B

— Emir

= FEA R R A A 2

yasiliin e Eigilhst
i A et
BT ARG

AL EBITDA
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Year Ended December 31, 2014
BE-Z-NEF A=+ —HILEE

China Kazakhstan USA Others
MR

i IR e | HAt sy
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFE AR¥TL ARWTT AR¥Tx
721,702 103,149 (149,422) (652,880)
169,734 44,260 - 169
(453) (1,629) (3,792) (12,617)
20,347 (32,704) 1,771 510,404
806,894 97,527 23,548 478
1,718,224 210,603 (127,895) (154,446)
13,428 752 - (1,865)
29,282 - 125,288 -

= = = (19,564)

- 20,047 - -

- - - 19,842

- - 930 20,236
(259,389) = = =
1,501,545 231,402 (1,677) (135,797

Total

A
RMB’000
NRWTF 78

22,549
214,163
(18,491)
499,818
928,447

1,646,486

12,315
154,570
(19,564)

20,047
19,842

21,166
(259,389)

1,595,473
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China
Hi
RMB'000
AR¥ET T
Net profit for the year A R i 630,722
Income tax expenses JT BB 3 195,667
Finance income BT (360)
Finance cost Jipr i 15,952
Depreciation, depletion and Ires > e ey
amortization 781,723
EBITDA EBITDA 1,623,704
Share-based compensation expenses B4 482 B S 5,901
Loss on oil hedge options e R R -
Geological and geophysical expense B R bRk 2B
— Emir — Emir -
— Share of SGE — T PRI 2 -
Emir accident indemnity Emir S iU E -
Withholding tax arised from Oy R B
intercompany loan R AR -
Adjusted EBITDA 4% EBITDA 1,629,605
Overview

Year Ended December 31, 2013
BEZ-=F+A=+—HIL&E

Kazakhstan USA Others Total
A

W 8 e A e Hoth Ll
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT  ARWFL ARWFL ARWTF
168,875 (9,753) (510,060) 279,784
(20,584) - - 175,083
(2,380) (3,626) (65) (6,431)

221 953 334,858 351,984
101,868 21,229 212 905,032
248,000 8,803 (175,055) 1,705,452
(483) - 4,166 9,584

- - 7,626 7,626

4,668 53 - 4,721

- - 44,339 44,339

23,055 - - 23,055

- 386 7,598 7,984

275,240 9,242 (111,326) 1,802,761

LA

The Group’s primary sources of cash during 2014 were cash flow
from operating activities and cash flow from financing activities.

In 2014, we had net cash generated from operating activities of
RMB1,180.4 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB1,311.1 million, net cash generated from financing activities
of RMB541.9 million, an exchange losses on cash and cash
equivalent of RMB3.4 million, and a net increase in cash and cash
equivalent of RMB414.3 million.
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Cash generated from operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB1,180.4
million in the year ended December 31, 2014. In the year ended
December 31, 2014, our net cash generated in operating activities
included profit before income tax of RMB236.7 million adjusted
for, depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB928.4 million,
net interest expenses of RMB514.1 million, employee share option
of RMB12.3 million, share of loss from investments in joint
ventures of RMB55.4 million, offset by gains on disposal of
subsidiaries of RMB259.4 million, exchange gain of RMB32.8
million, and gains on changes of fair value of derivative financial
instruments of RMB11.3 million, gains on oil hedge options of
RMB19.6 million. The cash movements from changes in working
capital which included decrease in trade and other payables of
RMB140.5 million, an decrease in trade and other receivables of
RMB226.2 million and an decrease in inventories of RMB2.5
million, and interest paid of RMB326.0 million and income tax paid
of RMB155.3 million.

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB1,209.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2013. In the year ended
December 31, 2013, our net cash generated in operating activities
included profit before income tax of RMB454.9 million adjusted
for, depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB905.0 million,
net interest expenses of RMB394.8 million, employee share option
of RMB26.5 million, share of loss from investments in joint
ventures of RMB68.8 million, offset by exchange gain of RMB50.3
million. The cash movements from changes in working capital
which included decrease in trade and other payables of RMB150.2
million, an decrease in trade and other receivables of RMB258.8
million and an decrease in inventories of RMB2.7 million, and
interest paid of RMB295.9 million and income tax paid of
RMB267.6 million.

Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2014 amounted to RMB1,311.1 million, as a result of purchases
of property, plant and equipment of RMB1,314.0 million, capital
contribution to investments accounted for using the equity method
of RMB269.4 million, loans to investments accounted for using
equity method of RMB163.9 million, increase in restricted cash of
RMB103.4 million, purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
of RMB72.0 million, offset by proceeds from disposal of interest in
subsidiaries net of disposal expenses, cash and cash equivalent
balance as at disposal date of RMB532.5 million, deposit received
in relation to disposal of subsidiary of RMB46.4 million, proceeds
from contingent consideration receivable of RMB8.1 million and
interest received of RMB14.4 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2013 amounted to RMB1,585.0 million, as a result of purchases
of property, plant and equipment of RMB1,408.9 million, capital
contribution to and acquisition of investments accounted for using
the equity method of RMB180.8 million, offset by a decrease in
restricted cash of RMB1.8 million, and interest received of RMB2.9
million.

Cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2014 amounted to RMB541.9 million primarily due
to: (i) proceeds from the issue of the 2019 Notes of RMB2,986.2
million in April 2014, (ii) proceeds from bank borrowings of
RMB411.5 million, comprising one RMB55 million and two RMB5
million short-term working capital loan from China Construction
Bank (“CCB”), US$35 million from Deutsche Bank (“DB"”), and
US$20 million from Bank of Communication (“BCM”), and (iii)
dividends on repurchased shares held in trust of RMB1.0 million,
offset by: (i) 2013 final cash dividend of RMB61.0 million paid in
June 2014, (ii) RMB2,465.6 million used for repayment of the 2016
Notes in May 2014 and the repayment of RMB125 million short-
term and RMB1.5 million long-term working capital loan from
CCB, (iii) RMB120.2 million used for the payment of premium
related to the repayments of the 2016 Notes, (iv) RMB10.4 million
used for the payment for settlement of share options, (v) RMB15.0
million used for the payment of loan arrangement fees and other
fees, (vi) settlement of options to consultants for investments in
subsidiaries of RMB44.6 million and (vii) RMB13.6 million payment
for buyback of shares and cancellation.

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2013 amounted to RMB215.1 million primarily due
to: (i) proceeds from bank borrowings of RMB120.0 million
comprising two RMB60 million short-term working capital loan
from CCB, (ii) proceeds from issue of senior note payable, net of
issuance costs of RMB1,229.2 million, (iii) dividends on
repurchased shares held in trust of RMB2.0 million, (iv) proceeds
from disposal of a joint venture of RMB16.7 million, proceeds from
partial disposal of interest in subsidiary of RMB44.5 million, offset
by: (i) 2012 final dividend paid of RMB124.4 million, (ii)
repayments of RMB998.6 million comprising repayment a US$80
million loan and US$60 million loan from Minsheng and two
RMB60 million short-term working capital loan from CCB, (iii)
RMB25.3 million used for the payment of loan arrangement fees
and (iv) payment for share purchased under Share Award Scheme
of RMB50.2 million.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased slightly from 47.7% as
at December 31, 2013 to 51.8% as at December 31, 2014,
principally due to the newly issued 2019 Notes.
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Our Total Borrowings to EBITDA ratio, which is defined as total
borrowings divided by EBITDA increased from 2.14 as at
December 31, 2013 to 2.74 as at December 31, 2014.

Our Total Borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined
as total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA increased from
2.02 as at December 31, 2013 to 2.83 as at December 31, 2014.

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
prices and exchange rates.

Oil price risk

Our realized oil prices are determined by reference to oil prices in
the international market, changes in international oil prices will
have a significant impact on us. Unstable and high volatility of
international oil prices may have a significant impact on our
revenue and profit.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US
dollars, while production and other expenses in China are incurred
in RMB. The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is
regulated by the PRC government. Limitations on foreign
exchange transactions imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or
historical exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Kazakhstan subsidiary is in US
dollars and all export sales are in US dollars. The transactions of
the Kazakhstan subsidiary which are denominated in the
Kazakhstan Tenge are exposed to fluctuations in the US dollars
and Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rate. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations or the fluctuations between the US dollar and
Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rates, and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

As at December 31, 2014, the Group had 2,131 employees, with
1,783 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong), 344 based in
Kazakhstan and 4 based in USA.
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We have adopted a market-oriented employment system and a
competitive remuneration scheme. The remuneration scheme and
employment system are periodically reviewed. Apart from pension
funds and in-house training programs, performance bonuses and
share options may be awarded to employees according to
assessment of individual contribution.

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with Sinopec for
exploration and development of Luojiayi 64 block at Shengli
oilfield in Shandong Province, which was suspended since the end
of 2004. In April 2005, MIE requested an extension from Sinopec
to restart the project. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter
from Sinopec denying the request to restart the project and
seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that the extension
period of the trial-development phase had expired and MIE had
not met its investment commitment under the PSC. The Company
believes its investment in the project at Shengli oilfield had met
the required commitment amount under the PSC. The PSC with
Sinopec has not been formally terminated and the dispute has not
entered any judicial proceedings. As advised by the external legal
counsel of the Company, the probability of claim from Sinopec for
unfulfilled investment commitment, if any, in relation to the pilot-
development phase is remote as the statute of limitations has run
out.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on November 27,
2010 (the “Scheme”), share options to certain employees of the
Company, entitling the option holders to subscribe for an
aggregate of 112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
US$0.001 each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per share (“2011
Grant”). The share options for an aggregate of 5,987,200 shares
subsequently lapsed pursuant to the terms of the Scheme and the
relevant option agreements as at December 31, 2014.

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options has
been higher than the prevailing market price of the shares. As a
result, the options could no longer serve as an effective incentive.
In view of this, the Company offered these option holders a cash
consideration of HK$0.20 per share to cancel vested options under
the 2011 Grant, subject to the option holders consenting to such
cancellation. As a result, options in respect of 65,358,066 shares
were cancelled on March 21, 2014.
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Grant of New Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options pursuant
to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants comprising certain
directors, substantial shareholders and employees of the Company
to subscribe for an aggregate of 97,280,000 shares. These options
have an exercise price of HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years
from the grant date, and will vest over the next three or four years.
The share options for an aggregate of 4,008,379 shares
subsequently lapsed pursuant to the terms of the Scheme and the
relevant option agreements as at December 31, 2014.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2014 (2013: HK$77,572,000).

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2014 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group.
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To the shareholders of MIE Holdings Corporation
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MIE
Holdings Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 235, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at December 31, 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 19, 2015
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Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Restricted cash

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Trade receivables

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

i

T By
REEE - TR A
IFE &
e IR AN IRIHE

HEAE P i
ARk A

FEARER - PR MR B GKR

2 PR il B

i By B
&

A2 o B (AT EL SRR 7T A

IR A 19 B R

FAALEK - PR MOH AR REWGR

JE W Mk
52 PR Al B
Bl MBS EY

7 AR

L

i B Y A 2 ) i A O 4

JEeA

FoAbfin

ERET €T
— HEIRA I B A
— HAth

I 42 il A e 4

HiE 25 487

As at December 31,

e

2014 2013

e L
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wik ARWTFE  ARWT
6 6,629,673 7,160,160
7 494,552 544,469
8(b) 499,284 273,348
21 20,538 40,783
11 75,541 50,422
12 210,389 34,941
16 12,955 11,884
7,942,932 8,116,007
14 41,046 44,835
15 = 7,791
12 622,013 549,188
13 158,957 273,125
16 139,411 37,071
17 689,208 274,529
1,650,635 1,186,539
9,593,567 9,302,546
18 842,520 856,134
20 153,864 241,766
33 = 60,969
2,560,637 2,502,138
3,557,021 3,661,007
7,490 43,423
3564511 3,704,430
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As at December 31,

Bt+=H=+—H
2014 2013
SECWE %
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Liabilities §=Li
Non-current liabilities B/ =K
Borrowings i 24 4,174,878 3,589,503
Deferred income tax liabilities IR B BT 1B A 21 312,971 261,472
Trade and notes payable JREASH R K M JREASH 22 8 22 54,739 46,113
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities ¥4 ~ FE4E & HoAth & & 23 141,350 145,424
4,683,938 4,042,512
Current liabilities B A
Trade and notes payable B AST R 3 % R A+ R 4 22 654,373 1,022,424
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities ¥#E{# ~ JE4E & HAth & & 23 346,841 462,238
Current income tax liabilities E TSR B AR 4,449 10,942
Borrowings K 24 339,455 60,000
1,345,118 1,555,604
Total liabilities =R gk] 6,029,056 5,598,116
Total equity and liabilities E # J £ 1 A 9,593,567 9,302,546
Net current assets/(liabilities) WEEE (A FHE 305,517 (369,065)
Total assets less current liabilities & AR IR B AL 8,248,449 7,746,942

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial & [ it 5 /& A A5 He L nY 56 B8 564 -
statements.

The financial statements on pages 88 to 235 were approved by the 488 H £ 423 H 2 M MEC Hh _F— 1
Board of Directors on March 19, 2015 and were signed on its 4= /L AMEF A AT » WA KES

behalf. T
Zhang Ruilin Tao Tak Yin Dexter
ik B B Fa P8 B
Director Director

#HH #HH
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Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Dividend receivable from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Total equity

ARTE - TR
FPARSK

ARk A
A PR B A B K

IO S fE (R H L B R A
IR i 19 B

W T R BEA

FAARER - fR s SOH AR B WGR

Bl RBl &S EY

i B Y A 2 ) i A O 4

— HEIRA B A

Note
Mt t

9(a)
9(b)
11

12

15

12
16
17

18
20

33

As at December 31,

Bt+=H=+—H

2014 2013
SECWE %

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETE  ARMTE
2,405 1,922
4,078,353 2,787,424
2,626,424 2,643,596
32,707 17,478
- 158
6,739,889 5,450,578
= 7,626
= 304,845
197,385 87,110
132,272 -
218,681 52,637
548,338 452,218
7,288,227 5,902,796
842,520 856,134
1,212,941 1,201,514
= 60,969
892,225 30,872
2,947,686 2,149,489
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As at December 31,

Bt+=H=+—H
2014 2013
SECWE %
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Liabilities =L

Non-current liabilities B/ =K

Borrowings i 24 4,169,243 3,589,503

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities M ~ FE i K& HAth £ & 23 7,663 17,442

Derivative financial instruments A 4l T E - 2,770
4,176,906 3,609,715

Current liabilities B A

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities ¥#E4# ~ JE4E & HAth & & 23 163,635 143,592

163,635 143,592

Total liabilities =R gk] 4,340,541 3,753,307

Total equity and liabilities E # J 1 A 7,288,227 5,902,796

Net current assets it B ¥ A 384,703 308,626

Total assets less current liabilities & R IR B A 7,124,592 5,759,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial & [ it 5 /& A A5 He L nY SE B8 564 -
statements.

The financial statements on pages 88 to 235 were approved by the #8838 H £ 4236 H X MEMEC Hh _F— 1
Board of Directors on March 19, 2015 and were signed on its 4= /L AMEF A AETIE - WA KES

behalf. s
Zhang Ruilin Tao Tak Yin Dexter
iR B B Fa P8 B
Director Director

#HH #HH
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Revenue W4

Operating expenses: B

Depreciation, depletion and amortization #7785 ~ 4 k& [ f# 4

Taxes other than income taxes BLIE (T 1SELERSM)
Employee benefit expense B 35 kA

Purchases, services and PRI ~ MRS B oAt 422 A

other direct costs
Geological and geophysical expense b K ek P FE 2 A

Distribution expense P

General and administrative expense A

Impairment charges J2 PR GAIEEEES

Other gains/(losses), net HAbFIE, (B > FE
Total operating expenses AR

Profit from operations g g b

Finance income I

Finance costs s

Share of losses of investments A HRE AR I AR BCE Y

accounted for using the equity method 51344

Profit before income tax 3% Pt 45 756 Wi A1 3
Income tax expense Y% diil
Profit for the year AAE I

Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hibgr s, (H%) :
Items that will not be reclassified to HENGESEFIRE1IEH

profit or loss

Currency translation differences AN 2SR

Items that may be reclassified H 1% o] GE 7 F 4P J0 £ 18 25 09 36 H
to profit or loss

Change in value of available-for-sale AL A A T 1 (E (E 5 )
financial assets
Reclassification of accumulated change T} 5 & 7] ik 4 5 4 il & 7

in value of available-for-sale financial 1EH Bt d)
assets upon disposal
Currency translation differences AT R A

Total comprehensive income for the year #<4F 45 & W 35 44 %1

Note
Wt

26
28

25

28

27
27

30

Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HIL&EE

2014

S
RMB’000
USRS

2,982,909

(928,447)
(695,092)
(215,634)
(337,340)

(20,047)

(36,595)
(123,733)

(154,570)
302,020

(2,209,438)

773,471

18,491
(499,818)

(55,432)

236,712

(214,163)

22,549

4,001

(20,285)

(16,284)

6,265

2013

CF A
RMB’000
AR TIE
3,256,061
(905,032)
(740,628)
(227,769)
(370,205)
(4,721)
(31,346)
(102,528)

(4,635)
(2,386,864)

869,197

6,431
(351,984)

(68,777)

454,867

(175,083)

279,784

(48,932)

24,283

(4,093)
20,514

(8,228)

271,556



Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to owners of the
Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an

integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Dividends

AR 1 i R
NSV
J 42 il e 2

AR 53 47 W A A R Y

ENEL
FE 42 il A e 2

ACAE AR 22 ) B AT 3B A A I #Y
TR (F B W)

T et
i o A S Wi

2 B IRE G 20 A 5 B S S kR Y
ARy o

JBe Al
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2014

e LY

Note RMB’000
Mt aF AR¥E Tt

58,482
(35,933)

22,549

42,198
(35,933)

6,265

32
0.02
0.02

33 =

2013

—ER A
RMB’000
AR TIC

283,009
(3,225)

279,784

274,781
(3,225)

271,556

0.11
0.11

60,969
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As at January 1, 2013 RZB—=4—-HA—H
Comprehensive income RGBS
for the year
Profit for the year RERH
Available-for-sale financial ik ESRERE (Mt 20)
assets (Note 20)
Currency translation differences JMEHT A %4
Transactions with owners HHHR S
Employees stock option schemes { £ /% tst#1
— value of employee services  — 1§ BRI (13 28)
(Note 28)
— exercise of employee — TR A R A
options

e 0 2 T B £
(Wit 20(a)
{5 FEFEA o0 B 3 A A

Shares purchased under Share
Award Scheme (Note 20(a))

Dividends on repurchased
shares held in trust

Options granted for investment

T EREAR T T R

in subsidiaries (Note 19(c)) (W7 19(c)
Partial disposal of interest R E T AL
in a subsidiary
Dividends iidz)

As at December 31, 2013 R-Z—-=#+"H=1—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

SERA LA #

Ordinary Share Other Retained
shares  premium reserves earnings
Hak  RARE UbREG  BRRE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AR¥ETFE  AR®TFE AR®TT AR¥ETL
17,629 836,374 203,107 2,406,263
- - - 283,009

- - 20,190 -

- - (28,418) -

- - (8,228) 283,009

- - 26,549 -

9 2,122 (954) -

- - (50,240) -

- - 1,976 -

- - 67,839 -

- - 1,117 -

- - - (126,165)

9 2122 46,887 (126,165)
17,638 838,496 241,766 2,563,107

Non-
controlling
interests
E 3l
s

Total

st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFE  ARETL
3,463,373 810
283,009 (3,225)
20,190 -
(28,418) -
274,781 (3,225)
26,549 -
1177 -
(50,240) -
1,976 -
67,839 -
1,717 45,838
(126,165) -
(77,147) 45,838
3,661,007 43,423

Total
Equity
e as

RMB'000
NRET L

3,464,183

279,784

20,190
(28,418)

271,556

26,549
1177
(50,240)
1,976
67,839

47,555
(126,165)

(31,309)

3,704,430
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Non-
controlling
interests Total
Attributable to owners of the Company Jede il Equity
BB A R B HEs WA
Ordinary Share Other  Retained
shares  premium reserves  earnings Total

Wl BARE bR BRE At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMFE  AREFE  ARMFE  ARMFE  ARNFE  AREFE  AREFT

As at January 1, 2014 REZE—-NE—H—H 17,638 838,496 241,766 2,563,107 3,661,007 43423 3,704,430
Comprehensive income RGBS

for the year
Profit for the year AR - - - 58,482 58,482 (35,933) 22,549
Available-for-sale financial Wk E R (i 20)

assets (Note 20) - - (20,285) - (20,285) - (20,285)
Currency translation differences M7 %4 - - 4,001 - 4,001 - 4,001

17,638 838,496 225482 2,621,589 3,703,205 7490 3,710,695

Transactions with owners RREHR 5
Employees stock option schemes {i & ff i3t #1
— value of employee services  — 1§ B RIS (E (434 28)

(Note 28) - - 33,652 - 33,652 - 33,652
— settlement of employee - EHEAIEME
options (Note 20(i)) (it 20(1) - = (10,385) - (10,385) - (10,385)
Settlement of options granted 45 /3 F/s Al M7 T
for interest in subsidiaries TR A (it 2001)
(Note 20(i)) = - (95,855) = (95,855) = (95,855)
Dividends on repurchased {5 FEFEA o0 B 3 A A
shares held in trust - - 970 - 970 - 970
Share repurchased and Ry I B B s 8 (21 18)
cancellation (Note 18) (105) (13,509) - - (13,614) - (13,614)
Dividends 45} = = = (60,952) (60,952) = (60,952)
(105) (13,509) (71,618) (60,952) (146,184) - (146,184)
As at December 31, 2014 R_ZF—NE+ZA=Z+—H 17,533 824,987 153,864 2,560,637 3,557,021 7490 3,564,511

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated  # it Bt 5 /5 45 4 1 B 0 32 0 M5 B R 43 o
financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2014 2013
SEoWE F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Net cash generated from operating A8 B A A Y B A
activities 34 1,180,423 1,209,099

Cash flows from investing activities 1 1 B o A A B O

Purchases of property, W R B A~ LW A

plant and equipment (1,314,023) (1,408,913)
Purchase of available-for-sale S A B

financial assets 11 (71,986) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries i & 1/ & T 153008 9 532,479 -
Deposit received in relation J s w4

to disposal of subsidiaries 46,400 -
Capital contribution to investments R DA 25 A% A 1%

accounted for using the equity method 8 (269,375) (180,773)
Loans to investments accounted for EDURE 25 R ARG BEE 5 3K

using equity method (163,856) -
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash Z PR B 40 (B ) e (103,411) 1,838
Interest received 2 F & 14,364 2,863
Proceeds from contingent Wi 3 I A B A SR K E

consideration receivable 8,134 -
Proceeds from realized gain of oil option £ i HiHE B 3 i 35 T 15 2 I 10,208 -

Net cash used in investing activities 1 1 B Fr Y i B 4 v (1,311,066) (1,5684,985)
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2014 2013
SEoWE F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Cash flows from financing activities MENBEENBRERE

Proceeds from borrowings e KT 159 A 411,545 120,000
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BEAT SR TS ACH (PR AT

payable, net of issuance costs BAAR FH) 24 2,986,181 1,229,212
Repayments of senior notes i 5 2L 24 (2,465,600) -
Payment of premium related to the ST 7 SRR A A

repayments of senior notes 24 (120,198) -
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture {444 1 2 i 15 2k IH - 16,741
Proceed from partial disposal of TR TN FRE £ T A 3KE

interest in a subsidiary - 44,507
Payment for settlement of share options /2 [l jf i I 4 5245 i 2k 0E 19 (10,385) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 {ifi [if§ JBHE FT 75 2K IE - 1,177
Repayments of borrowings B 2 2K (126,455) (998,612)
Dividends paid CATIE (60,952) (124,365)
Dividends on repurchased shares & REREA ] R I B 1 e

held in trust 970 1,976
Payment of loan arrangement fee S SR B T AH BH

and others (14,994) (25,339)
Payment for shares purchased under T Iy S Sl vt ) ] B S £

Share Award Scheme 18 - (50,240)
Payment for repurchase of shares ST A I B i

and cancellation 18 (13,614) -
Payment for settlement of options AT SR TN B Ay

to acquire shares of subsidiaries (44,605) -
Net cash generated from Rl Y B A I B i

financing activities 541,893 215,057
Net increase/(decrease) in cash e KRB &% EMRm,

and cash equivalents (WA ) H 411,250 (160,829)
Cash and cash equivalents AR A e B e EY)

at beginning of the year 274,529 467,164
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash B4 S B4 S5 (B W 1 B 5

and cash equivalents ts,” Uks48) 3,429 (31,806)
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERBERBESEY

of the year 17 689,208 274,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated 5 BB 55 £ A< & B W H5 35 32 i B B 204 o
financial statements.
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MIE Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil
and other petroleum products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Republic of Kazakhstan (the
“Kazakhstan”), and the United States of America (“USA")
under production sharing contracts (“PSC”) and other similar
arrangements. The Group currently has two producing oil
PSCs in the PRC, an exploration contract and four production
contracts in Kazakhstan and a working interest in the
Niobrara shale oil and gas assets in the USA. The Group also
participates through a joint venture in the exploration of two
unconventional gas assets located on the eastern flank of the
Ordos Basin in the PRC pursuant to two separate PSCs.

Further details of the Group’s joint operations under PSCs
and similar arrangements, and joint ventures are set out in
Notes 8(a) and 8(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK").

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB"”) unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (“Board of Directors”) on March 19, 2015.

MIAE I8 4% B A FR A 7 (DL iSRG [ AR 2
Al J) T KB A T (BRG [ AL ) 2%
fE 2 R IR (DL RS AR ) -
WAy B v 7 I LR B (D AR 0 EE o
A J) 135 [ i BREE 40 A TR B AR g
oo (CSEDEE - BHEE - B KB E A
A H AL A T E 5 o ARSE B TR R
R ) T A AR R T A R A TR IR
B o A W T i 2H A — il D A A AN
VU AE EE A TRIIE B IR A 32 Y
Niobrara 3£ 75 1l A1 K 58 50 & & 9 1B 54
fi o ARSI — R G E A MR 4
AT EE 0 A T 2 B A v B ST AT
22 W 4 M A T IR R R R RSB E

A AR B TE 2 0 A [ SO el T Y
Ll K88 MG A SR — P REN > )
IR A 5 B 5 3R W G 8(a) A1 8(b)
o

AR AR — G0 B 2 B S A T
PR o 5t Hbhik 2 Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands °

AR FY B Je A7 A A W B 5 5 B BT A RS
R BT (DU R [ A sl s ) o

BB R AN RS i (BRI 0 A7 et
Bl) o APB IR R AL FEFER
“ER-RAEZH A JUE HETEE -



The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR
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B o B OF BB 3R A TR S A ¥
A B 7T e A DAY
SR H A B AR 4 ) &
il R < A AR (RLAR AT AR TR
{9 A T A R AT
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after January
1, 2014:

o Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27
‘Consolidation for investment entities’.
These amendments mean that many
funds and similar entities will be
exempt from consolidating most of
their subsidiaries. Instead, they will
measure them at fair value through
profit or loss. The amendments give an
exception to entities that meet an
‘investment entity’ definition and which
display particular characteristics.
Changes have also been made IFRS 12
to introduce disclosures that an
investment entity needs to make.

o Amendments to |IAS 32, ‘Financial
instruments: Presentation’ on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities.
This amendment clarifies that the right
of set-off must not be contingent on a
future event. It must also be legally
enforceable for all counterparties in the
normal course of business, as well as in
the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy. The amendment also
considers settlement mechanisms.
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2.1 R (A])

2.1.1 7k BRI 8 04 52 B (%)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by (a)  ASHE B B #R 44 109 F7 5T Al
the Group (Continued) ey R (4#)

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of . P 5 B JI 56
assets’, on the recoverable amount 36455 (B [ &=
disclosures for non-financial assets. WAE ] A B IE A
This amendment removed certain B Al e 4 A
disclosures of the recoverable amount B 75 o sk

of CGUs which had been included in B T AR R A

IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13. B [ B 5 A v

A5 135% » B B

& it v I 5 36 5%

BT A 46 1 B 4 A

B 50 AT [A] i

Amendments to IAS 39, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of
hedge accounting. This amendment
considers legislative changes to ‘over-
the-counter’ derivatives and the
establishment of central counterparties.
Under IAS 39 novation of derivatives to
central counterparties would result in
discontinuance of hedge accounting.
The amendment provides relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a hedging instrument meets
specified criteria. The group has applied
the amendment and there has been no
significant impact on the group financial
statements as a result.

SRR T4

B P g w e A A
WM BT &
Bl H o RERR

FhE ] AR
A& E W
& T RE A o I
B EE TS
N iga =N v
3 8 5 AR ST
¥ F o W
B B g wEE A A
399 M AT A L
HE o F rp
T B E W
bk &k -
B 5 TR TR
—HEMWTAEDY
AT A il e R
HERE > TR O A
IER A E e
e ARLEH T E
e v 4
I Y 0 R
S E E K R o



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

° Amendments to IAS 19, ‘employee
benefits’ (effective from January 1,
2014), these amendments eliminate the
corridor approach and calculate finance
expenses on a net funding basis.

° International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC")
Interpretation 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the
accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy if that liability is within the scope
of IAS 37 ‘Provisions’. The
interpretation addresses what the
obligating event is that gives rise to the
payment a levy and when a liability
should be recognized.

The adoption of the above new and amended
standards did not result in any significant
impact to the Group's financial statements.

Other standards, amendments and
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on January 1, 2014
are not material to the Group.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company’s first
financial year commencing on or after March
3, 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact of
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). So far it has concluded that the impact
is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations not effective for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2014 and not yet
adopted:

° IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’,

addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
The complete version of IFRS 9 was
issued in July 2014. It replaces the
guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value
through OCI and fair value through
P&L. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in
equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or
loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair
value in OCI not recycling. There is now
a new expected credit losses model that
replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used in IAS 39. For financial
liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except
for the recognition of changes in own
credit risk in other comprehensive
income, for liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations not effective for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2014 and not yet
adopted: (Continued)

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an
economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the
‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one
management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under IAS
39.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a
customer obtains control of a good or service
and thus has the ability to direct the use and
obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and
IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interpretations. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2017 and earlier application is permitted.
The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS
15.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations not effective for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2014 and not yet
adopted: (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the related impact of the
above revised standards, amendments and
interpretations to the Group’s financial
statements and is not expecting any
significant impact to the Group’s financial
position and results.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognized in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Company has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures and joint operations.
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2.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
group’s investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

2.3.2 Joint operations

The Group’s development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries or joint ventures, jointly with others
through PSCs. These PSCs establish joint control
over the development and production activities.
The assets are not owned by a separate legal
entity but are controlled by individual participants
in the PSCs. Each participant is entitled to a
predetermined share of the related output and
bears an agreed share of the costs.
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2.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

2.3.2 Joint operations (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements reflect:

the Group’s share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

o any liabilities that the Group incurred;

° the Group’s share of any liabilities incurred
jointly with the other PSC partners in relation
to the joint production;

o any income from the sale or use of the
Group’s share of the output of the
production, together with its share of any
expenses incurred in the production; and

° any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$”). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income or’
‘finance costs’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
(Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognized in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortized at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group's reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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25

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles and production equipment 10vyears

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within ‘Other gains, net’ in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests
in oil and gas properties are capitalized. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs of
exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalized as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas which geological and engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions, i.e.,
prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made.
Prices include consideration of changes in existing
prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.

25

2.6

A By - TR R St (A1)

FAtE 48 DU ELAE R S THE
H FE T T (8 ) 4F R 471 BR 2% {8 1% T

& o FHFHAI A AERINE

T R tE+4
NE ] =5
TCHL S AR E A T4

ARG B 2 D T i AR AR B
9 B S ] ol P 4F BRAEAT /A > Sl
TE A BEIRFHEAT TR o W E A AR
(B (R HL TR A AT (o] i vy
R I 7 M T (LM S A il 2
A [ W o

i B ) A BB A T A5 B AR T
{E /Y 2= B A E - I FF AR 22 Y
[HABFIAG > FE -

R ~ R A A i SR

TH SR B % B A 2 5 B R AR
R o ARPEULT M - BT - ICER
Til DA % JH SR E B R L
i B9 P A7 AR 2 T LUE AL « B
e i BR A B SCAS IS E A e 2 AL
ERERH 1 RAS (BLAE 145 B T s o8
H s 1 4 7 OB RAS ) TS AR IR
S5 2 A B LR W i S Al B T R
ERERTER TR TUEARL -
B i S A 5 2 A A SRR B S
P (BA RS BB fE A% SOl T
iR K TR R AR WA R AR A B ]
B E A T i g8 B BRI K
RIRFOMEFH & - HEmERs
] 22 P K€ 09 B A 5 4% 5L 1) %
JE > TSI R AR 5 A A R 1
1% o



2.6

2.7

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
(Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well
costs are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that
such economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the
related well costs are reclassified to oil and gas
properties and subject to impairment review. For
exploratory wells that are found to have economically
viable reserves in areas where major capital
expenditure will be required before production can
commence, the related well costs remain capitalized
only if additional drilling is under way or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as dry
holes. The Group does not have any costs of unproved
properties capitalized in oil and gas properties.

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognized
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration
and evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mineral
extraction rights, mining rights and goodwill.

(a) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortized over their estimated
useful lives of three years.
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2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Mineral extraction and mining rights

Mineral extraction rights and mining rights are
amortized based on the unit of production
method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each
reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

(c)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
excepted to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the statement of
financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 2.9.2 MR MG &

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivable are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or
loss within ‘Other gains, net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains, net’ when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognized in equity are included in
profit or loss as ‘Other gains, net'.
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized
in profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains, net’.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in profit or loss as part of ‘Other
gains, net’” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held- to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale (Continued)

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognized immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
gains, net’.
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2.13 Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
oil and gas and other petroleum products sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.16 Share capital (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.
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2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortized cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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2.21 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognized as provisions and
the amount recognized is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest expenses
from the assets retirement obligations for each period
are recognized with the effective interest method during
the useful life of the related oil and gas properties.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution plans
for state pensions, housing fund and other social
obligations in accordance with the local conditions
in the PRC and Kazakhstan and practices in the
municipalities and province in which they operate.
A defined contribution plan is a pension and/or
other social benefits plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a
fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognized as employee benefit expense when
they are due.
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2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional
on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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2.23 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognized as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions

(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity

over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a

specific period of time).

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognizing the expense
during the period between service commencement

period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.
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2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cash-settled share-based compensation

Compensation under the stock appreciation rights
is measured based on the fair value of the liability
incurred and is expensed over the vesting period.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting
period to its fair value until settlement with all the
changes in liability related to the vested portion
recorded as employee benefit expense in profit or
loss, the related liability is included in the salaries
and welfare payable.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Social security contributions on share options
gains

The social security contributions payable in
connection with the grant of the share options is
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and
the charge will be treated as a cash-settled
transaction.

2.24 Revenue recoghnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

2.23 VLB 7 BB 0 52 A°F ()

(b)  DABH G &5 5 00 e T <

I8 153 348 0 HHE ) P <z DA B o 400
P 7 A R O P (B R
XhEtEe AMEFHEZ
il A& s B R A R R
O FUAE AR - T A ) BT £k
AR 4 R A B T3 I A T
o A B A A AR
LeAgA] o

(c) B A DL B 2 B B8 018 52 Aok

55

BN E SR/ L0}
57 HoE T H A WIHE » Bt
B EARBA o W Tk
B A - 2% &M A
W~ REE R R - A%
CENSR S R (P F I R/ARIE
BRI o AR E B BE 4 R
e H A R4 BT -

() FBedm SUTRE A ko7 R B4 A

LA T 1 A7 33 R T R S A
g DR IR R 2 AR T AR B
(¥ 2 B8 AL ISR 4 T B S
PRI BB HI LS -

2.24 W A\ W3R

WA SR SO 1 8 A B (E
FEE S SRR E P A LR
o nBRITIn - B E I EBZ S
AR o B WA R B EHAE A AT SE TR
AR A KEE A 2 AR W] RE A A B
i ARG B E R
FE P I (0T SCRP At ) - AR 4 B i
AT AFERD ©



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the
Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods, and retains
neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and related revenue and cost can be
measured reliably.

With respect to the Group’s operation under PSC,
revenues are recognized upon delivery of crude oil that
are allocated to the Group under the relevant PSCs
(Note 8(a)) and other conditions discussed above are
met.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognized using the original effective
interest rate.

2.26 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.27 Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognized as expenses in
the year in which they are incurred.

2.28 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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2.28 Leases (Continued)

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.29 Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

2.30 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors
of the Company (Note 5).
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures, but hedge accounting had not been applied.

Risk management is carried out by the Company
headquarter financial department (“Group Finance
Team”) on a regular basis under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Finance Team identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US$ and Kazakhstan
Tenge (“KZT"). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

The majority of the Group’s sales in the PRC
and Kazakhstan are transacted in US$, while
production and other expense are mainly
denominated in RMB and KZT, respectively.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
is regulated by the PRC government.
Limitation in foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause
future exchange rates to vary significantly
from current or historical exchange rates.
Management is not in a position to anticipate
changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the
Group’s results of operations or financial
position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

On February 11, 2014, Kazakhstan
government announced, with effect from the
same day, exchange rate of KZT to US$ was
devalued to KZT185 for US$1 (“Devalued
Exchange Rate of KZT to US$"). As
compared with the closing rate of KZT153.6
for US$1 on December 31, 2013, exchange
rate of KZT to US$ was devalued by
approximately 20.4%. In addition, as the
closing rate of US$ to RMB changed from
US$1 for RMB6.0969 on December 31, 2013
to US$1 for RMB6.1069 on February 11, 2014,
exchange rate of KZT to RMB was devalued
by 20.2% from KZT 25.19 for RMB1 to
KZT30.29 for RMB1 (“Devalued Exchange
Rate of KZT to RMB"). For presentation
purpose, KZT’s devaluation against US$ and
RMB are collectively referred to as
“Devaluation”.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated
in the relevant foreign currencies.

At December 31, 2014, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1% (2013: 1%) against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
December 31, 2014 would have been
RMB13.2 million (2013: RMB19.3 million)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$-denominated trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and
borrowings.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the years presented.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings, including bank loans and senior
notes payable. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During 2014, except for the Group’s
senior notes payable and short-term bank
loans amounting to RMB122.4 million (2013:
RMB60 million) which were at fixed rate, all
other bank loans were at variable rate. All the
borrowings were denominated in US$ and
RMB.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure
on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are
simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions,
alternative financing and hedging. Based on
these scenarios, the Group calculates the
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest
rate shift. For each simulation, the same
interest rate shift is used for all currencies.
The scenarios are run only for liabilities that
represent the major interest-bearing
positions.

The Group has no material interest bearing
cash assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market rates.
The Group’s interest rates risk arises from
borrowings. A detailed analysis of the
Group’s borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 24.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Oil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil
development, production and selling
activities. Prices of crude oil are affected by
both domestic and global factors which are
beyond the control of the Group. The
fluctuations in such prices may have
favourable or unfavourable impacts to the
Group. Therefore the Group was exposed to
general price fluctuations of crude oil. During
the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2014,
the Group entered into oil options contracts
(Note 15) to manage its price risk. All of the
Group’s oil options contracts expired on
December 31, 2014.

Credit risk

As the majority of the cash at bank balance is
placed with PRC state-owned banks and major
financial institutions, the directors of the Company
are of their opinion that the corresponding credit
risk is relatively low. Therefore, credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. The
Group has controls in place to assess the credit
quality of its customers. The carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
amounts due from related parties and trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk for its cash
and cash equivalents.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the
Group has one customer in each of China and
Kazakhstan which in aggregate accounts for 94.8%
(2013: 96.4%) of the Group's revenue and as such,
has concentration of credit risk for its trade and
other receivables. However, the Group regards it
as low risk as the customer in China is PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) , a PRC state-
owned enterprise with high credit rating in China,
and the major customer in Kazakhstan, Titan Qil &
Gas Inc. (“Titan Qil”), is one of the largest trading
companies in Mangistau region (Western
Kazakhstan).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit
facilities.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group Finance Team monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs through:
(i) maintaining flexibility by placing reliance
primarily on external borrowings; (ii) periodically
evaluating banking facilities position and
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities; (iii) compliance
with borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities — for example: fixed charge
coverage ratio, limitation on restricted payments,
limitation on liens and asset sales, etc. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group's
debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets.

The table below analyzes the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of principal amount and
interests.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 AE AR N R (4])

() Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) W BhPEEBE (%)
Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2
Group year and2years andb5years Overb5 years
HMH B — 4 — B4 “EHE TAEY b
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETIE  AR¥TT  ARBT LT ARBTC
At December 31, 2014 g S 113
+ZH=+—H
Borrowings &R 339,455 2,910 4,286,025 —
Interest payables on TR
borrowings 330,694 313,899 624,747 -
Trade and notes payable  MEfTIE 3 S HEAT 2245 654,373 60,255 - -
Provisions, accruals and  HEff ~ FE$2 )
other liabilities HoAt 115 109,926 47,174 28,004 54,684
At December 31, 2013 n_F—=
+=ZH=+—H
Borrowings K 60,000 - 3,658,140 -
Interest payables on EEGSS
borrowings 321,858 321,611 328,470 -
Trade and notes payable  MEfT R S HE ) 2245 1,022,424 46,113 - -
Provisions, accruals and il ~ TR I
other liabilities HoAth £ 5 193,603 36,191 13,583 57,336
Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2
Company year and2years andb5years Overb years
V| B4R —EWF RN LA L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®FIE  AR¥FET AR¥FLT AR¥TC
At December 31, 2014 /1 13
+=H=+—H
Borrowings K 313,599 313,599 4,925,795 -
Provisions, accruals and il ~ TR I
other liabilities HoAth £ 139,206 - - -
At December 31, 2013 /AR St
+=H=+—H
Borrowings K 321,611 321,611 3,986,610 -
Provisions, accruals and  #&{f ~ JH{E &
other liabilities Hofth & 5 89,331 - - -
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3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as profit before finance income, finance
cost, income tax and depreciation, depletion and
amortization.

The Debt over EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2014 and
2013 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 24) & AR (Kt 24)
Profit before income tax % Jr 755 iy 13
Finance income WHB A

Finance cost W% # A

s~ PrRE

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

EBITDA EBITDA

Debt over EBITDA ratio

The Debt over EBITDA ratio increased from 2.1 to 2.7
was mainly due to the increase in the total debt raised
by Group for the year ended December 31, 2014 as
compared to December 31, 2013.
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BEZA= N
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L
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3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A REMANE

The table below analyses the Group’s financial N RARPEAE BN A S E A A (B B

instruments carried at fair value as at December 31, lir = BT 4R B AR T AR - AT

2014 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used AREEPR - F—NE+S —H=1—

to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into HIEARBEEARNEH TH - &

three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: Sy A e RS Fo M (B R AR B 2

=0

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o AH [F) & B B A 0 T Y
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ROHRAE CRACHHEL) (S5—JF) o

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within . B 726 — @ BT AL AR R
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, Ah o BB E AR A B
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that Y Ho At g A > BT 3 (HD B
is, derived from prices) (level 2). W E R ) B 4 (RIIR A (E A5

EJE) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based . R RN A AR I AR T AR
on observable market data (that is, unobservable T35 B n A (BP IR T 5%
inputs) (level 3). A (55 =Jg) o

The following table presents the Group’s financial T REY AL - —PU4E+

assets that are measured at fair value at December 31, HZ=+—H U2 o EER w4

2014. BE o
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Assets B
/e 2l Vi S
As at December 31, 2014 +-H=+—H
Available-for-sale financial ] fit i 4l & -
assets:
— Equity investments — HREE
— Debt investments — EBHRE
As at December 31, 2013 R_ZF—=
.
Available-for-sale financial ] fit i1 4 il & -
assets:
— Equity investments — HRRE
— Contingent consideration — — REE A4 EHE
receivable
Trading derivatives LT E
— Oil options — il
— Equity warrants — WRIRHERE

Level 1
B
RMB’000
NG T

30,722

30,722

17,478

17,478

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during

the year.

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the
closing price as at December 31, 2014. These
instruments are included in level 1, and represent
equity investments listed on NYSE, SEHK and Irish
Stock Exchange (“ISE"”), which are classified as

available-for-sale.

3.3 A sEMAE (A)

Level 2
S
RMB’000
NS

7,626

7,626

Level 3 Total
WEE Ak
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFIL  ARMTIC
42,834 73,556
1,985 1,985
44,819 75,541

- 17,478

32,944 32,944

- 7,626

165 165
33,109 58,213
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Financial instruments in level 3

With respect to the level 3 fair value measurement
for the Group’s financial assets at fair value that
are unlisted equity investments with no active
market exists, the Group’s finance department
benchmark to the market price of certain
comparable listed companies within the same or
similar operation/industry and apply certain
adjustments/discount for non-marketability. At
December 31, 2014, the directors of the Company
are of their opinion that there is a wide range of
possible fair value measurements and cost
represents the best estimate of fair value within
that range.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum
that by analysis of geoscience and engineering
data can be estimated with reasonable certainty to
be commercially recoverable, from a given date
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulations. Economic conditions
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.
Proved developed producing reserves are
expected to be recovered from completion
intervals that are open and producing at the time
of the estimate. Proved undeveloped reserves are
quantities expected to be recovered through future
investments: from new wells on undrilled acreage
in known accumulations, from extending existing
wells to a different (but known) reservoir, or from
infill wells that will increase recovery. Probable
reserves are additional reserves that are less
certain to be recovered than proved reserves but
which, together with proved reserves, are as likely
as not to be recovered.

The Group’s reserve estimates were prepared for
each oilfield and include only reserves that the
Group believes can be reasonably produced within
current economic and operating conditions.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

Proved and probable reserves cannot be
measured exactly. Reserve estimates are based on
many factors related to reservoir performance that
require evaluation by the engineers interpreting
the available data, as well as price and other
economic factors. The reliability of these estimates
at any point in time depends on both the quality
and quantity of the technical and economic data,
and the production performance of the reservoirs
as well as engineering judgement. Consequently,
reserve estimates are subject to revision as
additional data become available during the
producing life of a reservoir. When a commercial
reservoir is discovered, proved reserves are
initially determined based on limited data from the
first well or wells. Subsequent data may better
define the extent of the reservoir and additional
production performance. Well tests and
engineering studies will likely improve the
reliability of the reserve estimate. The evolution of
technology may also result in the application of
improved recovery techniques such as
supplemental or enhanced recovery projects, or
both, which have the potential to increase reserves
beyond those envisioned during the early years of
a reservoir’s producing life.

In general, changes in the technical maturity of
reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and
production activities and change in oil and gas
price have tended to be the most significant cause
of annual revisions.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Depletion, depreciation and amortization of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

In addition to the depletion, depreciation and
amortization of oil and gas properties, mining
extraction and mining rights using the unit of
production method (Notes 2.6 and 2.7) based on
the estimated reserves as disclosed in Note 4.1(i),
management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
and amortization charges for other property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions, or
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations according to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of intangible assets.

Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next
financial year that are different from assumptions
could require material adjustments to the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and
gas properties, and intangible assets are reviewed
for possible impairments when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involve management estimates and judgements
such as future prices of crude oil and production
profile. However, the impairment reviews and
calculations are based on assumptions that are
consistent with the Group’s business plans.
Favourable changes to some assumptions may
allow the Group to avoid the need to impair any
assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become
impaired.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the Group
recognized an impairment charge on property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets
amounting to RMB29.3 million (2013: nil) and
RMB125.3 million (2013: nil) for assets under the
Group’s operation in the PRC and USA,
respectively (Note 6).
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

Provision for remediation and restoration

Provision for remediation and restoration included
environmental remediation costs, assets
retirements obligation and similar obligation in
relation to the Group’s operations. Provision is
made when the related environmental disturbance
and present obligations occur, based on the net
present value of estimated future costs. The
ultimate cost of environmental disturbances, asset
retirement and similar obligation are uncertain
and management uses its judgment and
experience to provide for these costs over the life
of operations. Cost estimates can vary in response
to many factors including changes to the relevant
legal requirements, the Group’s related policies,
the emergence of new restoration techniques and
the effects of inflation. Cost estimates are updated
throughout the life of the operation. The expected
timing of expenditure included in cost estimates
can also change, for example in response to
changes in reserves, or production volumes or
economic conditions. Expenditure may occur
before and after closure and can continue for an
extended period of time depending on the specific
site requirements. Some expenditure can continue
into perpetuity. Cash flows must be discounted if
this has a material effect. The selection of
appropriate sources on which to base calculation
of the risk free discount rate used for this purpose
also requires judgment. As a result of all of the
above factors there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for close down,
restoration and clean-up costs which would affect
future financial results.

The Group currently operates mainly in PRC and
Kazakhstan. The outcome of environmental and
other similar obligations under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be
estimated at present, and could be material. Under
existing legislation, however, the directors of the
Company are in their opinion that there are no
probable liabilities that are in addition to amounts
which have already been reflected in the financial
statements that will have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(v) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the
Company that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being the PRC,
Kazakhstan and USA. The PRC segment derives its revenue
substantially from the sale of oil. Revenue is realized from
the sale of the Group’s share of crude oil to PetroChina
pursuant to respective PSCs (Note 8). The Kazakhstan
segment derives its revenue from the sale of oil and gas
through the operation of an oil and gas exploration and four
production contracts in Kazakhstan. The USA segment
derives its revenue from the sale of shale oil and gas through
working interest in the Niobrara asset in the USA.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s operating
result.
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31,

WE -F—WWEFT A =T—HILFE
) 3 g R R A EE R

2014 is as follows:

Corporate
PRC Kazakhstan USA  and others Total
i WpE @ EE R At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFE  ARWTE AR¥TE ARWTT AR¥TE
Segment revenue Vg & 2,217,183 746,361 19,365 - 2,982,909
Depreciation, depletionand ~ #7# ~ #74€ K5

amortization (806,894) (97,527) (23,548) (478) (928,447)
Taxes other than income taxes  BiJE (TS BL RSN (W31 26)

(Note 26) (341,432) (331,960) (1,464) (20,236) (695,092)
Employee benefit expense B THM A (111,163) (49,755) - (54,716) (215,634)
Purchases, services and other B ~ RS Bt 24 A

direct costs (227,008) (97,430) (12,902) - (337,340)
Geological and geophysical R e Ry 2

expense - (20,047) - - (20,047)
Distribution expense BT (29,018) (7,577) = - (36,595)
General and administrative B

expense (39,974) (28,989) (7,198) (47,572) (123,733)
Segment operating result Vi Y- E S 661,694 113,076 (25,747) (123,002) 626,021
Impairment charges B AR 2 (29,282) - (125,288) - (154,570)
Other gains/(losses), net HiFE/ (8% > §H 278,918 - (408) 23,510 302,020
Finance income BTN 453 1,629 3,792 12,617 18,491
Finance costs W (20,347) 32,704 (1,7711) (510,404) (499,818)
Share of losses of investments =4 HiefiEs5 E A BRI E

accounted for using the equity  f9E1E (H 48

method - - - (55,432) (55,432)
Profit/(loss) before income tax KRt B ai A,/ (18) 891,436 147,409 (149,422) (652,711) 236,712
Income tax expense it i 2 (169,734) (44,260) - (169) (214,163)
Profit/(loss) for the year RAERTE,/ (BHR) 721,702 103,149 (149,422) (652,880) 22,549
Total assets & 2,171,909 2,941,774 92,536 4,387,348 9,593,567
Total assets includes: GRS
Property, plant and equipment  A#E » T K 4,297,259 2,275,176 24,238 33,000 6,629,673
Intangible assets WY& 7,197 484,581 2,774 - 494,552
Investments accounted for TRHERS AR 1

using the equity method - - - 499,284 499,284
Additions to non-current assets  JF Vi B &N 487,330 377,367 3,164 955 868,816
Total liabilities M 976,475 660,221 50,345 4,342,015 6,029,056
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31,

BE-EZ—=F+ - HEt— B IHERE
A S e R A S I E BT

2013 is as follows:

Corporate
PRC  Kazakhstan USA  and others Total
HE IR AT EE AR A3t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#FLE  AR®Fr AR®TFr  AR®Tr ARWTR
Segment revenue 7 R 23 2,443,844 782,631 29,586 - 3,256,061
Depreciation, depletion and Prgs - ot R an

amortization (781,723) (101,868) (21,229) (212) (905,032)
Taxes other than income taxes  BiJE (TS BL RSN (W31 26)

(Note 26) (413,194) (319,450) (386) (7,598) (740,628)
Employee benefit expense B THM A (109,531) (48,347) - (69,891) (227,769)
Purchases, services and other  FFM ~ IRWs R HL A B 4 i A

direct costs (238,201) (120,966) (11,038) - (370,205)
Geological and geophysical R e Ry 2

expense - (4,668) (53) - (4,721)
Distribution expense T (31,346) - - - (31,346)
General and administrative B

expense (41,183) (18,145) (7,926) (35,274) (102,528)
Segment operating result g Fit-E 828,666 169,187 (11,046) (112,975) 873,832
Other gains/(losses), net HAE/ B > FE 13,315 (23,055) (1,380) 6,485 (4,635)
Finance income BTN 360 2,380 3,626 65 6,431
Finance costs g g4l (15,952) (221) (953) (334,858) (351,984)
Share of losses of investments S Hiefili 2 ¥ ARIIHE

accounted for using the equity  E5HE{H3

method - - - (68,777) (68,777)
Profit before income tax B 75 58 6 3 826,389 148,291 (9,753) (510,060) 454,867
Income tax (expense)/benefit Bt (%) /Bik (195,667) 20,584 - - (175,083)
Profit/(loss) for the year AR/ (B 630,722 168,875 (9753)  (510,060) 279,784
Total assets B 5,901,879 2,642,182 257,941 492,753 9,294,755
Total assets includes: BEAEA
Property, plant and equipment  AE)zE » TRk M sk il 4994736 1,977,432 155,586 32,406 7,160,160
Intangible assets I G 35918 492,697 15,854 - 544,469
Investments accounted for TEHERS R AR 35

using the equity method - - - 273,348 273,348
Additions to non-current assets  JF i E) & 851,161 511,700 113,555 1,895 1,478,311
Total liabilities ARAH 1,206,279 593,292 48,013 3,735,395 5,582,979

By AR RS A5 2 R T 5 B ik
2 RIEATIIR » b2 M2 o LB A
5 45 T 1A 2 R AR B A AP i R A B A
SUATSH -

All segment information above represented segment results
after elimination of inter-segment transactions, which
primarily include interest income or expense from intra-
group accounts and loans.
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The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is measured
consistently with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The amounts provided to the Board
of Directors with respect to total assets and total liabilities
are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the asset. Segment operating result
represent operating profit/(loss) after excluding impairment
charges and other gains/(losses), net.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
including oil options held by the Group are not considered to
be segment assets. Oil options premium payable are not
considered to be segment liabilities.

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as
follows:

Segment assets for reportable segments 7> B 70 0 B 7o

Unallocated: A5 BL -
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

I B 2B o RO WA O R S IA B
HEaWmERNFRIE S mERY
POt A BB B AR SR 2R
M5 O SV 5 ik TR AR — Bt 07 (R
(Y o MCAE T I B AR B 23 B KR8 A
B R BT C o o B AL SR
EBRBUE R R HARFIG (R §H#

BRI ER T o

R AR 42 B 5 A B B35 0 A R B LA
o B AR R B B A E R RN
B FE AL S WA o REAT I
JARERER AP 0 HR AR o

ot o I L E AR AT

As at December 31,

A2 o (A1 EL ST A
AR SRR

Total assets per consolidated statement & ff [ %k U 76 N 10 & 28 4840

of financial position

S
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFG  ARMET
9,593,567 9,294,755
= 7,791
9,593,567 9,302,546



Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total
liabilities as follows:
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As at December 31,

Y
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000

VNEML S ANRMET T

Segment liabilities for ek 43R 4330 B R

reportable segments 6,029,056 5,582,979
Unallocated: R4 0L
Oil options premium payable JREAST T S RERE A < - 15,137
Total liabilities per consolidated o D A 5 IR UL 2% 1 1 £ 08 Al

statement of financial position 6,029,056 5,698,116
Entity-wide information A>3 g i 5 B
Analysis of revenue by category WA 803 43 #e

Sales of oil and gas BB IR B KRR
Provision of services AR

For the year ended December 31, 2014, total revenue from
crude oil sales in the PRC amounting to RMB2,204.1 million
(2013: RMB2,440.9 million) are derived solely from
PetroChina. For Kazakhstan, Titan oil was the Group’s main
customer and revenue amounting to RMB624.6 million (2013:
RMB698.0 million) are derived from it. Revenues from
PetroChina and Titan Oil accounted for 73.9% and 20.9%
(2013: 75.0% and 21.4%) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2014, respectively.

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2014 2013
SEOWE %o
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETE  ARWTT

2,970,017 3,253,140
12,892 2,921

2,982,909 3,256,061

BE_ZX—-NE+_H=Z+—HILF
> AHE A A B SR 8 B A A AR
N 2,204.1 {8 0 (& — = 4F .
ANR¥2,4409HE L) » WA ELS T
MBS PR o A2 B A 0 BE T 4R
B £ E F A Titan Oil > ¥ Hilg A 4%
HmARM624.6 HH L (—F— =4 A
R#698.0H 8 or) o HE ~F— U4
+ = H =+— B 1L ER A A Titan
Oil B 19 Uit A 43 7l Ak A 4 18] S8 0 A 1Y)
73.9% f120.9% ( % — =4 : 75.0% Al
21.4%) °
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Vehicles, office
Exploration and and other
evaluation Oilandgas  Buildings and production  Construction in
assets properties  improvements equipment progress Total
T AE
i R MERE  REMRRE  RWREER N IR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARHT I S NS ARHT T I S AT

At January 1, 2013 REZ-=%-A—H
Cost AR 88,672 9,602,833 11,464 91,550 280,293 10,074,812
Accumulated depreciation and  Z &t R (i

impairment (848) (3,409,412) (1,860) (30,040) - (3,442,160)
Net book amount e T S 87,824 6,193,421 9,604 61,510 280,293 6,632,652

Year ended December 31,2013 #ZE_-F—=4+"H

St HIERE
Opening net book amount R R 87,824 6,193,421 9,604 61,510 280,293 6,632,652
Exchange differences TS24 (2,502) (60,503) (289) (522) (1,757) (65,573)
Additions i 82,694 520,169 2,032 14,825 857,187 1,476,907
Disposals HE - - (70) (1,140) - (1,210)
Transfers Lt (91,555) 768,589 - - (677,034) -
Depreciation charge TEEM - (868,943) (1,935) (11,738) - (882,616)
Closing net book amount AR IR E 76,461 6,552,733 9,342 62,935 458,689 7,160,160
At December 31, 2013 REZ—ZH+-HE—H
Cost A 77,283 10,825,734 13,052 104,051 458,689 11,478,809
Accumulated depreciation and  REHFE R (E

impairment (822) (4,273,001) (3,710) (41,116) - (4,318,649)

Net book amount R T 76,461 6,552,733 9,342 62,935 458,689 7,160,160
Year ended December 31,2014  HE_~Z 44

FZAZF—HIEEE
Opening net book amount NI 76,461 6,552,733 9,342 62,935 458,689 7,160,160
Exchange differences [ 5 (7) 9,547 " 70 (707) 8914
Additions $4n 108,870 3,183 11,319 6,366 739,078 868,816
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) & & /A al (#f#9) - (342,404) - (2373) (7,628) (352,405)
Disposals e - - 2,069 (174) - 1,895
Transfers g (42,766) 726,042 (4,855) 1,315 (679,736) -
Depreciation charge &R - (901,846) (3,001) (11,156) - (916,003)
Impairment charge WEBRR - (141,704) = = = (141,704)
Closing net book amount ERIRTFE 142,558 5,905,551 14,885 56,983 509,696 6,629,673
At December 31, 2014 e 13

FZAZ4—H
Cost WA 154,594 11,148,585 19,970 116,624 509,696 11,949,469
Accumulated depreciation and 2 -8 R f

impairment (12,036) (5,243,034) (5,085) (59,641) - (5,319,796)

Net book amount G 0 142,558 5,905,551 14,885 56,983 509,696 6,629,673



Included in property, plant and equipment as at December
31, 2014 are certain assets directly used in and operated
under the Group’s PSCs with PetroChina in the PRC,
amounting to RMB4,283.1million (2013: RMB4,993.8 million)
comprising cost of RMB8,842.5 million (2013: RMB9,111.6
million) less accumulated depreciation and impairment of
RMB4,559.4 million (2013: RMB4,117.8 million).

The additions of oil and gas properties of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2014 included RMB 5.3million
(2013: RMB10.3 million) relating to the asset retirement
obligations (Note 23) recognized.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, depreciation charge
is recognized as follows:

EPNE Lt
EALA A

Charged to profit or loss
Capitalized into oil in tank

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

AR —EF A =+—H > A8
Ee Lk fE T FEHARK
42831 H & IL(_F — =4 AR¥
4,993.8 F # J0) 1 & T AR 15 A 45 3] i
A T S A o A TR BB T DA
FJARAE o 5% 4 B VR E A S AR N R
8825 HE L(_F— =4 AR¥
9,111.6 | & J0) 41k B 51785 KXk H A
R#4,659.4FH Bt (—F— =4 AR
#4117.8 HEIC) -

AREEBEE -F—NFE+ A =1+—
HIEFEERENMRERES > R T A
RME3FET(—E— =4 AR
10.3 F #J0) 1Y & 5 35 (fffRk 23) -

WEE-EFH =+ —HIL4
B T B

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2014 2013

e L
RMB’000 RMB’000
NREEFTE  AREET
905,142 874,810
10,861 7,806

916,003 882,616
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Impairment test

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each of the CGUs, which are the individual blocks under the
PSCs held by the Group in the PRC, the oilfields under
exploration or production contracts in Kazakhstan, and a
working interest in the USA. The carrying value of the CGUs
is compared to the recoverable amount of the CGUs, which
is calculated based on value-in-use. Value-in-use calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management generally covering a 5-year
period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates not exceeding the long-
term average growth rates for the businesses in which the
CGU operates.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, due to the
significantly lower oil price at the end of 2014, the Group
recognized an impairment charge amounting to RMB29.3
million and RMB125.3 million on the long-live assets
(including mineral extraction rights (Note 7)) relating to a
block in the PRC and the working interest in the USA,
respectively, to reduce their carrying value to the respective
estimated recoverable amounts calculated based on value-in-
use. The pre-tax discount rates used in the calculations of
recoverable amount for the respective CGUs in the PRC and
the USA are 12.0% and 12.5%, respectively.

RIS

B4 7 B T B A AR B R A LR P
4 7 31 23 J8CE () B 8 S T B - TE T T
e iy 4L A B R AR E A [R] £ DL R
TE 5% 1 19 1 SR i o ) e 3 R
o DB 7 BT B R AN B
FE ~ T B SO A AE o B E e R
T 19 B Th 8 (B B HL AT () i B AT LE
> A R i< A DA AE (B A Rk e R
B o AE I 6 09 w1 0 P 0 8 B
Ui o % B A AL I A SR A A B I T )
TUAF P RS TR o i B A DL I ) B
TG R IRE > T A % B A
HIoTE AR R R -

HWE_F-WE+_A=+—HI4
BE S R R AR AR JE AR A
A [ 33 60 455 5 2 B BRREAE 0 1 =R I
fERR T AN 29.3 H #oc i AR 125.3
HE T WAE (M 5E7) - ZERMERE
3 W1y o 45 A Y [ R 9 B 5 A 1 1
SERE a0 IR T (0 TR R DA AE
FIABAE £ AR 0 A 5 AT I e 38 - bl
R B R % I8 B 4 7 B T ][] i 4
FH A B BT AT B 0 £ 12.0% I
12.5% °
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Mineral
extraction Mining
Goodwill Software rights rights Total
T W WA R FRICHE At

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARFT  ARETFT  ARWTE  ARWTR

At January 1, 2013 RZFE—=4#—H—H
Cost A 6,528 16,139 18,625 628,197 669,489
Accumulated amortization and 2SS J e (E

impairment - (10,521) (1,977) (53,093) (65,591)
Net book amount I A 3 £ 6,528 5,618 16,648 575,104 603,898

Year ended December 31,2013 #ZE_-Z—=4

TZA=Z—HIEEE
Opening net book amount AR T 6,528 5,618 16,648 575,104 603,898
Exchange differences T 51 2 3 - (3) (495) (16,996) (17,494)
Additions Hhn - 2,240 - - 2,240
Adjustments kS (3,400) - - (23,457) (26,857)
Amortization charge % - (3,186) (299) (13,833) (17,318)
Closing net book amount A R T 3,128 4,669 15,854 520,818 544,469
At December 31,2013 [ St 3

+ZA=Z+—H
Cost A 3,128 18,355 18,066 585,891 625,440
Accumulated amortization and 2 &4 2l

impairment - (13,686) (2,212) (65,073) (80,971)

Net book amount Y T 25 3128 4,669 15,854 520,818 544,469
Year ended December 31,2014 #HZE_F Y4

TZAZT—HIEEE
Opening net book amount AEAIBR AV (E 3,128 4,669 15,854 520,818 544,469
Exchange differences T 55 - (1) 14 1,830 1,943
Additions s - 5,965 - - 5,965
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) & & 1A F (#719) (3.128) (7) - (26,324) (29,459)
Amortization charge a2 - (2,908) (328) (12,264) (15,500)
Impairment charge (Note 6) Wik (/3 6) - - (12,866) - (12,866)
Closing net book amount A R T - 7,118 2,774 484,060 494,552
At December 31, 2014 R4

+ZA=Z+—H
Cost A - 24,304 18,132 555,874 598,310
Accumulated amortization and 2zt

impairment = (16,586) (15,358) (71,814) (103,758)

Net book amount JR A A - 7,118 2,774 484,060 494,552
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, BEEX-—NER-F—=41+2"H
amortization charge is recognized in ‘depreciation, depletion = H R e A FEA G AR
and amortization’ in the consolidated statement of Hllan =AY [H785 - PrFe Sksy | -

comprehensive income.
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(a) Joint operations

The Group’s development and production activities in
the PRC are conducted through its subsidiaries or joint
ventures, jointly with others through PSC arrangement.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group
has the following joint arrangements which are
accounted for as joint operation in accordance with
IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”.

Daan, Moliging and Miao3 PSCs

The Group and Global Qil Corporation (“GOC"”), a
limited liability company incorporated in Bahamas,
(collectively the “Foreign Contractors”), respectively
hold a 90% interest and a 10% interest in the foreign
participating interest in each of Daan, Moliging and
Miao3 blocks within the Daan, Moliging and Miao 3
oilfield located in Northeast region in the PRC. These
oilfields had been in the commercial production phase
since 2005, 2008 and 2008, respectively, the Daan PSC
would expire after about 10 years in 2024, whereas the
Moliging PSC and Miao3 PSC would expire after about
14 years in 2028.

Pursuant to the respective PSCs with PetroChina the
annual gross production of the crude oil shall, after
payment for value added tax and royalty, be firstly
deemed as the cost recovery oil and shall be used for
cost recovery in the following sequence:

(i) Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by Foreign Contractors and PetroChina.

(a)

eI 58 82

B B E AR TR 0 A R %
PE > it L 2 7] BB A A
o I o S B R A AR S ) o

HE_E-EFFZA=+—HIk
ARRE > ASEE LN LR A0 R
P 0 P A TS i HE R AR 11 5 A
PR T fy L E AR o

KL ~ SERT AR 3 28 dh 40 R A T

A 42 3] B JRK ) B BR Bk A T A F
(DA B8 [3RER A » —Kor
B ERAF > (SR TN AT
D RRAE -~ FEF K3 =0
R Sy A TR (A B 2 B 25
A1 Al B A 90% M 10% 1 1 %5 »
KA~ SR K 39 E Az
A o bl = A [ 4 B AE
FERE S ZBE/EFEMFRN
AR AR I o K& B i
GRS T UARR - AR R
BRI A B 4E 5 S E R
3 A LA TR A L AR F
W A R B A O A 4
$ o

R4 B ep o I Y A B 0
(] o it 9 A 38 A A ST (E
ot B T 6 ok 1) 22 4% - 51 SE AR 2
2 [T > 0 0T A BRI
2

(i) WA T & TR B A i R
FE A B B R LA A



(a) Joint operations (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment recovery
oil shall be used for the simultaneous recovery of
the pilot test costs and the development costs
incurred by Foreign Contractors and
predevelopment costs spent by PetroChina in
proportion of 20% by PetroChina and 80% by
Foreign Contractors. The unrecovered costs of the
parties shall be carried forward to and recovered
from the investment recovery oil in succeeding
calendar years until being fully recovered.

After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 52% and
Foreign Contractors 48%.

The operating costs so incurred after the date of
commencement of commercial production shall
be paid respectively by PetroChina and Foreign
Contractors in accordance with the proportion of
oil allocated to each party.

GOC is entitled to a 10% share of the Foreign
Contractors’ interest in property, plant and
equipment, income and expenses. The Group
received income and paid expenses on behalf of
GOC, which has been recorded in the relevant
accounts with GOC (Note 37).

Kongnan PSC

The Group held 100% foreign participating interest in
the Kongnan block within Dagang oilfield in Hebei
province of the PRC. The relevant oilfield has been in
the commercial production phase since 2009 and the
PSC would expire after more than 13 years in 2027.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(a)

e AL ()

(1) 2 T 10 Wil A 78 5358 43 7E 32
P4 AE 1% > Sl L &
[l Uiz I o 3% A% [ i T o
FR O F2 o T 434 20% KA
T5 & [/ 3 515 80% 1 L i) >
] 2 [0 Wi A1 T 45 [e & i e A
1 5 el B I R A - B A 2
FA B R A i T S A 9 i B
B o 51T R [ K
A J) Bl 5 e T B AR H B AE Y
Eiva Sl T = A S G
o HERBE WA IE -

(iii) AR H &4 (2 HE W e E
all g S A L B % T [k
1% > a2 S0 ) i A B ) R
% V0 20 I R 2% AR 20 B Sz
HLA% w7 il 20 15 52% K 5hJ5
F [A] & 23 Al 48% 1Y LE 4T
TP o

(iv) DG P 2 A i AR PT 7 A 1 £
8 225t 50 53l /o A ik K S 7
A [ 3 H A Tk B R B R
PASCAS e

(v)  BREKA A HE G 5107 5 TR
HEAEE - TR~ ik
A RSB 10% © A
4 A 3R BR Bk A Tl i B
Ao 3 ST SO o A FRIA
W0 B 7 BR B i AT BRI
AL (B EE37) -

FL P 28 b 23 B A TR

AL H A E A R R ALE
R L I 3 22 7 i 0 FRL TR B Ak
I8 22 BELAE 2 (N0 5 4 100% HAHE 2 o
R = e S N HE eSS
WY ELRZE dh o A R I =

AEF I - B[] TR B A R R
T=AF
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(a) Joint operations (Continued)

Pursuant to the PSC with PetroChina, the annual gross
production of the crude oil shall, after payment for
value added tax and royalty, be firstly deemed as the
cost recovery oil and shall be used for cost recovery in
the following sequence:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by the Group and PetroChina.

The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment recovery
oil shall be used for the simultaneous recovery of
the pilot test costs and the development costs
incurred by Foreign Contractors and the
predevelopment costs spent by PetroChina in
proportion of 18% by PetroChina and 82% by the
Group. The unrecovered costs of the parties shall
be carried forward to and recovered from the
investment recovery oil in succeeding calendar
years until being fully recovered.

After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 51% and the
Group 49%.

The operating costs so incurred after the date of
commencement of commercial production shall
be paid respectively by PetroChina and the Group
in accordance with the proportion of oil allocated
to each party.

In October and November 2014, the Group completed
the disposal of the Miao3 blocks and Kongnan block,
respectively by way of disposal of all equity interest of
the relevant holding companies of the blocks (Note

9(a)).

(a)

e AL ()

AR B ep T G S Y A TR > M
HT Y 4 JE2 40 A S A0 (BB % ik
2 AR - i Sl s 2 [
Wi o SIS A0 A5 B 2 [

W

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

WA G 1 2 v A i B R A
YR AR AR B AT K

2 18] A S R % B 23 7E S
FHRIEERAE > B A EE
(] S o 5% 30 [ A I
FH A % ob A7 30 20 A 18% e A
e 3 45 82% Y EL o1 > [ 2
[ W5 5175 & 7] & i 7 2R 9 S
Hl B WA - B
Hh A I BT SCAE Y R B
F o /T #9075 A 18] Wi B B A Bl
WA E IR HIEFEBE
(] i it > 3 S R s B
BRIk -

A H & AF - 765 W el
ik g 0 B A S B A IR i
% > % 30 R AR E B R
5% 350 0 1 VE s LI 40 1 7 i
B4 i 54 51 % oAs 4
7315 49% 1Y ELAEAT 20 TE ©

A U 3 2 O I 7 2 4
{24843 i e of 1 3 A 4
I 7 3 L 0 L A 3
fit -

A AL oy Bl & — AR A A
+— A e R T A B R T
AR HE £ R DL 5E R = [
BN FL P I SRR BE (KR 9(a) e



(b)
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Investments accounted for using the equity (b) F&hEsE P ARMBEE

method

The Group's investments accounted for using the equity
method represent interest in joint ventures.

AL R G A B BB A2
WAL

2014 2013
S
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TRE  ARWTT

At January 1, w—H—H 273,348 181,636
Additions a0 286,722 180,773
Share of losses for the year GONEE R SN b)Y SRR ) (55,432) (68,777)
Adjustment for unrealized gains NE I A2 5 e A B B0 R 15 3 2

resulting from downstream

transactions (5,015) (1,947)
Disposal HE - (13,006)
Exchange differences FEE 54, 7% %A (339) (5,331)
At December 31, B+—H=+—H 499,284 273,348

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, nature of investment in
joint ventures of the Group is as follows:

Place of business/country

Name of entity of incorporation
ALEA BB A ST b ik
Sino Gas and Energy Ltd. ([SGE) PRC/Australia

o B, A 5

e L S e
S H AR A
HEECIR N T

% of interest Measurement

held indirectly method
] 5 5 A HE 5

He il BRIk

51% Equity

HE i ¥
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(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

In July 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of
51% interest in SGE, a limited liability company
incorporated in Australia, whose principal business
activity is the exploration and development of
unconventional gas pursuant to two PSCs, which assets
are located on the eastern flank of the Ordos Basin in
the PRC, from Sino Gas and Energy Holdings Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated in Australia.
Pursuant to the Purchase and Subscription Agreement
(“PSA"), the total consideration payable by the Group is
US$100 million (equivalent to RMB633.2 million)
comprising (a) US$10 million (equivalent to RMB63.3
million) for the purchase of certain existing SGE
ordinary shares payable in cash at completion; and (b)
US$66.3 million (equivalent to RMB420.1 million) and
US$23.7 million (equivalent to RMB149.8 million) for
the subscription of certain new converting preference
shares and loan notes of SGE (“Deferred Subscription
Price”), payable in cash progressively and
proportionally after closing. The new converting
preference shares in relation was held in escrow until
the Deferred Subscription Price being fully paid.

Upon payment of the Deferred Subscription Price for
the new converting preference shares and the loan
notes in accordance with the terms of new converting
preference shares will be released from escrow and
converted to ordinary shares and loan notes will be
issued.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group
has made the Deferred Subscription Price in the amount
of US$43.9 million (equivalent to RMB269.89million)
(2013: US$29.7 million (equivalent to RMB182.6
million)) for the subscription of SGE converting
preference shares and relevant loan notes.

At December 31, 2014, all Deferred Subscription Price
has been fully paid up and converted to ordinary
shares. No shares (2013: 98,624,849 shares) of preferred
shares of SGE owned by the Group are held at escrow.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in its joint
venture.

(b) #RHESEENIRBIIRE (4)

AR - LA AEET
W T B SGE51%HE # 1Y i 1§ >
SGE It & Sino Gas and Energy
Holdings Limited » 2 — R fEE KX
FIEEEEM A R B AR > HEE
W AW E S AR
A7 7% 1B 5 6T 22 1T 4 b i) AR )
B~ BHEE IR R W KRR o
R PR U B B 8 W 1% 5k (LA T fT AR
[RRME R ) > A 42 1) B A1 3K
B /100 & F oo (FHERNAR
#633.2H & T ARE) - A5 (a)
TESE M LA & Z A0 F E %0
(fEM AR 63.3H B IL AR
FA BB SGE B/ EAT A I 5 (b)
66.3 A # 30 (GFEN AR 420.1
) X237 BT (FER
N ¥149.8 F 8 o) B4 F L 32
W5 SGE i %5 11y m] #8465 o I I &
SO (LLR R TR AT 5R A
) o R TE T W T L 2 AR A L
Bz DL SA o RE SRR ]
AP 10 PR 2 3K S A 208 i 2 A
RZ AT -

AR B 6 K S AT 94 8% A T i
SE e e B AR LR IR A R I (E 2
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A S A 2 A i Sl BT R
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a*J\w?;b% °

BEF-WETF A=+ —HE
B ASEE M SGEHR L T 43.9
HE R (FER AR 269.89H
Bo0) (ZF—Z4F 1 297 H#E ETT
(ZZERANR¥E1826 A IT)) 1)
IEAE GRS E K > F LARR B SGEW
R 51 R A B R R R o

AE—ET A =1—H BT
A0 A S A 2 2 S S AN i 4
R o AL EAAEAE R REE S
A SGE M e B ( — & — =4
98,624,849 Ji%) -
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(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity

method (Continued)

Summarized financial information for joint venture

Set out below is the summarized financial information
for SGE, which is accounted for using the equity

method.

Summarized statement of financial position

Current

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Total current assets

Borrowings
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current
Assets
Loan from shareholders

Net assets

B
Bl KBl &5 EHY
oAty i Bh

) A

fE K

A 37 38 5 £
B A AR
FE B

HE
BT K

FEE

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(b) 2 HE 4R A MR B $ 8 (4)

R fie 3 RPN N

SGE W Z B BRI T - A ]

DAME £ 75 AR ©

WHEB BRI E
As at December 31,
R+ _A=1+—H
2014 2013
SEWE %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt NRHET 0
123,077 54,600
25,121 17,836
148,198 72,436
(34,707) (27,180)
(380,614) (398,274)
(415,321) (425,454)
1,394,819 1,032,341
(271,916) -
855,780 679,323
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(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Summarized statement of comprehensive loss

Revenue A
Depreciation and amortisation expense {72 K #f5 2 Fl
Share based payment JBe 53 S At
Foreign exchange losses BTN

General and administration expenses & H # J{]

Geological & geophysical expenses BT % b BR ) B 2
Loss before income tax ek Pt 5 6 i 4B K%
Income tax expense P e B & W

Loss for the year AAEIE R

Total comprehensive loss for the year A4 43 2 485

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the joint venture adjusted
for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint venture, and not the Group’s share
of those amounts.

Major differences in accounting policies between the
Group and SGE

SGE adopts full cost method for its gas exploration and
production activities. Under this method, all costs
incurred in exploring for, acquiring and developing oil
and gas reserves are capitalized, regardless of whether
the results of specific costs are successful, as
exploration and evaluation assets and will be
transferred to oil & gas properties, and ultimately being
depreciated on the unit-of-production basis upon
production phase of the project in future.

The Group adopts successful efforts method, and
certain expenditures incurred and capitalized by SGE
would not be qualified for capitalization under
successful efforts method; therefore, such expenditures
were expensed off to ensure consistency with the
Group's policies.

(b) 2 HE 4R A MR B $ 8 (4)

WHELGAHERE
Year ended December 31,

®ET-H=1+—H
2014 2013
—PY4E TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt INEEY i e
42 14
(385) (327)
(3,606) (928)
(3,501) (2,137)
(62,334) (45,624)
(38,906) (86,939)
(108,690) (135,941)
(108,690) (135,941)
(108,690) (135,941)

DA _E B I WA A S B B B
RN 2B Gl JE A = A
U AF BB A 3 D o 3l KR AEAS 4R
S A S M T BOR A 22 1A
S

7k 4 8] H SGE 1y 3 6 it By o %
#

SGE % H ISR 5B PR S/ 7 106 B

ERMAERH - RETTET
FOER ~ HETHORN B 3% 0 I K R IR SRk
BRI A > Aw A R
T > PR aE R R AL R AR
PR BAEE i > ISR E AR
FRA T R ACTH H A 7 [ B % B0y
BIREATIE -

ASE BB BCRE S > (ER% Tk
T > SGEJRLE B4l AL I 45 E
AT §$1M"1¢F AL
I O PR — RSO
#RAL -



(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity

method (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Summarized financial information

Opening net assets January 1

Capital injections from shareholders

Discounting impact of
shareholder’s loan

Loss for the year

Currency translation differences

Closing net assets

Interest in joint venture (Note)
Adjustment for unrealized gains
resulting from downstream

transactions

Carrying value

Note:

FEYFEE — —H—H
FCHTE &
P B B B R

REEARK
NI 22

ERTE R

R (H7E)

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(b) #RHESEENIRBIIRE (4)

NELAL 52 5 788 A2 B R B B A 15 3

i i {0

According to the PSA, the Group is entitled to 51% of SGE's profit or
loss and net assets acquired after the acquisition, except for the
abovementioned loan notes provided by the Group, which was solely
provided by and entitled to the Group. As at December 31, 2014, the
Group's subscription represents 51% (2013: 30%) of SGE's net assets,
among which the loan notes amounted to US$23.7 million (equivalent
to RMB146.4 million) (2013: US$12.1 million (equivalent to RMB75.4

million)).

il 2 55 S 1 ) B
1 22 1 5 R
2014 2013
“F g —F=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETFIT  ARMTIT
655,571 634,491
269,894 180,773
16,829 -
(108,690) (135,941)
22,176 (23,752)
855,780 655,571
506,246 275,295
(6,962) (1,947)
499,284 273,348

W -

MRS > A4 2245 SGE Wi i 1% 18 2
T 07 6 (B bl s 2 [ B2 16 ) 0 S %
H8) B1% I35 > I3 e A R IR 58 & AR 4
P A A RS o A AR
A=1—H » AL E G SGEIF & &
HI81% (% — =4F £ 30%) » Hrh S b
G237 HE T (FER AR 1464 H
WD) (CE—=4F 120 R TC (BRI
R 75.4H # L)) ©
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(a) Interests in subsidiaries (a) TAWIHELR

As at December 31,

S
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARWTT

Investments, at cost: BB A
— unlisted shares — I LR 5,137,810 1,968,025
Less:provision for impairment W BRI (1,104,987) -
4,032,823 1,968,025
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEM T2 F 5KIE 45,530 819,399
4,078,353 2,787,424
Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost, which TP A E DUSA AR > S5
is the fair value of the consideration paid. The additions SATEME R 2 A o T RIURF
of investments in subsidiaries for the year are as BTG T A A
follows:
Year ended December 31,
BKET-H=1—HIL4EE
2014 2013
wes =11 2 TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG T ANRETT
At January 1, W—H—H 1,968,025 1,739,866
Establishment of new subsidiaries HSL T - 12,194
Investment adjustment of share DA77 R 14 438 Y
based payment (10,766) 2,993
Capital contributions BTAREE = 372,724
Transfer of directly held subsidiaries  H1 B # F2A 790 (M)
(Note) 3,531,507 -
Disposal of subsidiaries B T F) (M (1) (i)
(Notes (i) and (ii)) (358,089) -
Exchange differences [ 58, 7% %A 7,133 (159,752)
Impairment charge (Note) YR WAE RS (HfaE) (1,104,987) -

At December 31, »+—H=+—H 4,032,823 1,968,025



(a)

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

On August 6, 2014, the Company’s immediate subsidiary, Ml Energy
Corporation (“MIE"”) transferred all the shares and related rights and
obligations of two intermediate subsidiaries, namely, Gobi Energy
Limited (“Gobi”) and Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh”) to the
Company, by way of equity distribution. After the distribution, Gobi and
Riyadh become immediate subsidiaries of the Company and MIE
became dormant. At December 31, 2014, an impairment loss of
RMB1,104,987,000 was recognised to reduce the carrying value of
investment in MIE to its net book value.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade related,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. They are part of the Company’s net
investment in these subsidiaries as the Company does
not expect a repayment from these subsidiaries in a
foreseeable future.

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries
at December 31, 2014:

Country of Principal activities and Place
Name incorporation Kind of legal entity of operation
s AR R TG RE RS
Gobi Energy Limited Cayman Limited liability Production and sale
("Gobi") HEHE company of oil in the PRC
Ll S=G AT e Rt i
Riyadh Energy Limited Cayman Limited liability Production and sale
(“Riyadh”) B2 REE company of oil in the PRC
AREEAR TER B R T
Emir-Oil, LLC (“Emir") Kazakhstan Limited liability Production and sale
Wi SE R partnership of oil and gas in
HRERAHEE  Kazakhstan
TEMR T STRTE A B
1 S
Asia Gas & Energy Ltd Cayman Limited liability Investment holding
(“Asia Gas") T company B
AREEAH
Camel Oil and Gas Technical PRC Limited liability Research and technical
Service (Tianjin) Limited i company development in the PRC

ARGHEAT

TEPEIEEBE RE A%

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

F o E B (A

(a)

B E-PEAAANH s AAFMEETA
Al MIRETE 2 7] ([MIE ) A %5 2 B i =K
5 T 5 A 1 T 5% T 1 ) RBE RE TR N )
([ X Rk J) Fn 0 AEAS AR IR 2 = (T RIAERS D) iy 42
TR~ M4 KRR AL o FEARK
Ay EAR - SRE R REAS R AN R E T
AN s MIE R AT A6 BURD b 0 B AR 24
FEREEY - N F—E+ A =+ —
H o #EsR T — 4% /5 AR 1,104,987,000
JERIAE IR > B MIE (9 4% 0 % 1 4 38 36k

O LR T O R

TS T8 LRI 2 IR B oy 1~ JRAE
i~ AR O R >
JRAS 2 F B2 F R AR A
Gr o A AR AT R R AR AT

W7o AR R A IR -

REFE—ES A=t

BT ARESIRMT

Ho> &

Proportion (%) of ordinary

Particulars of issued share shares held by
GALPES NINE Ji R S e (%)
Non-
The The controlling
Company Group interests
A LR e
100 ordinary shares 100% 100% -
of 1 US$ each
100540 M B %
100 ordinary shares 100% 100% -
of 1US$ each
1005 4mM - Blk—F1
Charter capital of the 100% 100% -
partnership being
82,300 KZT
BB EEEA
82,300 2%
4,990 million ordinary 92.18% 92.18% 7.82%
shares of 0.001 US$
each
4,990 7 i -
0.001 %50
Registered capital 100% 100% -
of US$2 million
AMER2HEF T
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(a)

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group
disposed of two directly controlled subsidiaries with net
assets in aggregate amounting to RMB385.1 million
(2013: nil) for consideration in aggregate amounting to
US$104.3 million (equivalent to RMB638.8 million)
(2013: nil). The disposals resulted in a total gain
amounting to RMB259.4 million. A summary of these
disposals is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

On August 20, 2014, the Company entered into an
agreement with a wholly owned subsidiary of
China Qil HBP Science & Technology Corporation
Limited (“HBP"”), an A-share listed company
incorporated in the PRC, pursuant to which the
Group disposed of all equity interest in Pan-China
Resource Limited (“PCR"”), which is the holding
company of the Group’s Kongnan PSC (Note 8(a)),
for a total cash consideration of US$83.1 million
(equivalent to RMB508.8 million). The disposal
was completed on November 28, 2014. As of
December 31, 2014, RMB508.8 of the disposal
proceeds have been received by the Group.

On September 26, 2014, the Company entered into
an agreement with Pacific Energy Development
(Asia) Co. Corporation, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of
Seychelles, pursuant to which the Group disposed
of all equity interest in Miao Three Energy Limited
(“Miao Three"”), which is the holding company of
the Group’s Miao3 PSC (Note 8(a)), for a total cash
consideration of US$21.2 million (equivalent to
RMB130.0 million). The disposal was completed
on October 21, 2014. As of December 31, 2014,
RMB46.4 million (Note 23) of deposit and US$7.5
million of the disposal proceeds have been
received by the Group.

(a)

F o E B (A

W F

WE+—"A=+—HIt

FERE S AREEMLI104.3 H # EIC (%
fE N #6388 H & L) (&
— AR ELBEEE TR
BEIETERI AR > BTN F
AR AR 385.1 A Bt (=
T F) o EEEA TG
ANR #2594 H &L AN - T
o8 R B EAR IR

(i)

(ii)

AR —UAENH ZFH
AR N ) BN F) R FE I B
R B3 BRZA 7 (DL iS4
[#EWARDMEEFAHA
(FZ%N ) B A o B G M AT
WA BET T e &R > U
83.1 1 # 0 (F N AR
508.8 | &5 i) 1E /5 HHEH &
¥z FEREUR A | (DL R AR
[IZFEREUR ) 0 ir g e - 32
e R YR AR A2 [ 7L M R R Y
P A A (Bt sk 8(a)) 22 5 it
—E— D_II$+ H—=+/\H
5E ), ° —ESH
=+ —H . KEBCIRE E
BEIAFIE I AR ¥ 508.8
HETT -

\—~7

AoE-WERA AR
H » A&/\# 5 Pacific Energy
Development (Asia) Co.
Corp (— Z 1F % & W 5 i &
S AHREALAR) #5578
Bl 2123 B E (%
AN H130.0 5 &) B
S SHE R = AR R A W)
(AN B 78 TR —Re IR 1) /9 fr
HIEAE o i = BETR A AR A
%Jﬁﬁﬂﬁbﬁﬂﬂ“%“ﬁ i)
7k8(a)) I G A —HF— U4+
A+ —H%M it &
—mEF+ZH=+—H K
EEC U H 46.4 5 8 NRH
PR E (F5E23) B B A
P75 H BT -
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Note: Adjustments represent mainly goodwill and elimination impact

of inter-group transactions.

(a) Interests in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) TAvIHER (%)
At the respective date of disposal, the assets and 12 2 BE PR B = AE TR i B H HI
liabilities of PCR and Miao Three are as follows: EREMAMIRIT ¢
PCR Miao Three Total
ZHRBR B = RE IR it
At November 28, At October 21,
2014 2014
ZEF ZEAE
+—AZ+\H +AZ+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT AT ANE#T T
Total current assets WEEEA
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RB & EY 14,952 2,023 16,975
Trade and bills receivable JRESHE S AN 2 23,921 2,515 26,436
Prepayments, other receivables TR~ H A
and other current assets FEC Al 5 ) i 23,552 8,882 32,434
62,425 13,420 75,845
Total non-current assets FeRBE E A
Property, plant and ERS NG
equipment 269,022 83,383 352,405
Intangible assets G 26,324 7 26,331
Financial assets at fair value PAA (R H S E R A
through profit or loss HMBERN S MG E 27,295 - 27,295
Deferred tax assets IR P B 189 17,331 17,520
Other non-current assets HAb s & - 375 375
322,830 101,096 423,926
Total current liabilities WA A
Other payables ot AT 3K (13,420) (6,618) (20,038)
Other current liabilities HAbE A & (37,128) (29,015) (66,143)
(50,548) (35,633) (86,181)
Total non-current liabilities T B A i et
Deferred tax liabilities AL TR B (25,193) (229) (25,422)
Other non-current liabilities HoAth I i) A R (754) (2,348) (3,102)
(25,947) (2,577) (28,524)
Net assets Wi 308,760 76,306 385,066
Consideration HE 508,785 129,964 638,749
Less: Cost of disposal W R E R A (3,740) (1,484) (5,224)
Adjustments (Note) o 0 I 1 e () 10,930 - 10,930
Net assets FEE (308,760) (76,306) (385,066)
Gain on disposal (Note 25) JE B (ffaE25) 207,215 52,174 259,389

BFGE - A T AR T A A 5 R

W -
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(b) Loans to subsidiaries

(c)

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, loan to subsidiaries is
unsecured, bearing interest ranging from 4.86% to
11.86% per annum and is not expected to be repaid
within one year from the balance sheet date.

Disclosure of interests in subsidiaries
Material non-controlling interests

As at December 31, 2014, total amount of non-
controlling interests is RMB7.5 million, of which
RMB41.5 million is for Asia Gas and the remaining is
attributed to Condor. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that these non-controlling interests are
not material to the Group.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB and KZT held in
the PRC and Kazakhstan, respectively, are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the countries, other than through
normal dividends.

(b) T¥awEEX

(c)

L i =
FSE P A= —H o PFA
A2 RN - L8 i
R 4.86% 5] 11.86% » H W) 6 %
PR R F L4 R -

0> Wl HE 3 3 B
K Y 4 i A2k 4

ATE—EFA=+—H > ¥k
PRI S AR 750 &
76 > Hh AR 41.6 5 #0)E Asia
Gas > H:# J& Condor o A /A 7 #

R 1 M B I o M AR i AR 4R
FHBARTEK o

R PR

43 Rl H B B ey T v T HE AN R
HER S FR AT OB & OEIAE R > B
JEURE ST AN A8 PR ) B
i SO b 7 A R A 1) S 1 B
T IE A S oAb BT A
R -



(a) Group

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(a)
Loans and
receivables
Bk e HE Wk
RMB’000
NG BT
December 31, 2014 —ER g
+=-H=+—H
Assets as per statement of 1 5 [ IR I % 10 & &
financial position
Available-for-sale financial 7] fit {8 4x fil & 5
assets =
Trade and other receivables Ml i 3k & HoAt RE N R
excluding prepayments ANEHEFEAT K 835,471
Cash and cash equivalents ¥l 4x J% 34 %5 {54 689,208
Restricted cash 7 PR 3 4 152,366
Total st 1,677,045
Liabilities as per statement of PR B 6 R 0 3 1 £ 1
financial position
Borrowings R

Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Total st

Aot R B B LA A 35
AL IR R A

Wl

Available-for-
sale

o[ fit Hy
SR B
RMB’000
AR T

75,541

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Fo At 4 b £ £ -
T B AR
RMB’000

ARWTIT

4,514,333

1,046,271

5,560,604

Total

At
RMB’000
NG ST

75,541
835,471

689,208
152,366

1,752,586

Total
At

RMB’000
ARKF T

4,514,333

1,046,271

5,560,604
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(a) Group (Continued)

December 31,2013

Assets as per statement
of financial position

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Trade and other
receivables excluding
prepayments

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Total

Liabilities as per statement of

financial position
Borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding  JEfHHE &% HABERT 2k >

non-financial liabilities

Total

Loans and
receivables
B
JE WK
RMB’000
NG
ot Sy
+=HA=+—H
35 B 25 00K 0 8 Y O s
AL A i
JARE Mg M T S A
REN K > AR
TE AT 3K 759,423
PIA S B R H
Higmst ABEH
Ll -
W& S8 274,529
% PR il Bl 4 48,955
i 1,082,907
R 0 B 75 0 O 3 1) M
3K
N ERE S =L
st

(a) %M (%)

Assets at

fair value

through
profitor  Available-
loss for-sale

DL FOfE

A A
e A fR CIE i
) S lE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TFIE AR%TIC
- 50,422
7,791 -
7,791 50,422

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
H A 4 P A
PG A

RMB’000

NRHET I

3,649,503

1,369,250

5,018,753

Total

Mgt
RMB’000
AR T8

50,422

759,423

7,791
274,529
48,955

1,141,120

Total
st

RMB’000
ARHET T

3,649,503

1,369,250

5,018,753
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(b) Company (b) W]
Loans and Available-for-
receivables sale Total
o[ fit Hy
Bk B MWk SR B At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRW Tt ANRW T YN T
December 31,2014 —E Y4
+ZA=+—H

Assets as per statement of 1 5 [ IR I % 10 & &
financial position
Available-for-sale financial 7] it {8 4> il & i

assets - 32,707 32,707
Trade and other receivables Ml i 3k & HoAt RE N R
excluding prepayments ANEHEFEAT K 197,383 = 197,383
Cash and cash equivalents ¥l 4x J% 34 %554 218,681 - 218,681
Restricted cash 7 PR 3 4 132,272 - 132,272
Total i 548,336 32,707 581,043
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
At 45 b £ £ -
i B A At
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNGRL T N T
Liabilities as per statement of R B 6 oA 00 2 1 £ 1
financial position
Borrowings EE 4,169,243 4,169,243
Trade and other payables excluding {2 f HiAt E ATk
non-financial liabilities ANEFE I A 139,206 139,206

Total Hast 4,308,449 4,308,449
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(b) Company (Continued)

December 31, 2013

Assets as per statement
of financial position

Available-for-sale financial 7] it i £ 4 fil & &=

assets

Trade and other
receivables excluding
prepayments

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Cash and cash equivalents 4 } il 4254

Total

Liabilities as per statement of

financial position
Borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding

non-financial liabilities

Total

Loans and
receivables
B
JE K
RMB’000
NG
ZE =4
e
R B5 0 5 IR 0 3 1
JARE AT M % A,
BV > ANEdE
TSI 87,110
DI S B R H
FEH AR
A RlVE -
52,637
5T 139,747
HR 5 B 55 1R O 2 1) £ 1
R
JARE AT R B S A B A5 B
LTS IE 5 R A AE

(b) 2wl (%)

Assets at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
LA B (E
A HH s
[ WNE
1
RMB’000
PNERY i A

7,626

7,626

Available-
for-sale

GIRE ey
A
RMB’000
AR TI6

17,478

17,478

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
H A 4 P A
PG A

RMB’000

NRHET I

3,689,503

89,331

3,678,834

Total

Mgt
RMB’000
AR T8

17,478

87,110

7,626
52,637

164,851

Total
st

RMB’000
ARHET T

3,689,603

89,331

3,678,834
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Group Company
M AW
2014 2013 2014 2013

SECWE CF-SF SR CWE ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARWTT  ARBTE  ARMET

At January 1, r—H—H 50,422 3,966 17,478 3,966
Exchange differences [ 52,25 38 (762) (335) 19 (335)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WO T/ ) - 27,991 - -
Addition S| 71,986 - 29,152 -
Net (loss)/gain transfer T (kR /s A

to equity (Note 20) i (it 20) (13,942) 27,762 (13,942) 13,847
Disposal e B (4,868) (8,962) - -
Disposal of a subsidiary & & AR (it 9(a)

(Note 9(a)) (27,295) - - -
At December 31, w»+_A=+—H 75,541 50,422 32,707 17,478
Represent: (ORI

Listed securities: i

— Ordinary shares — USA — T — EH 3,671 17,478 3,671 17,478
— Public trading securities — W5 ES
— Hong Kong (Note) — & (Hfat) 24,100 - 24,100 -
— Public trading securities — bW sES
— Ireland (Note) — BWW (M) 2,951 - 2,951 -
Unlisted securities: E ik e
— Equity interest — R 42,834 - - -
— Corporate debenture — NTAlE 1,985 - 1,985 -
Contingent consideration o H BHE - 32,944 = -
75,541 50,422 32,707 17,478
Market value of listed securities I Ti7 3 T 53 (& (H 30,722 17,478 30,722 17,478
Note: B
These public trading securities are accounted for as equity investments as they MR RS B Ay i s A B E I A > AT 34T
have no fixed maturity and are callable at the issuers’ option, with initial N H TR - AR MR B - %S S

interest rates from 5.45% to 6.75%. YIEFI R W H] 25 H 5.45% % 6.75% ©
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The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are A [E] ) R R H A A EE LN S B R
denominated in the following currencies: B EEAT
Group Company
£MH |
2014 2013 2014 2013

SECWE CE-SF SR WE ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARWTT  ARMTE  ARMET

Us$ %L 67,429 50,422 24,595 17,478
HK$ Hhi 1,985 - 1,985 -
RMB N 6,127 - 6,127 -
75,541 50,422 32,707 17,478
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cash flows FEHEHNAABEERREIA SR E
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and RT3 R 3 2L R TR R R A 1 R
risk premium specific to the unlisted securities (2013: nil). g (8 (& — =4F « ) BBEHE - &
The fair value are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy FEEAE -~ B 56 =T R (L
(see Note 3.3). 7E3.3) °
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is A B A - A5 R Y S e R R
the carrying value of the debt investments classified as Jy ] B S RO ) AR T A -

available-for-sale.

None of these financial assets is either past due or impaired. S TRl A A 2 M ol DRk (. o



At December 31, 2014, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are summarized as follows:

Amounts due from related
parties (Note 37)

Loans and other receivables

Receivables arising from
realized gain of oil option

Interest receivable

Consideration receivables from
disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 9(a))

Deposits

Advances to employees

Less: provision for impairment

Value-added-tax recoverable
Prepaid expenses

Advances to suppliers

Current income tax prepayment

Current
Non-current

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

AR —EF A=+ —H > AR
TH - RS ARG T

Group Company
M A7
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+ZA=+—H Rt+=A=+—H
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-WE ZF-=F ZEB-NE CFSF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR  AR¥%TT ARETE AR¥TC
JRE AL PV 3 I (Y 37)
375,519 270,606 = -
PR B At RE i 128,341 147,631 35,518 26,590
Al EH
16,925 - 16,925 -
TSRS 7,698 3,571 339 -
JRE NS B T R IR
R (W7t 9(a))
84,071 - 84,071 -
s S 58,131 57,921 58,131 57,921
B T4 5,829 6,569 2,401 2,599
676,514 486,298 197,385 87,110
W BE A (1,090) (2,106) = -
675,424 484,192 197,385 87,110
RN (E R 71,107 62,114 = -
oz Tadifl 25,855 7,592 = 158
FUTIR 41,610 28,898 = -
TASCE W TSR 18,406 1,333 = -
832,402 584,129 197,385 87,268
TE) 622,013 549,188 197,385 87,110
FE) 210,389 34,941 = 158
832,402 584,129 197,385 87,268
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At December 31, 2014, other receivable due from Pacific
Energy Development Corporation (“PEDCQ”), the non-
controlling interest of the immediate holding company of the
Group’s working interest in the Niobrara shale oil and gas
assets in the USA, amounting to US$9.4 million (equivalent
to RMB57.6 million) (2013: US$8.8 million (equivalent to
RMB53.6 million)) was past due but not impaired, of which
US$0.3 million (equivalent to RMB1.8 million) was settled in
February 2015. This receivable originally had interest at 10%
per annum and due on August 31, 2014.

In February 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
PEDCO and PEDEVCO Corp. (parent company of PEDCO),
pursuant to which the Group acquired all non-controlling
equity interests in Condor (subsidiary of the Company) held
by PEDCO and 10%-15% working interest held directly by
PEDCO in the Niobrara shale oil and gas asset at a total
consideration of US$4.2 million (equivalent to RMB57.6
million). The consideration is settled by offsetting to the
other receivable due from PEDCO, and PEDEVCO Corp.
assumed the remaining balance. Also pursuant to the
agreement, the remaining balance of other receivable due
from PEDEVCO Corp. amounting to US$4.9 million
(equivalent to RMB30.1 million) will bear interest at 10% per
annum and due in whole together with all accrued interest
on March 8, 2017.

In addition to the above, in January 2015, the Company
entered into an agreement with Asia Sixth Energy Resources
Limited (“Asia Sixth”, a limited liability company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands) and Caspian Energy
Limited (“Caspian”, a Canadian listed company) pursuant to
which Caspian assumed other receivable due by Asia Sixth
amounting to US$4.9 million at December 31, 2014, and the
term of the receivable is modified from interest-free to 10%
per annum and due in whole together with all accrual interest
on October 31, 2018.

At December 31, 2014, except for the aforementioned
receivable due from PEDCO and Asia Sixth, all other
receivables are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
term of repayment.

ZE—WEFTZH =1+ —H > #Pacific
Energy Development Corporation
(TPEDCO) i) HAth JEE i3k (PEDCO 2 4
SR B — Z A 3£ B H 5 4 ¥ Niobrara 3224
THSRCE S 11 PR BRRE 1Y B R S W IR
PEHIERERL) W94 B E T (5
R ANRES7.6 W EIT) (ZF— =4
8.8 # L (G HIN ARH53.6 [ #L))
C 2 W E A e (- Hrh0.3 71 &5 36T (55
ERAR¥1.8HE T Ok —F —IF
T A o TE S R SR OIE AR R R
10% > Wk —F—IENAA =Z+—HE
0 -

AT —HAET R AR PEDCO K&
PEDEVCO Corp. (PEDCO H 28 7 ) %%
ATk KM RAEEES A
PEDCOH4 i Condor (A/A I A F/2A 7])
Ji% HE ) }2 PEDCO 7E Niobrara £ & il &
E E A 10%-15% W VE 3RS > A%
EH42HEET(SEEMARIG76H
HG) o w%BHE 4 A PEDCO 3K IH
JICHY > #2%E H PEDEVCO Corp. /&¥E o
MR ek > 5%%E% PEDEVCO Corp. Y
At B SRR BR A 4.9 TT 8 25 T (IR A
R¥301HEIL) FMEH10% > ZFE
REE SO G RLEAS R = F — L E=H
ANEEE:i

bk 2 Ah > A&\ T B Asia Sixth Energy
Resources Limited ([ Asia Sixth],— %
G I A o A T B S E BR AT A )
J% Caspian Energy Limited ([ Caspian],
—FINER LA 5T Wk #EH
Caspian/K & A8 A &) # & = F — P 4¢
T HA=+—HEiL Asia Sixth 1149 H
BRI o WM R Ak I B s T B
10% 19 4F I 3R > AR 4 B TR 2 01 B RS B iR
ZE = )NFETH=Z—HE -

AOE-AEF T H =+ —H o BB

M1t PEDCO % Asia Sixth ZHE LSS » H
My 5 oy SEEHE T 4 ) B, HL4EE [ S £ 2R )
{0



Movements on the provision for impairment of advances to
suppliers, loans and other receivables are as follows:

At January 1, w—H—H,
Unused amounts reversed 7 A 4 AF i ]
Exchange differences i 53, 75 %H

At December 31, R+—-H=+—H,

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘other gains/(losses) net’ in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The other classes within prepayments and other receivables
do not contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of prepayments and other receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The fair value of loans and receivables approximates to their
carrying amounts.

At December 31, 2014, the carrying amounts of other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

TR AR~ R L At R S B (L
BT

2014 2013
“F g —F=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETFIT  ARMTIT

2,106 2,171

(1,024) -

8 (65)

1,090 2,106

3B T 9 WAk T A 19 i A i ] 2
TRTE & e el & [ AR, (]
KIJA e

TR A R AR Y AR A
OB & A o s B KBS R
B I % DA b 2 R i) 45 TR A R HLAth e
WAL P B T (L o AR 4 TSI R 0 A AR A
PELR i AF S KA o

B ORI SR R Y 2 e f (L B HL AR T <
AL

RoFE—WETZH=Z+—H - HAbE
AT ) R T B A 31 6 3 BLASL

Group Company
45 |
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+_H=+—H R+ —H=+—H
2014 2013 2014 2013

SEOWE oS CRCWE CFo=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTG  ARMTE  ARETE  ARWT

Us$ E 387,261 261,064 150,985 87,110
RMB NG 284,750 210,180 46,400 -
KZT 225 4,503 15,054 - -

676,514 486,298 197,385 87,110
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Trade receivables from PetroChina JRE Wi R T R B R (Mt 37)

(Note 37)
Trade receivables from other third parties FEILEE =75 IR

Unbilled receivables from PetroChina RGEBME P R

Less: allowance for impairment Bk A B U M A

of trade receivables

Trade receivables — net JRE WA e R T A

The fair value of trade receivables approximates their

carrying amount.

The aging analysis of trade receivables were as follows:

Up to 30 days L 30 H
31 — 180 days 312180 H

The Group’s trade receivables have credit terms of between
30 days to 180 days. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, there
were no trade receivables past due which are impaired.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the trade receivables do not
contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

As at December 31,

R+=A=t—H
2014 2013
I
RMB’000 RMB’000

VNS ANRMET T

94,339 167,190
10,197 28,982
54,421 76,953
158,957 273,125
158,957 273,125

JRE SRR 2> o M i S FL AR T < REAR AT o

JEWCHR RIS A AT 0 T

As at December 31,

“t=A=t+—n
2014 2013
L
RMB'000  RMB'000

AR¥TR AR¥TT

158,764 273,094
193 31
158,957 273,125

A [ S R K15 I 5305180 H -
W E—ER ZF—Z4F A
= —H o BRI AT T A I e (R Y e
R -

BoFE-NFERF-=ZF+ A
=t —H BERIACESCHMESE
E o AR H > BRI (S R B o
A J I A SR ) R T B (L A 4R B R
FEA AR T4 £ b A 5 KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

13. Trade receivables — Group (Continued) 13. BEBCE — S (5)
At December 31, 2014, the carrying amounts of trade R E-WNE+F A=+ —H > BEIE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: A BRI E A DL 5 & B

As at December 31,

RE-A=+—H
2014 2013
—EoNE A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETI  ARWTIC

uss$ En 128,204 227,340
RMB NG 27,444 42,605
KZT B 3,309 3,180
158,957 273,125
14. Inventories — Group 14. #+8 — %H
As at December 31,
w+-H=+—H

2014 2013
—E A e S S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR  ARWTIT

At cost BA
Oil in tank JEE A7 13,902 10,783
Materials and supplies WrRL B AL I 27,144 34,052

41,046 44,835
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Group Company
AW
As at December 31, As at December 31,
B+—A=+—H R+—A=+—H
2014 2013 2014 2013
SE-WE CFSFE SR-NE . Sk
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR  ARW%TT ARETE AR¥TC
Current L)

Oil hedge options E R 7,626 - 7,626
Warrants R BHE RS 165 - -
7,791 - 7,626

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were
settled/expired during 2014, and no interest were held at
December 31, 2014.

20144 AT A AR B (EFHE B Bt
AHE R AR 1 B R A S N > B
T—PaEt A =+ A ARER -

Group Company
45 |
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+=A=+—H R+=A=+—H

2014 2013 2014 2013

“F-mE %= I L S S
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFE  AR¥ETT  AR¥TIL ARW¥TC
Current WL 139,411 37,071 132,272 -
Non-current FE W E 12,955 11,884 = -
152,366 48,955 132,272 -

Current restricted cash is interest bearing and represent bank
deposit pledged for bank borrowings and notes payable, and
is denominated in RMB.

Under the laws of Kazakhstan, the Group is required to set
aside funds for environmental remediation relating to its
operations. As at December 31, 2014, the Group had
restricted cash balances amounting to US$2.1 million
(equivalent to RMB13.0 million) (2013: US$2.0 million
(equivalent to RMB11.9 million)) set aside for this purpose.
Management is unable to estimate reliably when these
amounts will be utilized, and therefore, these amounts are
classified as non-current.

A Bl 2 P i) B 4 i 11 2 SRAT £ B M A
SRR R G O SRAT A7 3> I AR R

& o

AR 1% 50 W dH ko AR EZE AR B
536 < S B FL SE 5 AH B 1 BRI KA ©
WEFE—NETZH =+ —H > REMH
AE UL H B2 SR 4 5 2.1 OB SR T (%%
ERNR¥E13.0F #ot) (& — =4
20 B EIL(FEMARE1.97\ &
J6)) o B K BE T SE LA T RZ S
N B YRR IR > B S S
BB A E o
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Group Company
S V|
As at December 31, As at December 31,
B+—A=+—H R+—A=+—H

2014 2013 2014 2013
SR -NgE ZF-=F DR NgE R4
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARWFE AR¥TIT AR¥WFE AR¥TC
Cash on hand 4 187 154 17 26
Cash at bank AT 689,021 274,375 218,664 52,611
689,208 274,529 218,681 52,637

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

Bl KBS EY LTSGR AL

Group Company
45 |
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+=A=+—H R+=A=+—H

2014 2013 2014 2013

“F g —F—= R g _F =
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFE  AR¥ETT  AR¥TIL ARW¥TC
RMB N Y 69,383 70,342 - -
uss$ FEIT 576,300 173,579 186,502 52,581
KZT 15 11,226 29,247 - -
HK$ i 32,179 1,276 32,179 56
Other currencies HoAth 5 s 120 85 = -
689,208 274,529 218,681 52,637

RMB — denominated deposits are placed with banks in the
PRC. The conversion of these RMB — denominated deposits
into foreign currencies and remittance out of the PRC are
subject to certain PRC rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. Also,
the exchange rates are determined by the PRC government.

There are also exchange restrictions and currency controls
relating to converting KZT into other currencies. KZT is not
freely convertible in most countries outside of Kazakhstan.

DA BB A9 47 A7 JBO H I 35 1 4R
T o ot %2 N RO AT 3 e 40 2 S0 f BEE
HH B 2R S B R AR A A T
A7 EE A, P AR 9] B R L o [R] IR - R ) E ¢
R P B R R E o

R T BAL Lt A L 1) S 0 52 3 i o PR AR
Lo B WA > Ho— A AT AE R T v
MBS B ZOEAT B L o
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Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At January 1, 2013

Issuance of shares for
exercise of employee
share options

At December 31, 2013

Shares repurchase and
cancellation (Note)

At December 31, 2014

Note:

HoF—=F—A—H
1 47 G T 9815
2t

o
+ZA=+—H

e 5 1 B (L)
L
+oA=t—H

Number of
shares

Jit
(Thousand)
Tk

2,647,841

1,450

2,649,291

(17,134)

2,632,157

In October and November 2014, the Company repurchased in aggregate
17,134,000 ordinary shares, all of which were subsequently cancelled, from
open market at a total consideration of HK$17.2 million (equivalent to RMB13.6

million).

CoEHAT I O e AL
Group and Company
HE KA
Ordinary Share

shares premium

Jie A% JBe A% i 15
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW#ETE AR¥ETG
17,629 836,374

9 2,122

17,638 838,496
(105) (13,509)
17,5633 824,987

Wit

Total

Hask
RMB’000
AR¥ET o0
854,003

2,131

856,134

(13,614)

842,520

R EAET ARt A AAFI IS 17.2
T (SN 13.6 T E R A BHERE A BT
355 [ B 4851 17,134,000 17335 48 B 16 i 4% 516 L 23 5

8
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AR TBR A LR 45 S A 8 FBCHE A i
TS ERERT BIRE RS a0

(a) B 52 i B <2t 380 (DA T Fi A

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes and stock
appreciation rights adopted by the Company are as follows:

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009 with the
purpose of providing additional incentive to employees,
directors and consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under the Plan.
The Company has undertaken that no further options
shall be granted under the Plan upon its initial public
offering. Any options granted prior to the initial public
offering remain subject to the ordinary vesting and
exercise provisions set out in the award agreement. A
total of 4,422,000 shares originally reserved for the Plan
were cancelled upon the initial public offering.

(i) Stock options under the Plan

The options granted under the Plan are evidenced
by an option award agreement between the
Company and its employees that contains, among
other things, the number of shares granted and
provisions concerning exercisability and forfeiture
upon termination of employment, as determined
by the Board of the Company.

Vesting schedule. The options granted under the
Plan vest over a two or three-year period following
a specified vesting commencement date. Typically,
the options granted vest at each anniversary of the
grant date within the vesting period, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each
vesting date.

[wt#])

KAFERGH EENEF—H
b H TR AR B B i I 4 5T
B BIE S B E SR RO
BRGEEEFWTHAR - W5
& B ~ % 5 K@ SRR SN L o
AN ) R JE TH B 6,072,870 K 4
JBE LAY A 07 B SR 4 T ) - AR
A AR RS HAE B A BB IR
TERZHT #) T AN AT AT o] oAt i
BE o ATAu] 7675 B S5 R wiT 452 o 1) T e
AT LAGR B - 300 B 03438 A 4 D
T v ) 3K 4 AR R B e A
| T 1 S AR
4,422,000 B £ B IR B 5 B IRE
sy -

() Rl b 2 AN A

AR B A3 5 B P <2 51 ) 452 1y
F1 St IR HE DA AS 2> ) BRLL R B
2 T A B U B JRD W o 2 TR
i o % ek S (R LA )
JiEeqnyiatiaivk (QEP S IR
AR AT B8] 8 s ) T AT 4
Lo RIS (A R R
GITRE) o

Bt J8 1 ) o AR B0y 5% i
w4 R R S 1
S g AL 4 1 O B A 1) T 4
AR A B o — Bk
i o BT AR Y B BCRE AT R
YA A A A T
H B i - M2 B JHR 4 B
J& B R
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(i)

Stock options under the Plan (Continued)

Right to exercise. The term of the options granted
under the Plan will not exceed ten years from the
grant date. Upon termination by the participant or
termination of the participant without cause by the
Company, any portion of the options that had not
vested on or before such termination shall lapse
immediately; any portion of the options that were
vested before such termination to the extent not
exercised within thirty days after such termination
shall also lapse. Upon termination of the
participant due to the participant’s death,
permanent disability or injury, the options remain
subject to ordinary vesting schedule and exercise
provision where the option agreement permits.
Upon termination of the participant by the
Company for cause, any portion of the options not
already exercised lapse immediately.

Movements in the number of share options and
their expiring date and exercise prices under the
Plan are as follows:

(a) B 5 i B <2t 380 (LA T fi A
[wt&1]) (41)

(i)

2014
e S U3
Average
exercise price
per share Options
TR
(53114 i
At January 1, R—H—H US$0.15 20,127,386
Exercised EATHE -
At December 31, R+-A=Z+—H US$0.15 20,127,386
Expiry date FWA
November 20, 2019 “E-Et—HA-t+H US$0.13 17,048,120
November 23, 2020 “EZEREF-A =R US$0.25 3,079,266
20,127,386

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, all the Share
options were exercisable.

it B v 4 5 G i B HE (45)

176 FE o AR5 B 17 5 i B <
A A B S R ) B A
TR Ch o N R
AF o S PR Th i A AT B
Fh 22 B3 A7 ok B AR % ) A 4
76 Bl R BAR 2 ) e A 2
S 2 iy T O B BCRE > B
W) oA AT o B D O A 1
R B R RS = B
Ak o e S PR Th A0 W RS
2 BLE W) B #IE R
2 A% 4L SR A R AR A 1k 4R
0 M AT 8 o ) S AT
JH 1 S I o B ) & AT
{0 AR 23 ] P A A 22 B
& ATEARAT 8 B4 % B HE B 4
PN

%t v R AT B PR
WoH - LB A R AT HEM Y
ST

2013
ZE—ZAE

Average

exercise price
per share Options

FHTHE
(53l it
US$0.14 21,577,386
US$0.13 (1,450,000)
US$0.15 20,127,386
US$0.13 17,048,120
US$0.25 3,079,266
20,127,386

A TR PR e TR AR
+oH=Z+—H AR
A3 8 1) B8 T ARE 359 5 i A7 (9 B
JBCHE -



(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(ii)

Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan

Stock appreciation rights granted under the plan
are evidenced by a stock appreciation rights award
agreement between the Company and employees
that contains, among other things, the number of
notional ordinary shares to which the stock
appreciation rights relate and the provisions
concerning exercisability and forfeiture upon
termination of employment or consulting
arrangement.

Vesting schedule. Stock appreciation rights
granted under the Plan vest over a three-year
period following a specified vesting
commencement date. One-third of the stock
appreciation rights granted vest at each
anniversary of the grant date within the three-year
vesting period, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee or a service provider
on each vesting date.

Right to exercise. The term of stock appreciation
rights granted under the Plan will not exceed ten
years from the grant date. When a participant
exercises the stock appreciation rights, the
Company will pay such participant an amount in
cash determined by multiplying (i) the excess of
the fair market value of an ordinary share on the
exercise date over the grant price by (ii) the
number of notional ordinary shares to which the
stock appreciation rights relate stated in such
participant’s exercise notice.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(a) B 5 i B <2t 380 (LA T fi A
[wt&1]) (41)

(ii)

it B v 4 5 B M 48 £

AR {7 5 i P < ) 452 oy
9 JBE A3 8 B DA AR 2 W) % f
B TR B9 — 173 e A3 348 R0 HE 4
Ve b e 2 B RE o W Tih ek S
(CH A L4 ) S 9% (ELRE AT B
19 44 28 U 7 BB M A 1R
B R ) 2 P 1k AR A B
17 384 (B RE BRI AT (64 2 B2k
L

Bt JB 1 ) o AR B0y 5% ) P
R BB B 1 38 (EHE TR
15 7€ i 8 B n B4R = 4R
[ T 5 g o =7 2 — B BT AR
e A7 33 (B REAE = 45 it 0 )
[l PR 9 4% 8 % 20 4 Jed i
H B i - M2 B JHOR 4 B
J& B A3 2% i B B S B fA
7% o

1718 HE o RRAR I 5% i M <
w83 L B IR 3 HE O
R AR H R S
A o il 2 B AT BB 3
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EEE L - AR 4
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TP FLAT 288 5 o BT 2 51 9 (i)
— B R AT A T
550 SO B (B AS HAT HE A 9 22
R LA (if) Jie A7 3 (B HEAT R 19
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(ii)

Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan
(Continued)

Movements in the number of stock appreciation
rights and their expiring date and exercise prices

(a) It

33 Jih 1 < Wt 2 (DL 5 1

[wt&1]) (41)

(ii)

under the Plan are as follows:
2014
e L
Average Stock
exercise price  appreciation
per share rights
TR
K B A 48 0
At January 1 R—H—H US$0.13 42,066,302
Granted ofET HK$1.40 3,000,000
Lapsed RN US$0.13 (1,136,612)
Exercised el -
At December 31 Rt+-A=+—H US$0.13 43,930,190
Expiry date FWA
November 20, 2019 “E—Et—HA-+H US$0.13 40,475,546
February 26, 2020 CECFEEZH - ARHE US$0.26 454,644
March 19, 2024 ZERCEZH LA HK$1.40 3,000,000
43,930,190

At December 31, 2014, out of the 43,930,190
outstanding stock appreciation rights (2013:
42,066,802 stock appreciation rights), 40,930,190
(2013: 42,066,802) stock appreciation rights were
exercisable.

i wt B e i i By 38 6
(#1)

% sl 8 PR R AT (O R
FEEMEEH - B A AT

REE RSB IR
2013
ZE—ZIE
Average Stock
exercise price  appreciation
per share rights
TR

ik gl At

US$0.13 44,415,800

US$0.13 (2,348,998)

US$0.13 42,066,802

US$0.13 41,612,158
US$0.26 454,644
42,066,802

HoE—E+ A =
H > 43,930,190 {3 i & 17 fifi
B B 3 38 (B ME (% — =4
42,066,802 1) # 40,930,190
Py (=% — =4 : 42,066,802
13) T T AT A Ay 34 (L RE -



(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules

As approved by shareholders of the Company at a
meeting held on November 27, 2010, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“Scheme”) in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The Company’s directors may, at their absolute
discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for the shares: (i) any employee (full time) of
the Company or any of the subsidiaries, including any
executive Director; and (ii) any non-executive Director
(including independent non-executive Director) of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall
be the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the Offer
Date; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of any outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(b) i B HE S 8] (R % b vi 5 B
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5 TR RIS B E AR E SR —
TEH ) B T RERT &) (LU A8 [ 5%
AFE)

Wi IR R ) B 7E ph AR R g E 2
S IR - 1R S I S A
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(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have been lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company) to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.
An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be notified by the directors to each
grantee, which period may commence on the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made (“Offer
Date”) but shall expire on the day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary of the Offer Date.

Settlement of share options

On March 21, 2014, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to all holders of share option awards under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited adopted on November 27, 2010
for the settlement of the vested awards under the
Scheme at a cash consideration of Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$") 0.20 (equivalent to RMBO0.16) per share. As a
result, a total cash payment amounting to
RMB10,385,000 was paid to the holders of options to
acquire a total of 65,358,066 ordinary shares of the
Company for settlement. The estimated fair value of
these share awards at the date of settlement was
HK$0.50 (equivalent to RMBO0.40). Accordingly, the
payment made to the holders of these share awards on
the settlement has been accounted for as a deduction
from equity.

At December 31, 2014, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Scheme
and remained outstanding was approximately 5.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue at that date. Options
granted under the Scheme together with the options
under the Plan and remained outstanding as at
December 31, 2014 were approximately 5.9% of the
Company’s shares in issue at that date.

(b) i B HE w8 (R % b vi 5 B

1B &) (&)

R 52 5 S T 1) B AR 2 WA ] oAt
T PG R 30 T 519 T 4% M 1) 4 T R
HE (R 45 A48 0 RO RE 5t ) B A A
A o At i AR 3 4 e 3 L R
S5 B4 B JBERE ) i T RE T DA EEAT 0 I
HREE > ARREER BT RE
BT EE B 10% o

TR AL PO AL T I IBCRE 2
28 H R He R W IBOHE o AR A I A hE T
G K > AR$E N T AE S A%
FRAE N R S0 R A B ey 22 B B 0 A T
o S FHE R BRAT 4 A
JHE e H 30 (LT fi R T i H
)RR > R A AR R AR
H Al — H i o

Ji FB HE o] i

ATESPUAEZA A H o Bk
TBEELTSI L EAE+ L
o ARNFR D —RE+— A
b BRI RE T (LA
T ERE TR # ) > ER Gk
TR AR ) B IRE ST R 09 B
RESE ) A B T TR
BT 0 C 15 48 B DL AR 0.20 95 o
(ZAE N 0.16 70) Y BHME AT
RE4EE o 45 AR % 10,385,000
TG SC AT 4G T BEHE R A A LA ) i
65,358,066 Mt 45 /A 7 B 5% o [ul i H
PO S B A 0.5 00
(BN ANERHE0.470) o JEIL > [
S 8 T REE AT Y R o 2R A
EEO

HE _F-EF A =+—HIk
AERE S WERERERE BN BT T R
o RATRERR 4> > AIEAS A R R%
HE ST immlims51% - &=
TR AE A S Wk
R ) S 0 S8 S I 4 5T 1) 1 r g
T R P RATRESS 2 0 KA
28 H R R OH BB AT T
5.9% °



(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
options under the Scheme held by employees
(including directors) and movement in such holdings
during each of the two years ended December 31, 2014

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(b) i B HE w8 (R % b vi 5 B
1B &) (&)

e E Al R A 7 A T (R 3
) AT AT 8 10 90 PR
FoWERCE - SF A
=t FRAE R BE S5 ) 4

and 2013: BN -
2014 2013
e S 12 —ER-=
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per price per
share Options share Options
P4 B P AT
Ik 1R (53 AR
At January 1 ®—H—H HK$2.254 107,815,000 HK$2.254 110,461,000
Granted w7y HK$1.4 97,280,000 - -
Lapsed Bk HK$1.66 (5,762,579) HK$2.254 (2,646,000)
Settled RA]: HK$2.254  (65,358,066) - -
At December 31 #+=H=+—H HK$1.66 133,974,355 HK$2.254 107,815,000
Expiry date FMA
September 20, 2021 “EZHERHAZTH HK$2.254 40,702,734 HK$2.254 107,815,000
March 19, 2024 “E CWAEZHA T IUH HK$1.4 93,271,621 - -

At December 31, 2014, out of the 133,974,355 options
(2013: 107,815,000 options), 40,702,734 shares (2013:
71,876,666 options) were exercisable.

133,974,355 107,815,000

ATFE—IEFH=+—H &
133,974,355 13 A 47 {19 1l i HE o
(—&F— =% :107,815,00017) »
40,702,734 ( = & — = 4
71,876,666 173) 7% AT 47 {8 B A o
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(c)

Options to acquire shares of subsidiaries

In September 2011, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, has granted to a consultant option to co-
invest with the Company or its subsidiaries for up to
9.9% of the assets acquired within 36 months from the
closing of the transaction for general consulting
services rendered to the Group in connection with its
acquisition of Emir (the “ACAP Options”). These
options will originally expire on September 30, 2014.

On September 16, 2014, the Company reached a
termination agreement with the holder of the ACAP
Options for the settlement of the outstanding ACAP
options at a cash consideration of US$11.9 million
(equivalent to RMB73.21 million), of which US$3.57
million (RMB22.0 million) has been paid to ACAP as of
December 31, 2014. The ACAP options ceased to have
any force of effect from the date of termination
agreement.

In December 2012, the Company has granted to a
consultant option to co-invest with the Company or its
subsidiaries for up to 9.9% of the any equity interest,
assets or business acquired within 24 months from the
closing of the transaction for general consulting
services rendered to the Group in connection with its
acquisition of (the “Essentia Options”)). These options
will originally expire on December 14, 2014.

On September 22, 2014, the Company reached a
termination agreement with the holder of the Essentia
Options for the settlement of the outstanding Essentia
options at a cash consideration of US$3.7 million
(equivalent to RMB22.64 million), which has been fully
paid to Essentia as of December 31, 2014. The Essentia
options ceased to have any force of effect from the date
of termination agreement.

(c)

A - 2 ) Je o i P

— XA A E R LA
A B [ 0 E i IR 42 1 — iR 5 Al
W5 - AEREBE X EE TR
57 %kt 2w — TE I [ BE
(DAF fdj 7% TACAPHAHE |) > (15 5%
Al 23 ] A HETE 52 5y 58 MUK 19 36
I8 A R BAR 23w BOH A 1 7 36 1R
BB T I WS Y B 9.9% £
Jedrs o W% HIHE I E A S = — DU 4R
JLA=+HE -

ATE—PUAESLH N H s ARATE
B ACAP Options I £ A % %2 il —
@%mmm:UHsﬁﬁimfé
B NRH73.21 0 #0) B4 ¥
18 > #&1kw% M R B WA LR g
M, HAF357H EE (AR
22.0F ®oT) B —E -+
A =+—HTHifITACAP - A # 1t
Bk % 5T 2 B - ACAP Options
R o

—FEMARN - E——E+ TR
TEAS s A A 12 20 A IRF R AR — i
FEFA RS - AN A T R% kA F

— JE LA B MR R R R
[Essentia AME 1)) > (1553504
F A REAE 22 5 58 AR 1 248 H R
BRLAC S T s A A A Ty L R 455
JIT Wi B 1) e 9.9% 2 IR
ZIRE R E i —F— I E+T A
+ U H 4 -

ATER—PUEILA T H s AR
] Bl Essentia Options M #5545 & &
&R > DA3.7 A # T
(ZFEPARB 2264 H#0) B4
HHE > ks R B B I FE A
L SR A A e 11 [ S L
— T — H A2 # 4 T Essentia - B
# b W # %5 5] 2 H O > Essentia
Options N AL »



(d) Fair values
Share options and Stock appreciation rights

At December 31, 2014, the fair value of stock
appreciation rights and share options outstanding is
determined using the Binomial Model and the Black-
Scholes model, respectively; their fair values and
significant inputs into the model are as follows:

2009 Grants
“ERNERT
SAR IR 7 8 i b
2014 2013
Rl ZF-=
Us$ us$
EI E
Fair value per unit FHTAREE 0.03 0.11
Share price at grant date 1% 7 H (g = -
Fairvalue pershareat  MIKBHRAAEE
period end 0.1 0.21
Exercise price frHEfE 0.13 013
Volatility (%) R (F ) 51,57 66.24
Dividend yield (%) ER (H7HL) 354 -
Annual risk-free rate (%) 4F 2 |2
(B/HL) 1.64 5.89
Remaining term (year) — FIBRHAR (4F) 4.88 2.07
* The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously

compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of
daily share prices over the last five years of both the Company
and comparable companies.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(d) 2 RfEfE

Ji Bt B JBE i 394 6

ACE—EF A=+ —H K
A7 REE 11 103 406 (AR S I PR 19 2 7
B 43 51 B7 A — TE 20 2L i Black-
Scholes #5 f& 5& 5 H O ARE(E K&

FEMASEIURIT ¢
2010 Grants 2014 Grants
“R-RERT “E-NERT
SAR JBt By S b
2014 2013 SAR Share options
“F-NE = Tt 35 1 i I
Us$ Uss$ HK$ HK$
*7 ES g i
0.02 0.09 0.29 0.66
- - 1.40 1.40
0.11 0.21 0.82 -
0.13 0.26 1.40 1.40
51.34 65.00 54.09* 54.09*
354 - 2.07 2.07
1.69 6.16 2.34 2.34
5.15 217 10.0 10.0

* T A R R SRS A 1 A A 22
PRI AT AU i 2 TLAR A T
AT L2 R HBCAR B I LT o
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(i)

Group

At January 1, 2013 RZF—=H—H—H
Currency translation differences 41T %4
Revaluation of available-for-sale i & 4B 5 i 7
financial assets — gross fhilH — A (it 10)
(Note 10)
Revaluation of available-for-sale [ ff it & 4 4 i 47
financial assets — tax (Note 21)  fii(f — 4 (#f7£21)
Reclassification of accumulated /M &l (i £ 4
change in value of B R 2
available-for-sale financial - Mg
assets upon disposal — gross
Reclassification of accumulated ~ F/M§iE B it i & 4
change in value of BEERZHED
available-for-sale financial -#%
assets upon disposal — tax
Employees stock option scheme {ft B B it {341
— value of employee services ~ — {F B IREF(E(E
— exercise of employee options  — /71 {E & i tHE
Shares purchased under Share [ 4 Bt 31 57 6 Iy

Award Scheme (Note (a)) (il (a)
Dividends on repurchased EREEL A e
shares held in trust Tl

Options granted for investment /Al 3t £ &
in subsidiaries (Note 19(c)) (7 19(c))

Partial disposal of interestina /il 74 Al
subsidiary (Note 36) (it 36)

At December 31, 2013 R-F—=k
FoAZ-R

Repurchased
shares held
by trust
(Note(a))
ERE

I
(M3t (a)
RMB'000
ARHT

(12,530)

(50,240)

1,976

(60,794)

Currency
translation
reserve

SNEES k
RMB'000
INFL ST

(60,432
(28,418)

(88,850)

Share based
payment
reserve

ety S M
RMB'000
ARHTF I

88,983

26,549
(954)

67,839

182,417

(i) M

Safety fund
reserve

FRESR
RMB'000
ARHTIE

187,356

187,356

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

e
SREE
RMB'000
AREF T

21,162

(3.479)

(5,458)

1,365

20,190

Others

Hfb
RMB'000
I S

(270)

1,117

1,447

Total

it
RMB'000
AREETT

203,107
(28,418)
21,162

(3.479)

(5,458)

1,365

26,549
(954)

(50,240)
1,976
67,839

1,117

241,766



(i)
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Group (Continued)

At January 1, 2014

Currency translation differences

Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Reclassification of accumulated
change in value of
available-for-sale financial
assets upon disposal — gross

Reclassification of accumulated
change in value of
available-for-sale financial
assets upon disposal — tax

Employees stock option scheme
— value of employee services
— settlement of employee

options (Note 19(b))

Settlement of options to acquire
shares in subsidiaries
(Note 19(c))

Dividends on repurchased
shares held in trust

At December 31, 2014

Repurchased
shares held Currency Share based
bytrust translation payment
(Note(a)) reserve reserve
fartfih
I i .
(M7t (a) SMHTERER IO S A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FE  ARWFE  ARWTFI
REF—NE-H—H (60,794) (88,850) 182,417
PSR - 4,001 -
ik R
BHE - - -
BENBEE L E SR
B BERER
- W
E Ao
B EE R 2
- Bie
1 5 M et
— [EERBEE - - 33,652
— [ R B M
(3t (19)(b) - - (10,385)
BIET AR R AR
(HtzE19(c)
- - (95,855)
ER szl TG vE!
il 970 - -
R-B— 4
+ZAZ+—H (59,824) (84,849) 109,829

(i) S (&)

Safety fund
reserve

ZRIESRM
RMB'000
ING T

187,356

187,356

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

ki
SRR
RMB’000
YN BT

20,190

(13,942)

(8,457)

2114

(95)

Others

e )
RMB'000
NI BT

1,447

1,447

Total

At
RMB'000
ARHT

241,766
4,001

(13,942)

(8.457)

2,114

33,652

(10,385)

(95,855)

970

153,864
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(ii) Company

Repurchased
shares held by
trust (Note(a))

R REREA B
T (3L (a))

RMB'000
INGLS T

At January 1, 2013 BW_F—=4—A—H (12,530)
Currency translation differences $M4 3 48 -
Employees stock option scheme 1 & B i it &1

— value of employee services — [ BIRFE(H -

— exercise of employee — Frifif B B
options -
Revaluation of Wk SR E T

available-for-sale financial ~ f{ (47 10)

assets (Note 10) -
Shares purchased under Share [ {74 a1 &1 5 £

Award Scheme (Note (a)) (it (a)) (48,264)
Options granted for investment 7 -/+ il JE[f £ &

in subsidiaries (Note 19 (c)) (i 19(c)) -

At December 31, 2013 REF—-=
+ZA=+—H (60,794)

Currency translation differences A1 472 %% -
1 5 et

— value of employee services  — 1 & FRF¢ {5 (8 -
— 17

Employees stock option scheme {

— exercise of employee fHi{E B A
options -
— settlement of employee  — [l {t B R A
options (Note 19(b)) (HtzE(19)(b) -
Revaluation of G R
available-for-sale financial & Ffh(E
assets -
Dividends on repurchased {5 5C 547 [l i
shares held in trust Veliokiell 970
At December 31, 2014 RN

FZAZF—R (59,824)

Capital reserve

FAGH
RMB'000
ARHT

1,366,956

1,366,956

1,366,956

(ii)
Currency

translation
reserve

ST et
RMB'000
AREF

(56,365)
(148,984)

(205,349)

12,211

(193,138)

A
Share based

payment
reserves

KRtk
RMB'000
ARMT T

88,983

4,166

(954)

(5,341)

86,854

19,472

(7,284)

99,042

Available- for-
sale financial
assets
At
SHEE
RMB'000
ARBT T

13,847

13,847

(13,942)

(95)

Total

M5t
RMB'000
INiL S

1,387,044
(148,984)

4,166

(954)

13,847

(48,264)

(5,341)

1,201,514

12,211

19,472

(7,284)

(13,942)

970

1,212,941



(ii) Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Shares repurchased under Share Award Scheme

To supplement the 2009 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the
“Plan”) in respect the operation of the share appreciation rights
(“SAR"), the Board of Directors of the Company resolved on May
30, 2012 to adopt a share award scheme under which the
Company will grant the SAR holders number of awarded shares
of the Company (“Awarded Shares”) that is equal to the number
of outstanding notional SAR shares held by such holders; and to
establish a trust to purchase up to 44,415,800 Awarded Shares
from the market with cash contributed by the Group. The
Awarded Shares will be held in trust for the benefit of the SAR
holders and pending the exercise of the SAR (“Selected
Grantees”). Upon exercise of the SARs, the trustee will sell the
Awarded Shares to which the SARs so exercised relates and pay
the Selected Grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations under the Plan.

During the year ended 31, 2013, the Group repurchased and sold
a total of 36,692,000 shares at a consideration of RMB54,951,000,
and 2,348,998 shares for the benefit of the SAR holders for a
consideration of RMB4.7 million, respectively. During the year
ended December 31, 2014, the Group received a dividend on
shares held totalling to HK$1,200,000 (equivalent to RMB970,000)
(2013: HK$2,482,000 (equivalent to RMB1,976,000)). At December
31, 2014, total shares held in trust under Share Award Scheme
amounts to 42,065,002 shares (2013: 42,065,002 shares).

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

I SBC A3 B ) B 073

A 2 36 T JUAF BR A0 1 8 07325 gl 7
Gl ) H 073 8 (R S B 1
Wize > AN EFGR _F— F
H = B AE ek R A — TE I 0 5% )
wha o B R R G A LR
SE A > T AT 2 B Ay B H
LIRS RPNl e I P S
PATHEEE o AL LS -
WO 2 e N R T By ] AN R
44,415,800 i S5 J8h 1% 0y > 3l U ETE
SCARHEAT T3 1 (R ME T v R AT HE N B
(DAT RS [ 46 B 38 0 B ) #5947 » A
Dy (B HEATRERRY > 32 58 A 5 B
A HE 43 FE B8 14 25l Gz 073 316 S A5 45 4
TR 5 > LUBAT AN R BT B B 4
S TN 4w BT 0 s 0 2 RE ST B 1
AT FERS -

HEE-ZFETF A=+ HILE
BE o AR Ay R DL ON R
54,951,000 7 [l Ji 3F 5 & T 3t 5
36,692,000 A% » S LAB A7 35 (E HE S5 A
NEZ@Hm N EHEA ANREEATH
9T I 222,348,998 - # F &
—PE+ A=+ B IR A
[ 52 5E N5 T S e 38 R 4 2 s
#1,200,0000C( 1 & N R ¥ %
970,0007C ) ( = %F — = F: ¥
2,482,000 G (#1 & N 471,976,000
JL)) o AR —AE A H = —
H oo A58 mh st 8006 T b2 56 AF5 A
1Y 481 ¥ 5 42,065,002 B (% — =
4E : 42,065,002 %) -
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Deferred tax assets: R AL B I B
Deferred tax assets to be recovered ST 124181 ) 458 i ] ) 208 7
after more than 12 months BlIHE
Deferred tax liabilities: EAEBLIE £ 15 -
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled A 121 F A% 1 1 11 208 4
after more than 12 months BiIE & &
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled A 1218 1A 7 2 1 28 4
within 12 months Tl 7 £ f

Deferred tax liabilities — net

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At January 1, w—H—H
Exchange differences [ifE 58, 75 #H
Acquisition of a subsidiary il /N

Tax credited/(charged) to

profit or loss (Note 30)
Charged to other comprehensive income
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 9)

2 FTA oMb A WA A A
Ji BTN (it 9)

At December 31, w+—H=+—H

As at December 31,

S EA R
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETG  ARMET
20,538 40,783
(311,373) (260,150)
(1,598) (1,322)
(312,971) (261,472)
(292,433) (220,689)

RIEFT IR AR R S B T

2014
SE
RMB’000
ARHET 5

(220,689)
(316)

West, (B F) A HE 2 HERR (K 30)

(79,330)

7,902

(292,433)

2013
R
RMB’000
ARHET T

(260,135)
8,623
(1,134)

34,071
(2,114)

(220,689)
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during 9 JE R TE A A B N A A TR Y s
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of (VR AT 25 i &5 B n 1 [a] — 5080 [k IR 88 )
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: RN
Deferred tax assets 3B S0 e 1 B

Accelerated Asset

tax  retirement
depreciation  obligations  Tax losses Others Total
BRI W B Bidi Hfl st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTE  ARWTET  ARKTL  ARWTE  ARWTR

At January 1, 2013 R_ZF—=4—H—H 44,819 9,750 40,240 6,675 101,484
Credited/(charged) to Wegs/ (B ) MRS RERR
profit or loss (5,760) 2,557 14,527 41,398 52,722
Exchange differences T A - (216) (1,425) (760) (2,401)
At December 31, 2013 I S
+=-HA=+—H 39,059 12,091 53,342 47,313 151,805
(Charged)/credited to (F ),/ s 145 45 TE R
profit or loss (3,105) 460 13,191 (14,395) (3,849)
Disposal of a subsidiary(Note 9) & & T\ (Hf#9) (16,415) (981) - (124) (17,520)
Exchange differences fE 5. 75 38 - 29 137 232 398
At December 31, 2014 e I3

+ZH=+—H 19,639 11,599 66,670 33,026 130,834
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Deferred tax liabilities

At January 1, 2013

T AR E
AN LEGIELE S

Adjustment to provisional fair
value in relation to acquisition
of a subsidiary

(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss

Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

(1) /a4 5 FERT
2 I F At i A T
HEE 5226 7

At December 31, 2013 R_E—=

+=A=t—H

(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss

Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 9) & & T/ 8 (M 9)

Exchange differences e i 7= 4

(1) /Wi g 48 5 e

At December 31, 2014 nF P4

A S i

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

I 2 4
RMB'000

NRWET 7T

(240,834)

(23,141)

7,454

(256,521)

(79,789)
10,203
(348)

(326,455)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-
forwards and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that the realization of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At December 31, 2014, the Group
did not recognize deferred income tax assets of RMB55.1
million (2013: RMB1.6 million) in respect of losses and
temporary differences amounting to RMB157.4 million (2013:
RMB6.5 million) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Losses and temporary differences amounting
to RMB6.5 million (2013: RMB6.5 million) and RMB157.4
million (2013: nil) will expire in 2018 and 2034, respectively.

3B S e ¢ B £ 1
Fair value
gains of
mining
rights Others Total
PRURHEL £
A oAt At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARWETE  AR¥®TH AR¥TT
(120,785) - (361,619)
5,864 (6,998) (1,134)
3,614 876 (18,651)
- (2,114) (2,114)
3,670 - 11,024
(107,737) (8,236) (372,494)
2,896 1,412 (75,481)
8,395 6,824 25,422
(366) - (714)
(96,812) - (423,267)

S ] G 10 G 4B B nT I R 22 R R
A A T S R > R AR AR T
FE A 14 R A JRE SRR AR T B B 0% AR
B B 4 fERR o A —F— N4+ A
= H AR R T B SR Pl i A B
FIT 45 4% W01 i 18 R0 B M e LN R
1574 B on(—&F— =4 A\R¥6.5
BT MERR AR AE BT AR A N R 55.1
AET(CFE—=4: AR¥16H %
TG) o AT ME AN BL AT 1S A5 T 4R
6.5 M (E =4 ARW65HH
JC) MR B NR 1574 H E o0 (—
T AR ) A Rl R — AR
T = PUAEF| ) -
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As at December 31,

w+_A=1+—H
2014 2013
e o111 42 —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F 7t NG BT
Trade payables JREASH MK 682,005 920,254
Notes payable JEASH B % 27,107 148,283
709,112 1,068,537

Less: non-current portion of trade W FE B AT IR 2K

payables (54,739) (46,113)
Current ) 654,373 1,022,424

BoEFE-NERFE-=Z4F+ A
ZA—H o BRI AT S R AR 2>

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the aging analysis of the
trade and notes payable is as follows:

MR
As at December 31,
w+_A=+—H

2014 2013
SEROWE R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANRETT
Up to 6 months ik 6 i A 427,290 656,530
6 months-1 year 61MfH =14 176,906 232,232
1-2 years 1% 24F 68,275 144,342
2-3 years 2 £ 34 19,139 28,853
Over 3 years Z i 34F 17,502 6,580
Total A5 709,112 1,068,537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

22. Trade and notes payable — Group 22, JEAT IR S AT IR — £ H
(Continued) (%)
The carrying amounts of trade and notes payable are JE AT R 35 Az IR A5 2482 1) B TG 4 %E DA R 41
denominated in the following currencies: B AN
As at December 31,
mt+-H=+—H
2014 2013
R NAE CFE—ZAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFIT AR¥TIC
RMB PN 400,864 767,335
US$ S 7,178 10,589
KZT 25 301,070 290,613
Total A5t 709,112 1,068,537
The fair values of trade and notes payables approximate their JREAST MR TR B JE AT S 1 2 e A (T B R

carrying amounts. T 4B AR o



Amount due to related parties
(Note 37)

Asset retirement obligations
(Note (a))

Interest payable

Salary and welfare payable
(Note (b))

Special oil levy

Withholding and
other tax payable

Deposit received in relation to
disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 9(a)(ii))

JE AT BR 5 7 BOH (W2 37)
HERERY (il (a)

REAT IR
HEAH 387 < Do AR A (Wit (b))

i i
PRANFCRBE B A E B

JEE T AR BT &
(KfaE 9(a)(ii)

Payable in relation to settlement e} 45 E ] g2+ 7

of options to acquire shares of

subsidiaries
Other payables

Less: non-current portion of
— Asset Retirement
obligations

— Withholding tax payable

— Other payables

Current

B W A I

HoA AR

0 RRE 2
— EERERY

— RAnfamt
— HA AR RIR

B

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

Group
M
As at December 31,
R+ZA=+—H

2014 2013
SEWE R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETIE  ARWTIC
- 61,293
54,684 56,372
75,627 65,784
47,713 79,515
31,910 104,145
71,409 123,289
46,400 -
50,971 -
109,477 117,264
488,191 607,662
(54,684) (56,372)
(28,611) (38,314)
(58,055) (50,738)
(141,350) (145,424)
346,841 462,238

Company
N
As at December 31,
R+ZA=1+—H
2014 2013
SENE E
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIE AR¥TIC
74,617 65,666
25,903 54,261
7,663 17,442
46,400 -
16,715 23,665
171,298 161,034
(7,663) (17,442)
(7,663) (17,442)

163,635

143,592
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Notes: i
(a) Movements of asset retirement obligations are as follows: (a) H A E IR ¢
As at December 31,
B+=H=+—H
2014 2013
e S K 3 mE=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF e PN T
At January 1, B—H—H 56,372 45,090
Additional provision FHANE 5,346 10,327
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 9) BT (B 9) (3,925) -
Accretion expenses a2 5,550 2,034
Exchange differences [ifE 50, 2= HH (8,659) (1,079)
At December 31, w+—_H=+—8H 54,684 56,372
(b) At December 31, 2014, included in salary and welfare payable was stock (b) AT T S H o REA A S
appreciation rights liabilities of RMB9.2 million (2013: RMB30.5 million) BRI o, A R B AR D 1 JE AT R A 48 [
both for the Group and the Company. WA NREI2HE L (T =4 A

R¥30.5 HEIT) -

The carrying amounts of provisions, accruals and other HEM > FEIR M HAL BRI S FE LT
liabilities are denominated in the following currencies: BT
Group Company
£M A
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+—-HA=+—H w+_A=+—H
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZRPAE TR SR PE RS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETRE ARWTT AR®ETRE ARWTC

RMB NG 130,654 227,607 46,400 -
uUSs$ ¥t 247,866 223,442 124,898 161,034
KZT 2357 109,671 156,613 - -
Bt 488,191 607,662 171,298 161,034
The fair values of provisions, accruals and other liabilities HEM - TE AR R A B Y A FoqE (B B

approximate their carrying amounts. HRT S HEAR T -
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(i) Summary of borrowings () fEsmeE
Group Company
H ] Vi
As at December 31, As at December 31,
R+_H=+—H Rr+=HA=+—H
2014 2013 2014 2013

SECWE CFoE SECWE CE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARWTE  ARMTE AR

Non-current FETR By
— senior notes payable — BT (i)
(Note) 4,169,243 3,689,503 4,169,243 3,589,503
— unsecured bank loans — SRR ERTT K 5,635 - = -
4,174,878 3,589,503 4,169,243 3,589,503
Current WH
— secured bank loans — IEHPERAT EK 122,380 - = -
— unsecured bank loans — EAEI R T B 217,075 60,000 = -
339,455 60,000 - -
4,514,333 3,649,503 4,169,243 3,589,503
Note: Mitat -
As at December 31,
W+ —H=+—H
Coupon rate Due date 2014 2013
S AR FWA e Sl 1[4 2 TR SR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARW Tt AR#Tot
2016 Notes 2016 24 9.75%  May 12,2016 S ERATA - 2,399,658
2018 Notes 2018 2% 6.875%  February 6,2018  —&— /E— K H 1,190,967 1,189,845
2019 Notes 2019 %4 7.5%  April 25,2019 S JUENA A 2,978,276 -
4,169,243 3,589,503

On May 12, 2011, the Company issued US$400 million senior notes due
2016 (“the 2016 Notes”). The 2016 Notes bear a coupon rate of 9.75%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 12 and November
12 annually. The net proceeds, after deduction of underwriting fees,
discounts and commissions and other expenses amounted to
approximately US$390 million (equivalent to RMB2,535 million). A
portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the 2016 Notes was used
to repay in full US$200 million MIE’s credit facility with CITIC Bank. The
remaining proceeds were used to finance the Company’s acquisition of
Emir-Oil from BMB Munai, Inc. and for working capital and general
corporate purposes.

RAFRPRF——FHA T ZHBITRZF
—NAEFI 1400 T 35 CHY MRS EEE (DL
Fl (2016 2248 1) o 112016 Z2 48 £ 4 22 1 FIl R
QTS MR ERNGERA T H R
+—H+HES o SR AT IR B
F LB B - TR B 4 DA B At A ST E AT
A% > BEAT ARG T A5 O T AE 49 7 390
HEFELIAEARKEL2535HE L) « A&
A 3 T A TR LAY R R R A 9 MIE
4R P A SRAT 200 TS 35 TG B o A5 BRI
4% F1 7 17 BMB Munai, Inc. 32 £+ Emir-Oil i
W > R ma 4 e — 2 -
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(i)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On February 6, 2013, the Company issued US$200 million senior notes
due 2018 (the “2018 Notes”). The 2018 Notes bear coupon rate of
6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on February 6 and
August 6 annually. The net proceeds, after deduction of discounts, fees,
commissions and other expenses, amounted to approximately US$195
million (equivalent to RMB1,222 million). A substantial portion of the
proceeds from the 2018 Notes was used to repay all of existing
indebtedness of the Company’s subsidiary, MIE, to Minsheng Bank. The
remaining proceeds were used for capital expenditures, working capital
and general corporate purposes of the Group.

On April 25, 2014, the Company issued US$500 million (equivalent to
RMB3,076.4 million) senior notes due in April 2019 (the “2019 Notes”).
The 2019 Notes bear coupon rate of 7.50% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears on April 25 and October 25 annually. The net
proceeds, after deduction of discounts, fees, commissions and other
expenses, amounted to approximately US$485.0 million (equivalent to
RMB2,986.1 million). The proceeds are used to (i) to redeem in full the
US$400 million (equivalent to RMB2,461.1 million) 9.75% senior notes
due 2016 issued by the Company on May 12, 2011 and fund the related
redemption costs, including a call premium of US$19.5 million
(equivalent to RMB120.2 million) and (ii) the remaining balance for
capital expenditures, working capital and general corporate purposes.

The 2016 Notes, 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes (collectively “Senior
Notes”) are general obligation of the Company and are senior in right
of payment to any existing and future obligations of the Company and
its subsidiaries expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Senior
Notes, respectively.

The Senior Notes and the guarantees provided by the certain
subsidiaries will limit the ability of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries to, among other things (and subject to certain qualifications
and exceptions) incur additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock
and make investment.

(i)

ik B 22 (4)
Wit : (4)

ARAFR T2 ZHANBBTRF
— AR 200 FH 8 350 e % (LU iR
[2018 54 |) © 112018 ZE 4 & 45 5L imi K%
A4 6.875 I - 2R AE R AE T H N H KON
HN HAEAT o ZAmBre s i - & -
I B A BB AT R F A A S 4% > bk
1 TSR A5 195 T B 400 (& AR
HH91,222 F B0) o AL AL T A BRIE TR AR
PR3 4 FH R 38 7 23 W MIE &5 K R A 4R AT
12 U > AR AN AR A S
G e A A

AN A T E AR A A H B T
F—JUAEP A FI #1500 H #9500 (FEB AR
5 3,076.4 1 8 456 EE AR (LUT AR 2019
PR ) o 12019 B4R & I 2 R 2R 5y 4R
7.50 8 » GRRAEREAENA A KA
TR BEA e AINBR K AT R - B
B G A BB AT AR S R
UCHE 19 T 15 3XTE AL 4 75 485.0 B 3% T
(S N RH402,986.1 H # L) © AN AT
5 TR BT (i) 2 R D I A A mD A
——FERA T AT R NERH
400 #30 (SFE AR 2,461.1 5 #0)
9.75 I {8 4l 0% M ST AH B 1 25 - A4
19.5 {5 35 o0 (G E R ANRH120.2 5 8 0)
R [0 32 8 5 B (i) B K TE R AR S~
S R AT o

20165544 ~ 20185345 1 2019 S 4% (4iAl [ 5
JEEENE ) BARN TN — A > e AR
PSR ALS R T A E RS AR
Ji& 5% U S AR AT o A BOR A TTAT ©

BE ST IR B T WA 2 R4 ROER PR 45 £
SRR AR 2 ) R He e O w TE 7 A AR A
fRUH5 - AT RSN LA R A T T Y RE T (1f
JEAT G A T A TS DLBR S o



(i)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

At any time on or after February 6, 2016 and April 25, 2017, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes,
respectively, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the
percentage of principal amount set forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during the
12-month period commencing on February 6 and April 25, respectively,
of any year set forth below:

2018 Notes: 2018 %%
2016 RN
2017 B
2019 Notes: 2019 H#E:
2017 TE LA
2018 — g

At any time prior to February 6, 2016 and April 25, 2017, the Company
may at its option redeem the 2018 Notes and the 2019 Notes,
respectively, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes,
respectively, plus the applicable premium and accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date.

In addition, at any time prior to February 6, 2016, the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Notes,
with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of
the Company in an equity offering at a redemption price of 106.875% of
the principal amount of 2018 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any to (but excluding) the redemption date, provided that at least 65%
of the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Notes issued on the
original issue date remains outstanding after each such redemption and
any such redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the
related equity offering

At any time prior to April 25, 2017 the Company may redeem up to 35%
of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes with the Net Cash
Proceeds of one or more sales of Common Stock of the Company in an
equity offering at a redemption price of 107.50% of the principal amount
of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding)
the redemption date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such redemption takes
place within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

All Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(i)

ik B 22 (4)
Wit : (4)

B E—NAEHNHE - FE—LENH
TR H B ARAT AT R[] A E] W] G AT
R FUAR A A TR SCUT R A 4 A A i B T £
IR A B [ O R A A R (i 4
Al A TR 3CHT AT AT 4 B S B ORI A
A B AR A T A T T I ) B [ A
BB 2018 59 [ 2019 5% -

Redemption Price

VL I i 4%

103.4375%
101.71875%

103.750%
101.875%

ARAT AN ZF—NAEZANE L%
—BAE I A A AT AT R ] 5 SRR A
2018 5 45 1% 2019 5% 4% 4% <6 %6 100% 1) [
[l 5 7 ook 2 M [ B 0 9 A VAR A e RE BT
Te RATFI I, > B ] A3 1 FE 3643 2018 ZE 4%
%2019 24k o

PS> R T E—RAE T AN HRT > ANTF A
o E — U B0 3 s vp — IR B 2 R A B
e FIr B A 1 B 4 9 AR DA ST AR & MR
106.875% » b & H R G145 [ [m] 11 3 1) g
FERATFLE () 2 SRR By AR A - B
] S 38 2018 S5 48 A< <53 B8 81 35% 1 43 o
W20 (AT 2 0 R R A R o A O AT I [
%o A D ME R B IR EEAT B #4T
2018 FEAE A 42 4% 65% 10 43 1t A ] > L
I 111 47 22 ZE S R R R 103 5 465 TR A% 60 H A 3%
Ao

T E B4R A b H T > AR R AL
FAAE— WA 38 1 vh — R s 2 YR 9 M
i A5 B A 0 A DABE AR A AR
107.50% > Jin |- 5 2 6 ] 309 0 B o A )
B2 MR L TR RS > R R iR 2019 52
PR AR 4 B0 35% MR 43 o aZ L E AT A 0 i R
A2 > B UCEITIE % > 54 2D 7R
WEREEAT BB 3847 2019 248 A 4 40%E 65%
BT 40 A ] > L (] A7 2 2B A B 4
AL 60 H R EEE -

TESE SRR A BN 78 7528 5 B A IR W]
Eili e
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(ii)

Effective interest rate at the end of reporting period are
as follows:

(ii) FEEAE ARSI R -

Group Company
£ L] A
Bank
borrowings Senior Notes Total Senior Notes
HAT R B At B
Effective interest rate: BRI
As at December 31, 2014 WA
+ZH=1+—H 6.77% to 8.14% to 6.23% to 8.14% to
8.00% 8.55% 8.55% 8.55%
As at December 31, 2013 i —F— = 4R
+—-H=+—H 6.44% 7.83% to 6.44% to 7.83% to
10.91% 10.91% 10.91%
Estimated fair value fhFtA RMEE
As at December 31, 2014 AT — U4
+=-A=+—H 345,090 3,408,283 3,753,373 3,408,283
As at December 31, 2013 W oE— =
+=-HA=+—H 60,000 3,777,030 3,837,030 3,777,030

The fair values of Senior Notes are based on its closing
prices quoted on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and are within level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy; and the fair value of bank borrowings is
based on the borrowing rate from 6.23% to 8.55% (2013:
6.44%) and within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

B S BRI 2 o 2 R A LA o
T35 58 75 58 Gy T (1 W A R A 1 A
S S JE A s FOAEAELSE — FE A 5 TSR
TR SO AE S 3 i 8 30R) 2R
6.23%-8.55% ( — & — = 4f:
6.44%) T 5 - b B B R 2 o (H
5



(ifi) The exposure of the Group’s floating rate bank
borrowings amounted to RMB222,710,000 (2013:
RMB60,000,000) to contractual interest rate changes
based on LIBOR and the base rate as published by the
People’s Bank of China at December 31, 2014 are as

(iv)

follows:

Up to 1 year:
1-2 years:
2-5 years:

DR
— B
LEEEE

The Senior Notes which bear fixed interest rates are not
subject to interest rate changes.

The carrying amount of the borrowing are denominated

in the following currencies:

RMB
Us$

N
ESH

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(iii) A<= B 1 B 7 By R R G I AT A

[ #5222,710,000 7€ (& — =A4F
A K # 60,000,000 5T ) #4183 BT i
T 0 2 7 Afy CBRAT [R] SEHR A5 R0
i A\ RARATIA B —IU4E+ A
= A 2 B R R0 A ) A

(iv)

HEH AR ATT -
As at December 31,
w+_A=1+—H

2014 2013
SEWE %S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt INEEY i T
217,075 60,000
2,910 -
2,725 -
222,710 60,000

(& U E R B S R RN

AR Bl i A o

P A A kM T < BE LA 4D B R

fir
Group Company
M A
As at December 31, As at December 31,
BR+ZH=1+—H R+=HAH=1+—H

2014 2013 2014 2013

“F g —E R NE =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETE ARWTxT AR¥TIL ARKETT
8,545 60,000 - -
4,505,788 3,689,503 4,169,243 3,589,503
4,514,333 3,649,503 4,169,243 3,689,503
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(v) The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year
— Expiring beyond one year

Fixed rate:
— Expiring within one year
— Expiring beyond one year

(v) ABEE A T 515 BRI ERTT
ZE#HE

As at December 31,

[REIRIIES
— —HERE
— —4ERL R

[
— —AERE
— —AEBL L F

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) i & 1/\ w5 #1158 (M3 9)

Gains/(losses) on oil put options
Gains on changes in value of financial
assets at fair value
Service income
Loss on fair value change of warrants
Losses on disposal of investment
in a joint venture
Accident indemnity (Note)
Others

Note:

A MEIHRER S/ Uk H)
N B RTE S  E E
(B M 15

TRBSUCA
PRBHERE A~ AR E AR B R R
HESE AR

HHURK (M)
FoAt

S EA R
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETG  ARMET
290,000 -

= 300,000

220,025 -

= 151,717

510,025 451,717

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2014 2013

“F g T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFE  ARWTT
259,389 -
19,564 (7,626)
11,723 5,458
3,834 14,111
(408) -
- (1,379)
- (23,055)
7,918 7,856
302,020 (4,635)

Wit -

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group accrued provisions
amounting to RMB23 million for indemnities resulting from a traffic accident
involving oil tanks in Kazakhstan, which has been fully settled during the year

ended December 31, 2014.

WE=F =4+ H = B IR » A
HET AW 23 SR HE 0 B S
MO T B SRR B B L B
RIE F AR = b LR R AR -
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Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2014 2013
—F A TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F 7t NG e
PRC: a7
Special oil levy AN 2R 4 328,878 399,323
Urban construction tax and IR I B2
education surcharge 12,110 13,473
Others HAth 444 398
341,432 413,194
Kazakhstan: I i sl H -
Mineral extraction tax W) B B 44,588 45,329
Rent export tax A4 OBl 176,536 185,696
Rent export duty expenditures FHA O BB 87,328 56,973
Property tax SIES) 23,508 31,452
331,960 319,450
USA: S
Withholding tax A& 930 386
Severance tax BH PR 534 -
1,464 386
Corporate: R -
Withholding tax (Note) FACERL (Hf ) 20,236 7,598
695,092 740,628
Note: Mfat -
For the year ended December 31, 2014, all (2013: all) withholding tax is related BEZF—WETFZ A= —HILEE s T (%

AR A A AR B AR R AR R A
A AL AR o

to interest expense arising from the intra-group loans.
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Year ended December 31,
wET_H=1—HIL4E

Finance income WEBA

Interest income on deposits TEFA B A

Finance costs JiLgr 39l

Interest expenses at coupon FILE 2 T (42 R S T ) o
rates/bank rates HRATFRAZ )

Amortization of discounts St B A Y

Premium and unwinding of unamortized 42§ B [ {i% 2K (14 %5 18 )%
costs from early redemption of KRG & T (KAL)
borrowings (Note)

Other fees HoA 2 T

Exchange gains, net

Finance costs — net

Note:

BE 5. 5 > 138

WAEEA — A

For the year ended December 31, 2014, premium and unwinding of
unamortized costs from early redemption of borrowings includes the premium
amounting to RMB120.2 million (2013: RMB25.2 million) and unamortized
costs written off amounting to RMB34.7 million (2013: RMB13.5 million) in
relation to the early redemption of 2016 Notes (Note 24) (2013: early
repayment of China Minsheng Bank loan).

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group did not
capitalize any borrowing costs.

2014 2013
S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFE  ARMT I
18,491 6,431
(335,521) (329,945)
(33,288) (28,465)
(154,902) (38,398)
(8,903) (5,476)
(532,614) (402,284)
32,796 50,300
(499,818) (351,984)
(481,327) (345,553)
Wik -
WEFE-PE A = BIREE - RATE R

5 1 Vi (0 o 8 6 1% 22 R o = 0 T BRL AL A O )
2016 5145 (Mt 24) (—F— =4+ P fE e o 3 R
A SRATAE O FH BRI T 1 e A A N RF120.2 15 #oT
(CF— =4 NRW25.2 1 8 70) BAZ 8 R #4510
LHEMEEARN3ATAE T (E -4 AR
"13.5 @ H#IT) °

WEZF R TS TS H LR
ARG AR BAACATAT R A ©



Profit from operation is arrived at after charging:

Employee benefit expense:

Wages, salaries and allowances

Housing subsidies

Share options — value of
employee services

Stock appreciation rights expenses

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans (Note)

Welfare and other expenses

Depreciation and depletion of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

Impairment charges on property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

Amortization of intangible assets
(Note 7)

Impairment charges on intangible
assets (note 7)

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit and audit related services
— non-audit services

Operating lease expenses

Note:

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement plan at a rate of 20% (2013: 20%) of the specified salaries of the
qualified employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible for the

pension liability to the retired employees.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

B T A

TE -~ e L
55 A

HEIBCRE — MR 2R P (E(E

ey 49 (e HE 22 1)

BIRB A — BUERAFRH
(Ktat)

A A K2 oAt 22 1)

B E ~ TR A AT 8 &
Ir¥e (W17t 6)

REEE - T s B AR
(Ktit6)

HETE A R (M RE 7)

ETE W WUEAR O (ML 7)

2% e P
— ks
— IR ES
KT E 2

Bt

TEANPILA N I B AR R A8 AR

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2014
%
RMB’000
ISR

171,625
2,514

33,652
(21,337)

18,409
10,771

215,634

912,947
141,704
15,500
12,866
4,992

12,893

2013
—E -4

RMB’000
ABRHTI8

184,730
2,509

26,549
(16,965)

16,190
14,756

227,769

887,714

17,318

4,619
1,097
13,951

ASEET A G A ThE TER20% (%
AR 20%) B EIESCR T B K BUE B TR AR
Al o PEEUT A HZERKE THEEE R -
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(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive officer for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013 is set out below:

Name of Director

[ £

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

Zhang Ruilin*
ZhaoJiang wei

Mei Jianping

Jeffrey Willard Miller

Cai Rucheng
Tao Tak Yin Dexter

Andrew Sherwood Harper

Tian Hongtao**
Sing Wang
Hung Leung

HE-F—

LIS ES et

IHEE

R

I

Ly

Jeffrey Willard
Miller

AU,

afay

Andrew Sherwood
Harper

ik

T

e

S
v

Fees
e

RMB’000
ARHT T

246

307
246

799

(a) EHEME

e L
H = R i

Salaries and  Discretionary Share options

allowances
B Rk

RMB’000
ARHT T

4,310
3,634

2,458

3,009
1,775

15,186

bonuses

Ttk
RMB’000

YN o

3,073
922

2,151

2151

8,297

Total

it
RMB'000
NN R

7,888
5,095
246

307
246
4,912

3,305
421

JEAT B I &g R
Employer's

contribution Stock
to pension  appreciation
expenses scheme rights granted
At BHy g B
A 8 8 fit sk HHLHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTE  ARWTL  ARWTx
497 8 -
497 42 -
- 17 286
296 = -
243 42 -
1533 109 286

26,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

% Appointed with effect from December 5, 2014

***  Resigned with effect from July 19, 2013
Appointed with effect from July 19, 2013

KXKX

HHKK

29. Directors’, supervisors’ and senior 29. #FF - B R w A P 5
management’s emoluments (Continued) (##)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) #EHM4 (4)
Employer's
contribution Share
Salariesand  Discretionary to pension options
Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme expenses Total
RGN
HHEA s B Rrnh e & B F 3k TR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR AREF NRHF NIl S ARETF INTL SO
For the year ended BE-Z—=F
December 31, 2013 +-A=1+—H
I
Zhang Ruilin* 3ira - 4,32 3,714 8 578 8,624
Zhao Jiangwei k! - 3,602 928 38 578 5,146
Forrest Dietrich*** Forrest Dietrich*** - 2,184 - - 578 2,762
Allen Mak*##* L34 A - 2,888 4,333 - 578 7,799
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 309 - - - - 309
Mei Jianping Hig T 248 - - - - 248
Cai Rucheng Ak 248 - - - - 248
Tao Tak Yin Dexter**** oy i - 1,444 3,590 - - 5,034
Andrew Sherwood Andrew Sherwood
Harper##*#* Harper#*#*#* - 2,236 619 - 326 3,181
Hung Leung i - - - - - -
Tsang Chi Kin BEg - - - - - -
Sing Wang i - - - - - -
805 16,678 13,184 46 2,638 33,351
* Mr. Zhang Ruilin is also the chief executive officer. * SRR IR EIBATE -

AR+ A R -
REF =LA T IUHEHE -
e e VIR WINCE &3
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(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Directors B
Non-director individual FEHANL

The details of emoluments paid to the five highest
individuals who were Directors of the Company during
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 have been
included in above. Details of emoluments paid to the
remaining non-director individual are as follows:

Salaries and allowances W S A
Discretionary bonuses 1 1 8 4

Share options granted EL 52 1 B TR A
Pension costs — defined BIREG A —

contribution plans A

(b) hfAm=EHAL

AEHEE T —UFE R E—
E+ A=+ —HILEE LA RS
FALWT

Year ended December 31,

®ET_H=1—HIL4E
2014 2013
A

AAFEE ZE—NFERL _FE—=
A=t —HILEECALA
e e BN P B AR 2 R EE S I
FEIBEAE L 3CHR - BATER N IEE
AL SR

Year ended December 31,

BREVT-H=+—HIL4ERE

2014 2013
e A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TT

1,844 4,697
2,151 7,799
243 8,397
47 411

4,285 21,304



(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

(c)

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$5,000,001-HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001-HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001-HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001-HK$7,500,000
HK$9,500,001-HK$10,000,000
HK$10,500,001-HK$11,000,000

Fr s (o)

5,000,001 ¥ 7 -5,500,000 ¥ 7T
5,500,001 ¥ 7 —6,500,000 ¥ 7T
6,500,001 # 7. -7,000,000 i# 7T
7,000,001 # 7. -7,500,000 i# 7T
9,500,001 # 7£-10,000,00 # 7T

10,500,001 #57£-11,000,000 ¥ 7T

During the financial year ended December 31, (e)
2014, none of the directors of the Company and

the five highest paid individuals:

(i) received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement upon joining the Group;

(ii) receive any compensation for losses of office as a
director or managerial of any member of the

Group;

(iii) waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

(b) 44 5 i A\ (%)

UEAE BN TE T S AL S S A

Number of individuals

A
2014 2013
SEomE
2 -

2 -

- 1

- 1

2

= 1

5 5

REE_F-MNEL A
= H Ik iy S AR IR
ZER O PN o 0 e8> 421
BALY R TIZHIE

(i) WCHBAE T P < £ 2 im A AR 4
P ey 11 S R

(i) WAL HiE S E AR L E
B A AT A LR A7 A A

(ifi) oS ] AT AT R o
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(d) Senior management remuneration band (d) = 445 B0 P 3 I A 4l 5 i [ 2
7|
The emoluments fell within the following band: W05 AR T B A A A

Emolument bands (in HK$)

Number of individuals
N i
2014 2013
SEoWE ES

e 1R (W T)

HK$300,000-HK$1,000,000 300,000 # 5t —1,000,000 ¥ 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #% 5t —1,500,000 #5 G - 3
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #% 5. -2,000,000 #5 G - 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #57t-2,500,000 #5 G 1 -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 #7£ 3,500,000 # jC - 2
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #57t-4,000,000 #5 G 1 2
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 #55t-4,500,000 #5 70 2 -
HK$6,000,001-HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 #57t-6,500,000 #5 7C - 2

8 14

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2014 2013
SEoWE %o
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TE  ARWTT

Current income tax — overseas EHATSEL — Ah 134,833 209,154
Deferred income tax (Note 21) PEAE TS BL (M7t 21) 79,330 (34,071)
214,163 175,083
Taxation has been calculated on the estimated assessable EE T N S e L S = A
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the Tl A EL R T AN A [ 4G 2E T TR B R

countries in which the Group operates. BATHLER -



The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:

Profit before income tax B J7 4458 i A0 1P
Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in
the respective countries
Tax effects of: i Ty 28
— Income not subject to tax — MBI
— Expenses not deductible for — AT H0HE S
tax purposes
— Re-measurement of deferred tax due
to change in the Kazakhstan tax rate

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

7S B R B A T B B - BB T
1 2 R M) TR S D 0 o R~ 3 R A T R
AR Y PR B A 22 AN T

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

A I3 280 5 1) A 4 7 D )
EHBUR R BUR

— AR T e T AR R A AL
oA IR ERIA

— Tax losses and temporary differences  — A< 52 4 i 1584 & 72 (1)

for which no deferred income tax
asset was recognized
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — — DL Ri4F Ji 7 2%

— Others —H At
Tax charge BiIE %

The weighted average effective tax rate was 90% (2013: 38%)
for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Deferred tax in Kazakhstan has been re-measured to reflect
the changes in excess profit tax rate of Kazakhstan will be
applied in the future, which is mainly caused by changes in
management forecast of future capital expenditures and
other tax rates.

The excess profit tax rate is based on rate of return on
subsurface use operations and requires estimation of future
taxable income, capital expenditures and other assumptions
which affect the estimations of amounts and periods when
deductible/taxable temporary differences existing at the
reporting date are reversed/settled.

B s 18 5 W Rk 2 5

2014 2013
I
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETIE  AREET
236,712 454,867
116,501 195,689
(1,125) (2,912)
40,859 7,674

= (30,728)

55,105 1,624
1,482 3,736
1,341 -
214,163 175,083

BE_E-NWEFZA=+—HILFE
ZIMREF A BRI 90% (—F — =
iF 1 38%) o

S 4 AW A0 2 A S 0 ME
{01 BLAE AT 0 T R ) B Wk A
BRIBL R R 2l e
R 5 R o S A S e B A B
st -

T R YR B % R A b B 3 ) [
A N T BB R ACHE SRBLUCA - EAME
St e At 5 2B B BB R 30 T IR
0,/ MERRBL W I I 2 S ] 4 B A
] B B ) il A AR B AR R
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The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt AN FH A REAL R B = A A A | B
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent Bk e s NRH861.3° B T
of RMB861.3 million (2013: RMB61.6 million). (ZF—=4F 0 AR¥61.6AEIT) o
(a) Basic (a) HEA
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FEA AR A AR AN R T A &
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the B REAL A > B DAAS AF B 0 8847
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 2 R IR ST 2 B H AL

during the year.

Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2014 2013
SEoWE E
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS ANRMET T

Profit attributable to owners of AN 7T A A AL A

the Company 58,483 283,009
Weighted average number of TIRESE- 23828 i B (TR

ordinary shares (thousands) 2,603,617 2,615,535
Earnings per share, Basic RS (BN R W)

(RMB per share) 0.02 0.11



MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(b) Diluted (b) Fif¥

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share
options outstanding which are potentially dilutive. A
calculation is performed to determine the number of
ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the weighted
average number of outstanding share options. The
number of ordinary shares calculated above for basic
earnings per share is increased by the number of
ordinary shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options at the date later of
beginning of the relevant period or the date of issue.

Earnings Wi

o SRR R WA A ) 1B B P A R A
T I A% o R
B IR BT 5 o A R
ARAT o 2 B B R LA Y A TR
JE o AT IBOHE o ARBERAT I
RE 19 Jon AR -5 T WA S SR P
fE{E - 52 W] REC #2 S E (E (R
AN m B (9 - 3 4 BE T AE) B A
- B o i DA _E AR i
fi 77 AFHA R BRE > /b
AR B SRR % A ] 9 ] 30 400 G
AT H WE 2 Fh e F AT i
AT SR AT 19 3 2 A R -

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2014 2013
SECWE E o
RMB’000 RMB’000

VNG ANRMET T

Profit attributable to owners of the FH T 7o 2 R IR R i 2 11

Company used to determine AN TR A REAL R
diluted earnings per share 58,483 283,009
Weighted average number of T E ¥ B H (T8

ordinary shares (thousands) 2,603,617 2,615,635
Adjustments for: i
— share options (thousands) — WEIEHE (1) 3,461 8,123

e

Weighted average number of diluted %5158 45 B A6 R i 45 7Y
potential ordinary shares for diluted 7 F& V2 7E 3 % % i HE - 44 8
earnings per share (thousands) (F1%) 2,607,078 2,623,658

Earnings per share, Diluted I R R (1 T AN R
(RMB per share) 0.02 0.11
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A dividend of HK$0.029 per share in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2013, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$77 million (equivalent to RMB61 million) was approved
at the annual general meeting on May 16, 2014 and was paid

in June 2014.

The Board of Directors does not recommend any payment of

final dividend for the year ended December

Proposed final dividend of
HK$0 (2013: HK$0.029)
per ordinary share

31,2014,
2014
—F g
HK$'000
T
BRE VIR A U PR 51 28

O TE (% — = -

-3 B 0.029 #e 7T -

REE - E—ZF A=+ —H IR
BB AR B BN —F—U4ET TN
HE2BBERFEE DR Wik %
—PUAEN H A o s IR BB 0.029 s
JC > B AT E E L (A AR
61 HETT) o

HEFARREE - F-WE+H
=t HILFEIRERE -

Year ended December 31,
BE+-H=+—HIE

2013 2014 2013
S CFEWE CFSf
RMB’000 HK$°000 RMB’000
ARMTG Tt ARET
- 77,572 60,969
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Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HIL&EE

2014 2013
—PUAE —E -4
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F It NG BT
Profit before income tax o T A5 B8 i ) TR 236,712 454,867
Adjustments for: Lk
Depreciation, depletion and e - e B ks
amortization 928,447 905,032
Interest expenses — net (Note 27) AR S (HaE27) 514,122 394,826
Exchange gains (Note 27) W S0 AT (BifiE27) (32,796) (50,300)
Impairment charge VIRIERISEN 154,570 -
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BTN RIS (BtaE 25)
(Note 25) (259,389) -
Gain on change in fair value of AT B 4 A A AR
available-for-sale financial assets BB #7 (11,314) -
(Gains)/losses on oil hedge options AIMEIR RN A A8 E
),k (19,564) 7,626
Loss on disposal of investment in EEAERERK
a joint venture - 1,379
Value of employee services under Wi A T 3 R B IR A AR
stock option schemes 12,315 26,549
Share of losses of investments AR SR TR AR BB
accounted for using the equity e A
method 55,432 68,777
Changes in working capital: o S )
Inventories e (2,478) 2,681
Trade and other receivable JAeE e e SEL At R i 2k 226,175 88,316
Trade and other payable JREASH B At 1B AsF 35K (140,530) (127,154)
Cash generated from operations s E B 4 1,661,702 1,772,599
Cash flows from operating activities KBEWMBEAENR SRR
Cash generated from operations L% B A ) P 4 1,661,702 1,772,599
Interest paid EATRLE (326,022) (295,931)
Income tax paid SYRPIEE) (155,257) (267,569)
Net cash generated from operating S8 T B B A T B 4 v
activities 1,180,423 1,209,099
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(a) Commitments (a) &G
(i) Capital commitments for the purchase of (i) WEAHE - LREAREZ
property, plant and equipment e N A )

As at December 31,

S EA R
2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000

VNS ANRMET T

Authorized by the Board of e C R AL
Directors but not contracted for 409,072 2,117,619
Contracted but not provided for EEIFOLEP Y 236,400 4,258
645,472 2,121,877
(ii) Operating lease commitments (i) RERERHE
The Group has operating lease commitments AL B R ARE A =
related to its non-cancellable operating leases for A A AT R 1 AR T A K
offices. The future aggregate minimum lease o AR TH B IE T Y R AR IR
payments under these operating leases are as RARE A IR
follows:
As at December 31,
w+=-H=+—H
2014 2013
“E Mg —EF-Z4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIE AR¥TC
Less than 1 year DR —4F 13,195 13,530
Within 1-2 years — EWAE 5,733 3,202
Within 2-5 years — R AL 693 320

19,621 17,052



(a) Commitments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

According to the production contracts for four
blocks in Kazakhstan, the Group is obligated to
perform minimum work program during the life of
the production contracts. Set out below is the
commitments for the minimum work program:

Less than 1 year D — 4
Within 1-2 years — B WAE
Within 2-5 years CERHA
Over 5 years HAERL B

The minimum work program includes capital
expenditure of RMB2,022 million (2013: RMB2,161
million) to be incurred over the life of the
production contracts expiring in 2036. Other
commitments represent mainly other direct
operation and maintenance costs of wells and
related facilities.

The Group has a commitment to provide funding
if called by SGE in accordance with the 2015 SGE
annual budget as approved by its board of
directors up to US$51.0 million (equivalent to
RMB312.1 million).

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(a) 7Rk (#)

(iii)

(iv)

AR A Ve T v 307 21 ] [ R )
EEAR - AL LA S
7] 90 BRE 1A L4 o I T A it 8
FIARIE

As at December 31,

BEZA= N
2014 2013

e L
RMB’000 RMB’000
NREEFTE  AREET
578,409 409,438
538,322 434,868
1,419,575 1,429,438
4,953,807 5,388,564
7,490,113 7,662,308

#2 K LA 5T E A
BRI LEESGF& L
HNEA W EARME N AR
2,022 F B oo (&R — 4R
ANE¥2,161H #o0) o Hib
AR S R I S R A
B8 R0t ) A T AN A R A o

AT ARG - MR A R [
HaaAE R R IE HE it
WEMY 2015 4F BETE A > sk p
VATH B 38 E iRk - AifR
#£51.0 | #5300 (FEN AR
¥e312.1 HEIT) B FKIH -
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(b) Contingencies

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with
Sinopec for exploration and development of Luojiayi 64
block at Shengli oilfield in Shandong Province, which
was suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE
requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the
project. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter
from Sinopec denying the request to restart the project
and seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that
the extension period of the trial-development phase
had expired and MIE had not met its investment
commitment under the PSC. The Company believes its
investment in the project at Shengli oilfield had met the
required commitment amount under the PSC. The PSC
with Sinopec has not been formally terminated and the
dispute has not entered any judicial proceedings. As
advised by the external legal counsel of the Company,
the probability of claim from Sinopec for unfulfilled
investment commitment, if any, in relation to the pilot-
development phase is remote as the statute of
limitations has run out.

Apart from the above, the Group has contingent
liabilities in respect of claims or other legal procedures
arising in its ordinary course of business from time to
time. As at December 31, 2014, the directors of the
Company did not anticipate that any material liabilities
will arise from the contingent liabilities other than those
provided for in the financial statements.

(b) A AR

A EREFENA -+ /\H > MIE
SR AL ET S S LA R > DA
R % BRAEE 6 J7 1L R s il ) 2
K64 - ZHHE A -EF%
DU AE KB e TR AE
A > MIE [ H 7 b 23R 4E R R DA
EHEBAMEIER o R FF
NEJLA - +LEH > MIEE#G A
b 5 P H B RE % I H BRI K
4> H A Al A B B R B A =
IR J 3 B2 MIE 3 oK JB AT 72 5 4%
A TRIIE T GRS 2l ok
IR Ay A TR o MIE &2 2% i T
Flyh FHIEH I RE O G E
A TR 1 T R 9 R R AR o B
AL B FE A A TR IR R I U
1E > R o 0 A A AT fo] WA TR
JF o ARIEAR A ) A A1 I A R
ko P Al e BE B B B
A 58 AR B AR AR I (UnAT) 1 AT R
PEEE /N > ME TR EL R AR R A R

B B AG DLAN - ARG EIAE H RSB
IR T 3% A B AR A i A
P AHBR B A B o i DU AE
T oA=+t—H RAFEEREEY
B % B B R R AL > AN AEAE
(EROEEENNEVIR e PN YR
JH o



Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in
2014.

On or around October 23, 2013, Asia Power entered into
share subscription agreements with the Company and other
independent investors pursuant to which Asia Power offered
ordinary shares for subscription, on a private placement
basis (“Placement”). Prior to the Placement, the Company
has funded Asia Power a total of US$49 million (equivalent
to RMB299.0 million), which was converted from a
shareholder loan to its equity interest in Asia Power.
Pursuant to the share subscription agreements, the Company
and the various investors paid the subscription proceeds of
US$12 million (equivalent to RMB73.7 million) and US$7.8
million (equivalent to RMB47.6 million), respectively. Upon
the completion of the Placement, the Company’s equity
interest in Asia Power was diluted from 100% to 92.18%. The
effect of changes in the interests of Asia Power on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year is
summarized as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests disposed of

Consideration received from non-controlling
interests

Gain on disposal within equity

Asia Power subsequently changed its name to Asia Gas &
Energy Limited after the completion of the Placement.

B I AHE 2

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

RPEIHE I REWR 1 T B 37 4w i A

TR PUAE R BRIV RE R 32 5

M_F—=%#+H -+ =HTHif% > Asia
Power B/ T K Al 8 57 % ' & AT
TG RR s Tk o LAJE 2 B 5 7 2 (LA
T FE AR TG 1) 1 AR 2 D B L A 8 ST 4%
B BRAT O] G W o AE L A
AN 7 ) Asia Power # 5HiE W49 H &
For (S E NR¥299.0H &) > #%
S TKCIH H B R R SR 2 3 Asia Power
(9 JREARE o AR I 1 SR M Wh ke » AN W) B
HoA G A AT T 12.0 B E £ 0 (55
BANRE73.7HET) R7.8H HFETT
(FEWARNA47.6 7 E0) IR - I
BESE AR - A0S 7% Asia Power A HE £
i 100% Ffi 5 92.18% - Asia Power 4F
A AR 3 8 1 2 A L 36 B B A AR A W) T AT
HE R W R AR

As at
December 31,
2013
R_F—=
+=ZA=+—H
RMB’000
ANRET T

HH R 42 o i ) B T (D

(45,838)

R 2 ) W i WS 2 ) 1B 3K

47,555

1,717

Asia Power 7t 52 Bl & 2 £ 4 £ Asia
Gas & Energy Limited °
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The Group is controlled by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"),
which owns 53.72% of the Company’s shares and is also the
ultimate parent company of the Group. FEEL is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate
benefit owners are Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei and
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”, Mr. Zhang's spouse).

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

Zs 42 B %% Far East Energy Limited ( D)
R [FEEL]) BB #E ] - FEEL¥EA 4
AT A 53.72% > M7 HL IR A< 42 8] 1)
BRI T o FEEL B — RIE AW sE M i A
MRITAE A Hod 4 52 i 5 27 ik 3 % 56
A VT oA MOV & GRIEEZ
BCAd > LAUR RS (SRR A o

(a) SLBAM TR S BRI

Year ended December 31,
®ET_H=1—HIL4#E

2014 2013
2 TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F 7t NG BT
Transactions with PSC partners HLE M A B MR S
Global Oil Corporation (“GOC") BRERATH
— Cash receipts from the PSCs — MR A R R
received by the Group on TRBRA T R
GOC's behalf 223,180 253,665
— Repayment of loan by GOC — TR R A T 7R K - 35,870
— Loans to GOC — TERBERA MK 55,886 (154,158)
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — AR T o A G R BR BR
on GOC's behalf T A AR E A (136,245) (140,689)
— Deposit paid on GOC'’s behalf — BBk M AT S
JELBg PR i 4 (621) (620)
PetroChina AP ERT:
— Sales to PetroChina — b 8 6 AR 2,204,292 2,440,923
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred —ARPEEE oy A AR
on PetroChina’s behalf FRo I T SAS R A EE 2 (288,751) (310,789)
Transactions with joint ventures HEBLENRS
White Hawk Petroleum, LLC White Hawk Petroleum, LLC
(“White Hawk”) (AR fé#% [ White Hawk )
— Loan granted to White Hawk —1% T White Hawk 1) &3 - (5,131)
— Interest income from loan — BRI A - 122
SGE SRR NS
— Shareholder’s loan to SGE (Note) — — {24t {BUIE [ i) AR E K
(HtaE) (159,093) (9,450)
— Cash call paid to SGE for — B SGE A EHE L)
non-qualified expenditures Bt (4,764) -



(a)

(Continued)

In 2014, the Company entered into a shareholder’s loan
agreement with SGE, pursuant to which the Company
will provide loan to SGE at a fixed interest rate of 6.15%
per annum with no fixed term of repayment. During the
year ended December 31, 2014, US$26.0 million
(equivalent to RMB159.1 million) (Note 37(a)) loaned to
SGE under this agreement. The excess of fair value
estimated based on the prevailing market rate on the
date of the loan over interest rate per the loan
agreement amounting to US$2.8 million (equivalent to
RMB16.8 million) was accounted for as an investment
in SGE (Note 8).

Transactions with controlling
shareholder of the Company’s

ultimate holding company and/or PRI R B BB A W), A
a company/person related to the 5 (%)
controlling shareholder of the
Company'’s ultimate holding
company (¥*)
— Purchases of spare parts — PRI T
— Purchase for oilfield services — W B I IR
— Rental of vehicles and office — RGBS
premises
* All amounts disclosed above represented gross amount

transacted between the Group’s subsidiaries, acting as operator
for Daan, Moliging, Miao 3 and Kongnan, with Jilin Guotai
Petroleum Development Company and its subsidiaries, which
are controlled by Mrs. Zhang.

MI BERIZERER DR o — T —MFFR

(a)

U 2% W) e 8 4 M 28 W) i
Jie SR B AR 2 W) d A% 1 e 2 )

(#1)

A5 B2 i T — DU AE L SGE % HT
TR R > R IR AR
H [7] SGE $ L[5 72 F %R 6.15% ~ I
2 ENE H B R o s S E
—EFF_H=Z=+—H T
SGE 11 it 3% 4 % 45 26.0 B & 2 7T
(S AR 159.1 [ B o) (K
37(a)) » FEREFH BTG R
FHEAT R A2 oA (SR 98 5 1
Rt EAAE N ER SR B2=5
28HEFEL (FENARK16.8H
HoT) 1F & ¥ SGE M B & 5T (I
58) -

Year ended December 31,
®ET_H=1—HIL4#E

2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETG  ARMET
(272) (165)
(243,307) (206,632)
(4,000) (4,060)

* AL 4 22 v < A AR SR B T R (FF

By K2~ ST~ R 3 AN SLwg Il Y
YRS ) BB Tt 2 W) 28 5 W HORE o
R B 22 A i B A PR ) R T
Al 2R R N FTHE



(b) Year-end balances with related parties are

summarized as follows:

Included in ‘trade and other
receivables’:

Trade receivables from PSC partner

Other receivables from PSC partners

Cash call paid to SGE for
non-qualified expenditures

Shareholder loan receivable from
joint venture

Other receivables from SGE

Included in ‘trade and other
payables”:

Trade payables to companies
controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company

Other payables to companies
controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company
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I8 Ve B L il J Wi M ik | L4

JRE WL it 20 T [ 4 R

FoAt B i o 15 (7] 56 1 3KOH

C T SGE JF & EA% Y
Bk
JRE ST AS 2 ) 5 i S TSR f K

HoAth U SGE #KIH

I JEASF B L il B AoF ik | L9

JEAT 32 A R IR AR BT
2 B SR i P 2 ) 9 R

oAt e 52 AN 7]
B A PE I T PE IR BOR
PRt B9 22\ B OH

Other receivables from PSC partners represent
advances to GOC and PetroChina mainly from cash
receipts received by the Group on the behalf of GOC
and expenditures incurred from and for the respective
PSCs by the Group on the behalf of GOC and

PetroChina, respectively.

Cash call paid to the Group’s joint venture represents
the loans to the Group’s joint ventures for their

development and operation.

T :

(b) B W 5 52 5y 4F K Bk AR &5

As at December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETG  ARMET
148,759 244,143
216,057 258,473
16,940 12,133
142,264 -
258 -
524,278 514,749
7,765 -

= 61,293

[ FC At S 20 B [R5 PR 1
FNIE | 7 AT A BRER A A R

3K

> B [ AR G 1 R

BRI SR O REACER B T
IR T R AR R 7 i 20 I ) AR R
BRI AT R AR B

[BHEBARAEBS BN R
BIARLEM GBS BN E

e
A °©



(b) (Continued)

(c)

Trade payables to companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company represent payables for oilfield related
services from Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and Jilin
Guotai Drilling Engineering Technology Service
Company.

At December 31, 2014, all (2013: all) cash call balances
are interest-free and unsecured, and all (2013: nil)
balances of shareholders’ loans are unsecured, carrying
nominal interest rate of 6.15% per annum.

Loan to related parties

Loans to joint ventures: THEAMERK

At January 1, w—H—H

Loans advanced during the year ERFE AR

Discounting impact of JE TR TR T B R
shareholder’s loan

Loan repayments received O A

Exchange difference BFE 51, 2% %A

At December 31, wr_HA=1+—H

The shareholders loans to joint ventures as at December
31, 2014 is unsecured, carries interest at 6.15% per
annum.

MI BERIZERBRAT e —F—

(b)

(c)

POEF R

(#1)

[ AT 52 7 ) g 46 A2 5 O 42 B
SRR B 2% T B ERIE ] S 1 AR A
I 2% 7 i B A IR A R AR
A T 18 2 A 3 5 s AT R )
Lo 75 MR B 7 o bR AR B AR5 A
BIR 2% ) A ol FET AR B R 5 ) A5

L SR
(B =0 TR e MR

IE??H&W@EETHTME Br f
TR AR ) AU AR AT
?ﬁﬂﬁ’gﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁms%

T B BB O Bk

Year ended December 31,
®ET_H=1—HIL4E

2014 2013

— P 4E ZE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000

YN ST INCY ST
12,133 4,861

163,856 14,582
(16,829) -

= (7,162)

44 (148)

159,204 12,133
\—A? lﬂlﬁz—f— ﬁ + El 2 Z,K
LB T A8 AN AR O

JEMEER » 4EFE R 55 6.15% ©
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(d) Key management compensation: (d) FEEHABMESIRMT :

Year ended December 31,
®ET_H=1—HIL4E

2014 2013
SECWE F o
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS ANRMET T

Salaries He 22,750 24,124
Bonuses i 4 11,742 21,690
Value of share base ety AT 8 — B B IRBHEE

payment — employee services 2,856 12,826
Benefits in-kind HoAtb AR 1,728 3,146

39,076 61,786

Bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the A 4 H 8 76 4 S 56 WUAH B ARBS 15
end of the reporting period in which management — RN EERL o

rendered the related services.
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